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SENATOR JOSEPH P. MERLINO: We will call the 

meeting to order. This is the fourth in a series of 

Statewide public hearings conducted by the Assembly 

Taxation Committee, which is chaired by Assemblyman 

Perskie who hopefully is making his way to the Chair, 

and by the Senate Committee on Revenue, Finance and 

Appropriations. It's really amazing how the banging of 

the gaval brings the Chairman running. 

·we have a series of instructions to announce 

first and I will turn the meeting over to Assemblyman 

Perskie. 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEVEN P. PERSKIE: Senator, I am 

very grateful for your summoning me in a most expeditious 

fashion, as you did. 

I will not take the time to introduce the members 

of the Committee, most of whom presently have their 

names in front of them, except to indicate that it's 

a great pleasure for me, at least, to see the attendance 

at the hearing this afternoon and I express my gratitude 

to everyone who has come. 

There are a number of Senators and members of 

the Committee that aren't seated at the table. I see 

Senator Dwyer who has full jurisdiction as a member 

of the Committee, as well as Senator Wiley,who is 

behind me, and Senator Russo. Oh, and also Senator 

Bedell. 

Before we start, we have an extensive list of 

witnesses who wish to be heard, and I want to give 

the assurance that everyone that wants to be heard 

shall be heard, consistent obviously with our 

limitations as to time, but we will do the very best 

we can to allow everybody as much time ro he or she 

may want. However, I would ask that those who have 

written statement. s to su-pply us with a copy 

of the written statement and summarize the statement 
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orally rather than read the entire thing into the 

record. We will leave it to your judgment to determine 

t:he highlights of your testimony and would ask you to 

cooperate with us in this regard. 

For those who have oral statements exclusively, 

again we would request that you, in effect, summarize 

them and giv~ us the high points of the positions you 

wish us to consider. 

Anyone who chooses to testify and who hasn't so 

stated should please see our Committee Aide, Pete 

McHugh, whv is standing now immediately to my right 

and in front. of me, and he will see to it that you are 

scheduled to speak. 

The haaring is scheduled until 5 o •.clock this 

afternoon. We will probably run to approximately that 

time or a few minut~? thereafter, and reconvene at 

7 o • clock this eve,riing, and continue until 10 o • clock, 

but I want ~o assure you we will hear everyone who wishes 

to be heard. 

Now, briefly, before we hear our first witness, 

I have one announcement with respect to the actions 

taken this morning by the Assembly Taxation Committee. 

The Committee considered this morning the 

~uestion of proposed constitutional amendments that 

have been suggested to facilitate the enactment of 

various proposals that have come forth, including those 

fl.om the Adrninistrat"on, as well as others. And, in 

line with cur policy in the Committee of allowing 

maximum consideration for all proposals, and in keeping 

with the rnar1dates of the State Constitution which 

:::c.:Iuire a CE.:rtain procedural process to be fulfilled 

· ::l U:·.c con . .>J.deration of constitutional amendments, 
,~~. 

:.:he Cornmit·::ee today released one bill , that being an 

Assembly CC"'1rnittee Substitute for three proposals, 

ti-,ose being Assembly Concurrent Resolutions 175, 177 
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and 178. The reason for the joinder of those three 

proposals into one question was the feeling by this 

Committee that, number one, the questions all dealt 

with the same section of the Constitution and, therefore, 

were properly considerable together, and, number two, 

that the best interest of the people of the State and 

the public debate would be met, rather than proposing 

three separate questions on basically the same area, if 

these questions were combined into one. 

The content of the Assembly Committee Substitute 

thus deals with the following subject matters, all of 

which ware contained in the three bills for which it is 

a substitute: 

The so-called circuit breaker or guaranteed 

property tax limitation, the availability of that 

property tax limitation both to senior citizens and 

to thos8 totally disabled, and the permissive 

authority to grant to municipalities the right to enact 

ordinances concerning tax abatement of local property 

taxes. 

All of those proposals are now contained in the 

A~sembly Committee Substitute for Assembly Concurrent 

Resolutions 175, 177 and 178 which has been distributed 

on the de:sks of the Assemblymen today and will be 

distributed on the desks of the Senators when they next 

return into session, whenever that is. And during the 

20 day period following that date, a public hearing 

will be held on the same proposal. 

The remaining Constitutional Amendment of the 

Administration's program, Assembly Concurrent 

ResolutioD 176, dealing with the proposed cap on local 

propert~· tax expenditures remains in the Taxation 

Committee for further study. It will be released 

either in its present form or with some amendments 

probably by next week. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN CHINNICI: May I make a statement on 

that? 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN CHINNICI: Very briefly stated, on 

the amendment that we passed this morning, it takes 

care of the senior citizens, 65 years or more, or any 

citizen below 65 who is permanently and totally disabled. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: That's correct. 

ASSEMBLYMAN CHINNICI: Now my thought was - and 

I'm sorry I was late this morning or I probably would 

have brought it up this morning -- my thought is, what 

happens to the senior citizen who is, for example, 68 

years of age and who is entitled to the exemption and 

is deceased and leaves a wife of 61? Does this tax 

break - is it passed on to her or is it dropped as of 

the date of his death? 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: My reading of the 

Constitutional Amendment, which of course does not cover 

the enabling legislation, is that the senior citizen, 

the owner of the .Property, would have to be the age 

of 65 in order to be eligible. 

ASSEMBLYMAN CHI:N~ICI: In other words, if the 

male ser:ior citizer: over 65 should pass away, then 

his spo1.:se, under 62, say 61 years of age, would not 

be entitled to th· break. 

ASSEMBLl.'MA. r PERSKIE: That 1 s correct. 

ASSEMBLYMAT CHINNICI: I would like to recommend 

that we do somethlng about that before we finalize it. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: If you bring it up at the 

next Committee meeting, I am sure it will be carefully 

considered. 

ASSEMBLYMAN CHI~TNICI: Thank you very much. 

ASSF.MBLYMAN PERSKIE: The first witness this 

afternoon will be the Honorable Richard Leone, Treasurer 

of the State of New Jersey. Mr. Leone. 
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R I C H A R D C. L E 0 N E: Thank you, Assemblyman 

Perskie and members of the Committee. I appreciate the 

opportunity to appear. 

I have a short statement which I am only going 

to summaLize and I want to digress from it to touch on 

a couple of points which I think are of importance today. 

I do want to commend this Committee, which is 

working hard, and contrast its activities with some of 

the disappointments we're having. I think there's a 

tendency for people to want to bury their heads in the 

sand and hope that this problem will go away. We have 

to deal with the reality that there will be a shift 

of tax resources from the local tax base to the State 

tax base and this Committee has taken that on. What­

ever tha alternative is, there will be that shift, and 

I want to commend you for working so hard. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Thank you. Sometimes 

it has a tendency to be forgotten and it's nice to 

hear. 

rm. LEONE: We believe that the case for 

Governor Bryne's proposal proceeds on several fronts. 

The income tax proposal with a property tax rebate 

gives constitutional protection to people, a permanent 

personal limit on the amount of property tax that 

they will ever have to pay. And we also have a 

minimum tax, as you know, which penetrates the tax 

shelters which have been so abused by people both 

great and not so great in this Country. 

Our tax proposals are more progressive, more 

elastic, and more widely borne than any other state 

tax. We think it's the fairest way to shift this 

burden. In other words, we're taking the necessity 

to shift from a local base to a state base, and we're 

trying to turn it into an opportunity to have tax 

reform and to introduce a new element of fairness and 

equity into the State tax system. 
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I would like to take a minute to talk a bit 

about the major alternative 'to this proposal which is 

to shift that burden by means of a statewide property 

tax. 

It's our belief that among the things that 

present problems with that proposal is the fact that 

its adherents argue that the rate would not have to 

be raised and that the rate would raise all the money 

needed for schools. 

Our calculations raise two questions about that. 

The first is that at least one of the proposals seems 

to be short by several hundreds of millions of dollars 

of_ meeting the present school budget of the State of 

New Jersey. And we will have an analysis available 

on that in the near future. It suggests, in fact, that 

by next year, in addition to the statewide property tax 

levy, the average municipality would have to reintroduce 

a local property tax of about 75¢. 

Now I think that problem points up one of the 

more general problems with this approach. Advocates 

of it have taken the three best years of property tax 

growth and said, you won't have to raise the rates 

because our revenue source grows by about 12% a year. 

That didn't happen last year. And, in fact, if you 

look at the last five or ten years, that's not a typical 

occurrence. 

In addition, they fail to point out one fact about 

that. While the ~·ates don't go up, the assessments do. 

And they are assuming that people will continue to pay 

more and more and since the rates don't go up they won't 

reali.ze +."1c::t they're being charged more. 

To give you an example, a family with a $30,000 

house, take a $1. 50 example, would pay $450 the first ~y-ea£; 

after five years the assumption is that that average 

assessment would be up to $47,200 and that family would 
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be paying $708 property tax. 

Now our argument is very simple. On the one 

hand, we believe it is likely that the rates will have 

to go up and, on the other hand, even if the rates do 

not go up,it seems to us very clear that the amount of 

property tax a person is paying is going to increase. 

And our whole program is built around a very simple 

idea in terms of its financial premises, that property 

tax is a bad tax. If we have to collect money to pay 

for the schools, we should seek a fairer way to do it. 

We ought to protect people on fixed incomes and we 

ought to protect them against increases in their 

property tax. 

I was going to comment at same length on the 

economic oroblems and the problems in terms of the 

business costs in the proposed classification schemes 

but I understand that Dr. Freund is going to testify 

in a little while, -Chalrman of the Economic Policy 

Council, and his statement is much more complete in 

that area than mine would have been and I will refer 

you to him. There are problems and we think serious 

ones. We think we avoid most of them with our own 

business stabilization tax. 

Now I want to close by expressing my confidence 

that this Legislature will consider, improve upon and 

finally enact the Governor's education and tax reform 

proposalH. A great majority of the members have 

rejected the temptation to sit on the sidelines and have 

indicated their intention to work:towaid an equitable 

solution to the school tax crisis. It is not, as the 

members of this Committee know especially well, an 

easy assignment, but it is morally and constitutionally 

compelliilg and it is worthy of the best efforts of us 

all. 

I would like ;to:say something about the reporting 
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today of the Constitutional Amendments because it 

seems to me that those who are arguing for delay are 

perhaps guilty of a cruel hoax upon the public. Any 

of us who have looked at any of the programs know that 

the real protections for people, the things like the 

cjrcuit breaker or the property tax rebate or the 

limit on the growth of property tax or the senior 

citizen exemptions - I could go on and on - require 

constitntional amendments, and the more delay we have 

the less likely it is that those protections will be 

built into a program. I can foresee the possibility 

of a program passing which involves refinancing schools 

with the constitutional guarantees put off for a year. 

That would be, it seems to me, a disaster, and that 

would lead the people to rightly believe that our 

promises that we are doing something different this 

year, tr.at we are going to build in guarantees, were 

only typical political rhetoric. 

So I again commend you for your action and I 

would hope that it stimulates Legislators in general 

to realize we are working against a deadline, not only 

a court deadlinP j ::-. terms of any solution but a 

constitutional (>::-.:J.dline in terms of a sqlution which 

includes guarantees for the people of New Jersey. 

I would be glad to answer my questions. Thank 

you very much. 

ASSEMBLYMA. PERSKIE: Thank you very much, 

Mr. Leone. 

Do any of the members of the committee have 

:=.tn~/ q~:ct>tions? I think it might be easiest if we 

adopted the i:?rocedure, for this session at least, 

of alterna~ing from left to right, and right to 

left witi.< respect to members of the Committee. I 

will st ... ct left to right because I'm looking that way 

and ask Senator Bedell - I'm sorry, I see also Senator 

Martindell is here. Do you have any questions, Senator? 
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SENATOR MARTINDELL: ·~~ Mr. Leone, it has 

been well documented that the property tax places an 

extreme burden on the middle-income taxpayer. In 

your opinion, would these other proposals of my 

colleagues, Senate~ Bedell and Senator Russo, shift 

the tax burden as well as the plan that you have? 

MR. LEONE: No, they would not. I think that 

even the proponents of a statewide property tax 

recognize and admit that the problem with the property 

tax is that it takes a larger percentage of low- and 

middle-income people's total income than it does of 

higher-· income groups. 

Governor Cahill· has pointed that out and it has 

been pointed out by people everywhere. And I think 

they would also have to admit that the elasticity, 

that is the growth rate of the property tax, if you 

hold increases in assessment and increases in rates 

constant, is much less than 1; whereas the growth 

rate of all of our expenditures, including school 

expenditures, is larger than 1. So that not only are 

you taking a larger percentage from the lower-income 

groups but you're building that into the system over 

time because the only way you can keep up with 

inflation - and it seems to have become a fact of 

life for us, even the Republicans can't solve it, I'm 

told, - is to have growth in assessments or changes 

in rates. I think that is the heart of the difference. 

No one likes an income tax for its own sake. We 

simply think that of the ways to tax, none of which 

is popular, it is the fairest. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Mr. Contillo? 

ASSEMBLYMAN CONTILLO: No. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Mr. Sweeney? 

ASSEMBLYMAN SWEENEY: I have no questions. 

ASS~LYMAN PERSKIE: Does anyone have any questions? 
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I see As3emblyman Foran is here, who is a member of 

this Committee. 

Mr. Brown, do you have a question? 

ASSEMBLYMAN BROWN: Yes. I would like to know 

what position does the Administration have on a reduction 

of the ~ales tax or elimination of the sales tax. 

~~. LEONE: We believe that the sales tax again 

is a relatively regressive tax, not as bad as the ~roperty 

tax. I should tell you that my own preference - let me 

make two comments. My own preference would be to take 

every dollar we can raise from a new tax and take it 

out of the property tax. I think that's a lousy, unfair 

tax. However, it would clearly be possible to adopt 

our prog-ram in ways which would enable you to reduce 

the sales tax by a penny or two. That's a judgment. 

It's a popular, visible thing to do. On the other 

hand, it's not as regressive or as unfair a tax as the 

property tax. We could do it. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BROWN: Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMru~ PERSKIE: If there are no other 

questions from the Committee, Mr. Leone, thank you 

very much. We appreciat:e your taking the time. 

The next witness will be Dr. Freund who 

represe~ts the Governor's Economic Policy Council. 

Doctor, it's nice to have you here today. 

If y-Ju hav; a written statement, we would be 

pleased to see to it that the exact content is entered 

into the record. 

While I'm dt it, I would request the staff to 

be sure that Mr. Leone's statement, as all written 

statemen~s. is included in the transcript of the pro­

cGed~_c.lJS. 

W I L L I A M. c. i' R E U N D: Thank you, Mr. 

Chairman and ruembers of the Committee. I believe my 

statement will take no more than ten minutes. 
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I am Dr. William C. Freund, a member of the Economic Policy 

Council of the State of New Jersey, a resident of Millington, New 

Jersey, and a professional economist. I am also Vice President 

and Chief Economist at the New York Stock Exchange, although I 

should point out that I am testifying solely in my capacity as a 

member of the Economic Policy Council. With me today is Mr. Peter 

Bearse, our resident.economist in the Trenton Office of Economic 

Policy. 

The Economic_ Policy Council was created by an act of the New 

Jersey legislature in 1966. Since that time, the Council has 

functioned as a completely non-political, independent, profes­

sional agency, advising the Governor as well as the Treasurer and 

other cabinet officials on economtc problems confronting the 

State. My two colleagues on the Council are Professor William 

Baumol of Princeton and New York Universities, and Professor Emer­

itus Lester Chandler of Princeton. Although they could not join 

me today, they are in full support of a statewide income tax. 

I should like to highlight three major economic reasons for 

my views in favor of enactment of a State income tax. 

First, along with most economists, I believe that an income 

tax, related as it is to ability to pay,is the fairest and most 

efficient tax. 

Second, I have the strong conviction that future financial 

problems facing the State of New Jersey in an environment of sub­

stantial inflation have not yet been fully recognized and need to 

be carefully considered in the formulation of policy. 
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1bird, the State of New Jersey has had a serious unemploy­

ment problem in recent years and, it seems to me, this problem is 

very likely to intensify. Alternative taxproposals could well 

exacerbate the problem of promoting economic growth and stimulat­

ing employment in the State. 

* 

One of the principles of sound taxation is that a tax be re­

lated to ability to pay. Obviously, some types of taxation re­

flect this principle better than others. Income, after deductions 

and exemptions, copstitutes the best measure of ability to pay. 

The property tax, for example, is a less satisfactory index of 

paying ability for several reasons. Low income groups tend to 

spend a higher proportion of their income for necessities such as 

housing than miC!dle and ur;per income families. MJreover, since 

tastes vary, some taxpayers will spend.a higher proportion of in­

come for housing while others will forego that possibility in 

~avor of autos and other consumer outlays. Thus, the property 

tax is really a tariff on one type of asset or expenditure with 

nl~ an indirect link to L1come. In addition, large families, 

which require relatively large housing units, tend to be penalized 

', · the property tax since their tax bills reflect the size of 

:·;1 ·; r perty irrespective of the size of their income. An in-

dX can adjust for the number of dependents in a household. 

It has been argued that property taxes are fair because they 

~re levied on people who can afford, in the first place, to have 

prop....:rt~. -- and not on those who cannot afford to hold property. 
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I will leave aslde the obvious fact that property taxes also im­

pact on renters. But the argument that property taxes are based 

on the financial ability to own property fails to recognize the 

inherent inequities in the effect of property taxes on various 

propertyholders. Further, it ignores the more important fact 

that a properly structured income tax provides for the most equit­

able distribution of the tax burden among those who can afford to 

pay the most and those who can afford to pay the least, with ap­

propriate adjust~ent~ for everyone in-between. 

I will corr.e back to the property tax as it relates to busi­

ness very shortly. At this point, however, I would emphasize <;me 

further anomaly of the property tax on business, namely that it 

"is levied irrespective of the size of a firm's profit rate. It 

is even levied on those businesses which sustain a loss. Clearly, 

a property tax does not relate well to the ability-to-pay concept 

either for individuals or businesses. 

But the major point I want to stress is the importance of 

enacting a tax which promises to keep pace with inflation. It 

does not require a prophet to predict that in the absence of a 

tax which keeps in reasonable step with mounting inflation, the 

State legislature will be confronted with a continuous and per­

haps losing battle to adjust existing taxes and to enact new taxes 

year after year to meet emerging budgetary deficits. 

Our nation has been experiencing double-digit inflation for 

some time. For example, the consumer price index rose at an an­

nual rate of 13.5% in December, 1973, 15.7% in January and 13.6% 

in February of this year. Even though some improvement in the 
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pace of price inflation seems in the offing, inflation seems cer­

tain to continue as a major national problem in the years ahead. 

\-Thatever the intensity of the inflation problem at the na­

iional level, the problem promises to be more serious for our 

state c:md localities. A reasonable assumption is that inflation 

averaging R% a year nationwide will push expenditures for exist­

ing state programs up by 12%. The explanation is simple. 

Governments at the state and local level are engaged in 

providing services. All service industries typically suffer from 

above-average inflation because productivity gains are much harder 

to achieve in the service sectors than in manufacturing and other 

industries. If inflation is 8% nationwide, and if industrial pro-

. ductivity nationwide is rising by, say, 4%, chances are that in­

flation affecting state expenditures will be in the vicinity of 

12%, unless state workers can match the nationwide industrial 4% 

improvement in output per manhour. In theory this may be possible, 

but in fact such improvement is hard to come by in a service in­

dustry, and we c2nnot cour1.t on it. 

vlha t this means is that if inflation for state purchases 

rises by, say, 12% per annum, state revenues must increase by the 

~, • .itT•'? percentage merely to finance the existing quantity and quality 

of state services -- to maintain the status quo. If revenues were 

rise by only 8'%, or even 10%, a budgetary deficit would develop 

;·out an:; new state programs or any increase in the quantity 

ity of state services. 

That's the fundamental inflation problem which, I am sure, 

rhis legislature will be called upon to wrestle with in the future. 
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There is only one tax which responds adequately to inflation, as 

forty of our stRtes have discovered, and that is the income tax. 

As personal incomes increase by 8%, income tax revenues typically 

increase by 12%. In the jargon of economists, the elasticity is 

1.5. The income tax increases both with real growth in personal 

incomes and with simple price inflation. Since the elasticity of 

state expenditures is also about 1.5, the income tax provides the 

legislature with a means of keeping up with budgetary needs, 

automatically, witho~t the struggle to impose higher tax rates on 

a regular basis or to search frequently for new sources of tax 

revenue. The elasticity of other taxes, such as property or sales 

taxes is 1.0 or less which, as I have indicated, will mean an au-

. tomatic shortfall of state revenues in any future inflationary 

setting. 

Finally, I should like to address the unemployment situation 

in our state, and the relevance of tax considerations to the prob­

lem. Without belaboring the statistics, unemployment in New Jersey 

has been extremely sticky and it has been trending ~p. When our 

national economy emerged from the recession of 1969-70, the unem­

ployment picture brightened. The nationwide unemployment rate 

dropped from a peak of 6% late in 1970, to a low of 4.6% in Septem­

ber, 1973 and is now just a shade above the 5% mark. The State of 

New Jersey has not fared that well. Unemployment has held 

stubbornly near the 7% level throughout the recovery period since 

1970 and today exceeds that rate by some margin. 

I think it is a shocking fact that private employment in 

this state rose by only 7,300 jobs during the past year while pub-

lic employment increased 25,000, and unemployment rose 50,000. 
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I believe that these circumstances recommend the desirabil­

ity of initiating various busine'ss inducement programs in this 

state to encourage economic growth and employment opportunities. 

States contiguous to New Jersey have already acted and, in several 

ways, have manag~d to create specific inducements to attract busi­

ness and to restrain the tax burden on domestic firms. 

There are two ways to stimulate employment. One is through 

state and local government activity; the other, to create private 

emplcyment opportunities. As a matter of State policy, our eco­

nomic objective should be to rely on public employment only to the 

extent necessary to provide public services, and to stimulate 

private employment to the maximum extent. 

In dealing with business taxes, we need to distinguish be­

tween business incentives and business windfalls. It is easy to 

be misled by semantics. In trying to avoid windfalls, we must be 

careful not to eliminate the incentives for locating businesses 

and jobs in the state and in the localities most in need of them. 

It is easy to fall into the trap of destroying incentives in the 

process of going after windfalls. One person's conception of a 

windf2ll may be another' conception of a needed incentive. 

The Economic Policy Council is deeply concerned about the 

continuing lag of jobs in the state and we see no reason to expect 

a :::sc line ir~ unemployment. In fact, higher unemployment is prob­

~J~~ as our labor force grows faster than new employment oppor­

'-'-'-· "_ies. It is for this reason that we even have some reserva­

tiou about the Governor's proposals with regard to the business 

stabilization tax. Great care should be taken in embarking on the 
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road toward classified property taxes on real estate. There is a 

popular but erroneous notion that some abstract entity called 

"business" can bear taxes. Obviously, neither abstract entities 

nor "things" can bear taxes; only human beings can -- owners, 

employees, customers, suppliers, and so on. Discriminatory busi-

ness taxes will not only eliminate windfalls but at the same time 

eradicate important incentives needed for the state's future 

economic health and the interests of its.working population. I 

might add, in that ~onnection, that other states with which we 

compete for industrial and commercial establishments and jobs 

have not merely sought to create a favorable business climate. 

They also have not hesitated to require residents and employees 

to pay state income taxes. 

* 

To summarize, then, I urge enactment of a statewide income 

tax in order to achieve three important objectives: (1) a tax 

which is fair and efficient; (2) a tax which promises to respond 

to the state's budgetary needs in an inflationary environment in 

the years ahead; and (3) a tax which will encourage economic 

growth and employment opportunities. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Thank you very much, Doctor . 

. ~re there any questions by the members of the 

Corruni tt.:e? 

SENATOR RUSSO: Yes, if I may. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Senator Russo. 

SENATOR RUSSO: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

Mr. Freund, is it your contention that the 

present tax situation on industry in New Jersey is in 

anyway contributory to the high unemployment rate in 

New Jersey? 

DR. FREUND: Yes. I think that is one factor 

which has discouraged the location of industry in New 

Jersey. 

SENATOR RUSSO: Do you have any basis for that? 

DR. FREUND: Yes. We have made a study at the 

Economic Policy Council on the tax situation confronting 

businesses in contiguous states and we believe we are 

at a disadvantage. 

SENATOR RUSSO: You say you have a study that 

demonstrates New Jersey presently is at an economic 

disadvantage with its surrounding states? 

DR. FREUND: That is correct. 

SENATOR RUSSO: I see. Will you make that 

available to this Committee? 

DR. FREUNie: I will be happy to do so. 

SENATOR Rl ~.S'J: You made a statement, Mr. Freund, 

that the equalized. property tax proposals that are 

pending - and I'll speak now only on behalf of the one 

that :I presented •vi th Assemblymen Doyle and Newman· -

would exacerbate the unemployment problem. I guess 

that'; ' · ":'ed is it, on that same study? 

DR. FREUND: No. That is based upon my individual 

evaluation of the Administration's proposal. 

SENATOR RUSSO: I see. OK. Is it not true 

generally, Mr. Freund, that industries that have 
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located here, or who may in the future, would make 

that determination primarily based upon the markets 

for their products as well as perhaps labor avail­

ability'rather than the property tax rate? 

DR. FREUND: Senator Russo, you are absolutely 

right that the decision to locate industry and com­

merce is based on a consideration of many factors, 

the availability of markets, the transportation system, 

the availability of an appropriate labor force, but 

I would say that certainly tax factors are·an important 

element in the decision. 

SENATOR RUSSO: OK. With regard to one of the 

proposals that you referred to when you made your 

earlier statement, namely our own proposal, our 

breakdown with regard to the effect upon industries -

and I use that category because that's primarily where 

jobs are concerned - would involve a total additional 

tax burden of $135 millio4 of which, of course, if 

they're running in the 52% bracket, as most of our large 

industries are, half of which would be deducted against 

their Federal income taxes, so we're talking about a 

total additional burden of perhaps $65 million. 

With regard to corporate profits of about $3.3 

billion, is it your contention that that additional 

$65 million burden to industry in New Jersey would cause 

our industries to leave the State? 

DR. FREUND: No. I did not say that and I did 

not mean to imply that. As I read the Administration's 

business stabilization tax proposals, I noticed that 

tne estimated yield~ of this tax is $200 million, and 

I would n~t say that that is going to lead to an 

exodus of industry and is going to lead to a depression 

in the State of New Jersey. That is not at all the 

thrust of my comment~ rather it is that when industry 

considers a location for a new plant it needs to take 

19 



into ac~ount, among other things, the tax structure 

and it will weigh in the balance and, on balance, I 

think it will be detrimental to economic growth and 

the growth of job opportunities in the State. 

SENATOR RUSSO: And that's based upon your 

p~rson~l evaluation and, of course, not any specific 

statistics. 

DR. FREUND: That is correct. It is based upon 

that. 

SSNATOR RUSSO: Comparing, if I may, - one or 

two more questions, Mr. Chairman -- comparing, if I 

may, the total net effect of equalized real estate 

burden that the Governor's proposal would place on 

industry under the stabilization formula, which comes 

to $3.60 per $100 total property tax, with the total 

that would result under the proposal we've advanced, 

which is $3.89 per $100, would you suggest that that 

difference of about 8% would cause industry perhaps 

to leave the State? 

DR. FREUND: No. And I don't want to be cast 

in the position o:: ta.king a .·2:::y >trong opposition to 

what has been recommeuded by the Administration on 

this point~ rathec my thrust was to point out that in 

the absence of an income tax and a heavy reliance on 

property taxes an~ the creation of a differential rate 

fo:: business su.bs c.tntially above the rate that is 

imposed upon indiiiduals, the effect on economic 

growth in the Sta·te of New Jersey could be serious. 

SENATOR RUSSO: Well, isn't it true - if I may 

add one more question to my last two -- is it not true 

-::..ha ·',:. industry is going to be concerned about not how 

mu.ch it's paying in comparison to the homeowner but 

merely how much it's paying, period? 

DR. FREUND: I think that's correct. 

SENATOR RUSSO: OK. My last question is, you 
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mentioned the income tax as certainly being the fairest 

of all the various proposals, would it not be correct, 

sir, that the bulk of the tax dollars that would be 

paid under an income tax will fall overwhelmingly on 

the $15,000 to ~25,000 income category? 

DR. FREUND: I haven•t seen that distribution. 

I really can•t answer that. I don•t know the answer 

to that. 

SENATOR RUSSO: Thank you, Mr. Freund. Thank 

you, Mr. Chairman. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Anybody else? Yes, Mr. 

Maninnes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MaciNNES: Dr. Freund, am I correct 

in believing that the property tax is theoretically 

an elastic tax in that assessments are theoretically 

supposed to move upward with increases in property 

values? Is that a fair statement of the theoretical 

concept of the property tax? 

DR. FREUND: Well, theoretically a property 

tax has some elasticity, that is - let me clarify what 

economists mean by elasticity. They mean the rise 

in tax revenues resulting from a rise in income. So 

there is some elasticity to the property tax. That 

elasticity - and it•s in my complete statement but not 

in my summary -- that elasticity for property taxes, 

according to various studies that have been done 

nationwide, is less that 1.0, that is, let•s say, for 

every 10% increase in personal income you get less 

than a 10% increase in revenues from the property tax~ 

from income tax, however, the elasticity is much higher. 

A state income tax - I don•t know precisely what the 

elasticity of the proposed New Jersey tax will be but 

it will probably be in the neighborhood of 1.5%, which 

means for a 10% increase in personal income you could 

expect to get a 15% increase in revenue yield. 

Now, it•s important to bear this in mind, that in 
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an inflationary period, such as we've had, expenditures 

of the state also have an above-average elasticity, 

that is an elasticity in the neighborhood also of 1.5. 

And one major reason for that is, as I've indicated, 

the great difficulty of obtaining productivity improve­

ments in the State's services that you get in the 

industrial sector of the economy. 

Now, if you have expenditure elasticities of 

1.5 and revenue elasticities of 1.0 or less, you can 

be certain that within a very short time, within a 

very few years, this Legislature is going to 

be confronted with an automatic deficit which a 

property tax will find it very difficult to close. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MaciNNES: Is there any state where, 

because of improved assessment practices, that gap 

caused by the elasticity differential between the 

property tax and the income tax has been closed in 

the property tax substantially. So, is there any 

hope or is there an example that can be pointed to of 

a state that because of the way it manages and 

administers the property tax has in fact increased the 

elasticity of the property tax to the point where 'in 

an inflationary period you might be able to get by 

without increasing rates? 

DR. FREUND: Net to my knowledge, sir. 

ASSEMJ3LY.MA,~ MaciNNES: Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Anything further, Senators 

or Assemblymen? Mr. Contillo. 

ASSEMBLYMA.'.[ CONTILLO: Doctor, you spoke of 

un2mplo:ment. At the very heart of the Governor's 

pro<;r ... m :.,, bases $106,000 of assessed valuation per 

child, and in many municipalities where they have been 

attracting industrial ratables the incentive or the 

desire or the reason for accepting either expansion 

of or new industrial ratables would seem to evaporate 
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because if they didn't take in the ratables they in 

turn would be given State Aid equivalent to them for 

the school portion of their budget. If this was to 

happen, if municipalities were to become less attracted 

to industrial ratables, would that not deyelop greater 

unemployment in the State, in fact less construction 

and less jobs and so forth? 

DR. FREUND: Well, I would say that if the result 

of a statewide income tax were to be less aggressiveness on 

the part of communities in attempting to attract industry, 

there might even be a benefit and that is, you would 

get less competition among communities but you would 

have an increased incentive to locate somewhere within 

the State of New Jersey, location that is not based 

merely 0n merchandising, advertia.ing and promotion 

but is based upon an economic incentive, that incentive 

being a more favorable tax structure. 

ASSEMBLYMAN CONTILLO: My second question, and 

maybe it's disturbing particularly from Bergen County's 

standpoint, the stated objective was to take from the 

richer and wealthier communities and to give to those 

who needed it more. In our county, it seems to be just 

the opp.)site. In other words, we have communities where, 

again, there are industrial ratables located where the 

average income of the people will be half of the 

communities where there are no mdustrial ratables, 

where they are receiving aid. 

What I'm getting at, in the allocation formula 

there does not seem to be any factor for the cost of 

keeping municipal ratables. So that the smaller 

municipalities with the lower income people in them, that 

have the industrial ratables, are losing money and other 

communities where there are no industrial ratables are 

gaining large sums because it does cost money to keep 

industrial ratables. 
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What I'm suggesting is that some factor oe 

added into the formula to take into consideration the 

cost to municipalities of operating industrial and 

commercial ratables. 

DR, FREUND: I had not considered that and 

that may be a desirable refinement. 

ASSEMBLYMAN CONTILLO: I wish you would consider 

it. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Anybody else on the 

Committee have any questions? (No response) 

Doctor, thank you very much. We appreciate your 

time and the benefit of your thoughts. 

~R. FREUND: Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: I have a statrnent which 

I would like to enter into the record, which I will 

give to the Staff. It is from a Dave Nalven who has 

produced a two-page, handwritten stauement. I will 

read only the first paragraph: 

"Thank you for the opportunity to allow a private 

citizen to speak. I have lived in Plainfield for almost 

15 years. I am an Engineer, middle-income, and I work 

in New Jersey. I have always supported the concept 

of an income tax and I enthusiastically support Governor 

Byrne's proposal." 

There are two pages of handwritten analysis as 

to the reason thf~refo:::- and I will give this to the 

staff and instruct it to include it in the minutes of 

the meeting. 

#e have a number of people who are here who have 

expressed a desi~e to speak immediately. Obviously, we 

can onJY honor one of those at a time. And I do want 

tc assure you that we will be able to hear everyone ~h~t•s · 

here as soon as possible. 

The next speaker will be a Legislator who is in 

the process of making a proposal and I would like to 

ask Assemblyman Fitzpatrick - William Fitzpatrick, 
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Assemblyman from District No. 10, if he will come 

forward. We have a copy of his statement which, again, 

will be entered in the record. 

W I L L I A M P. F I T Z P A T R I C K: Thank you, 

Mr. Chairman. It•s a pleasure to appear here today 

before this most august, dignified body of Assemblymen 

and Senators. 

What I would like to offer for your consideration 

is kind of a new concept or a new direction in terms 

of tax revenues to meet the Court•s mandate of "thorough 

and efficient". I will be as brief as possible. 

In the past, when funds were required, we have 

resorted to property taxes, sales taxes, lotteries, 

gasoline, cigarette and related taxes to meet the needs 

of government. Today, with rising costs, rising 

unemployment, rumors of possible reverses in the economy, 

I am opposed at this time to any income or additional 

tax burden on the residents of the State. 

Currently schools utilize approximately 70% of 

the tax dollar. 

Under my proposal, basically, I am recommending 

the changing of priorities in state assistance programs 

to municipalities by diverting these funds to school 

purposes so that municipalities assume the control and 

operation of the school facilities, as well as related 

debt services. 

My plan is to have the municipality assume the 

operation of all school buildings, salaries and related 

costs exclusive of teacher salaries~ provide funds for 

payment of school debt service; assume ownership of all 

school properties; be required to finance all future school 

construction; and funds for these costs will be included 

in the municipality•s local municipal budget. 

My plan is to require that a 5% school support levy 

be imposed on all municipal utilities, municipal 

authorities, county authorities and state authorities and 
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on all funds received for services rendered. On county 

a.uthorities this levy will be based on funds received for 

services which are not being taxed under a municipal 

utility or authority operation. 

I propose that the State of New Jersey discontinue 

State involvement in municipal and county revenue funding 

requirements and transfer said funds to a "Reserve for 

School Funding". 

I pr0pose that a special fund be established under 

State control to be known as "Reserve for School Funding" 

into which all funds will be diverted. 

My plan is to reallocate State funds which in prior 

years were transferred to municipalities, such as State 

road aid, motor fuel tax refunds, state sales tax 

aid, bank stock tax, and State road aid construction and 

formula funds. This would be diverted to a special reserve 

fund for school purposes administered by the State. 

My plan is also to reallocate State-administered 

funds which in prior years were transferred to municipalities, 

funds such as, personal property replacement tax and the 

railroad replacement tax, into a special reserve fund 

for school purposes administered by the State. In view of 

the fact that the personal property replacement tax rate 

has not increased or been adjusted since 1968, at which 

time this tax went into effect, I propose that this 

tax be increased fiv· fold. Had this tax been part of 

the municipal levy, as it had been prior to 1968, sub­

stantial increases ~Juld have been reflected in municipal 

revenue fo~ this tax. 

My plan is also tc reallocate State funds which in 

;:;:: -'- '-'··· year:; 'rJerc -cransferred to counties, such as, inher­

_Lt.ance t:.<.~x and insurance taxes of various types, to a 

special fund for school purposes administered by the State. 

My plan is to reallocate State controlled funds, 

which in prior years \vere received directly by the municipality, 
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funds such as, the public utility gross receipts taxes 

and public utility franchise taxes. The·se would also go 

into a special fund for school purposes administered by 

the State. 

In addition, I propose to recommend an increase of 

25 percent, in the basic revenue rate of these funds. 

I propose that in the event the total municipal tax 

rate shall be reduced greater than 30 percent, based on 

the 1974 tax rate, then said excess amount shall be 

transferred to a fund known as 11Reserve for School Funding ... 

In determining this excess amount, it shall be computed 

by the county and paid by the municipality on a periodic 

basis. 

I propose a tax stabilization levy on all industrial, 

apartment, and commercial establishments. 

I propose that these enterprises be limited to a 

10 percent tax reduction. In the event the tax reduction 

should be greater, then I propose that the difference 

between the old tax levy, reduced by 10 percent,and the 

new tax levy be transferred to a school funding program. 

I estimate that these recommendations would raise 

a total revenue of over $1.5 billion., 

I have made a study of the effect of this plan on 

various municipalities in my district, as well as two 

districts in Middlesex County. The savings or the percent 

of decrease in property taxes are substantial, averaging 

about 30 percent or higher. 

I strongly urge that this school financing program 

be studied and accepted. There is no built-in income tax, 

no adverse economic impact on the citizens of the State and 

I feel that through the growth in our economy this financing 

program will meet the needs of education for many years 

to come. 
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Another fact to be considered is that there will be 

no additional administrative expenses required, it will 

be extremely easy to administer, extremely flexible and 

we will not be locking anyone into any kind of fixed State 

formula necessarily. 

Thank you very much. 

(Exhibits attached to Assemblyman Fitzpatrick's 
statement can be found beginning on page 66 l: .• ) 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Thank you. 

Do we have any questions? 

SENATOR MERLINO: Assemblyman, this almost sounds 

like a proposal to do away with State government. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FITZPATRICK: I hope not, Senator. 

SENATOR MERLINO: If you shift the revenues and 

sources that you have just outlined, 'l'lhat. happens to the 

functions of State government that are now dependent on 

these sources of income? 

ASSEMBLYMAN FITZPATRICK: My thinking is that the 

way it works now - I could be mistaken - that these funds 

raised by the State - the municipalities are reimbursed 

accordingly. What I am suggesting is not to send these 

funds to the municipalities. The State would put that 

money instead into a special fund for school funding. 

SENATOR MERLINO: How much of a fu:1d would be created? 

This State educational fund you are talking about, how big 

a fund would that be? 

ASSEMBLYMAN FII'ZPATRICK: This is based now on the 

projected figures f0r 1975, $1.5 billion, to be raised. 

SENATOR MERLINO: $500 million? 

ASSEMBLYMAN FifZPATRICK: $1.5 billion. 

P.t:NA'l:'OR ~C:RLINO: That would relieve the municipality 

from fuDdins education? 

ASSEJI.lBLYMAN FITZPATRICK: Each municipality would 

be responsible for the maintenance of its own particular 

schools in terms of maintenance costs and debt service. 
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It is a concept which I presented last week to the 

Office of Fiscal Affairs and they are, hopefully, working 

upon it and r~fining it to come up with more accurate 

figures and the effects on municipalities throughout the 

State. 

SENATOR MERLINO: When can this Committee and when 

can the Legislature expect this. We have one copy here 

of your proposal, which I understand now really isn't in 

its final form. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FITZPATRICK: No, it is not. I will get 

it to you as soon as possible. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: We would appreciate getting 

whatever data you can as soon as you can. 

Any further questions? (No response.) 

Thank you very much, Assemblyman; we appreciate it. 

ASSE.HBLYMAN FITZPATRICK: Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Dr. Mark Hurwitz, New Jersey School 

Boards Association. 

Since he is not here at the moment, we will hear from 

Senator Ru~so. 

J 0 H N F. R U S S 0: Good afternoon, Mr. Chairman 

and members of the Committee. 

The proposal that we have presented, myself and 

Assamblymen Daniel F. Newman and John Paul Doyle, also of 

District 9, has been submitted to the Legislature. Each 

one of you has received a copy. It has been covered in 

the newspapers, so I won't take an awful lot of time 

outlining it, except briefly, here for the record. 

My approach here today will not be a criticism of 

the Governor's plan, rather perhaps to some extent a 

rebutting of some of the criticisms that were made hot 

only of our proposal but that of Senator Bed~ll and 

Assemblyman Van Wagner as well by Mr. Leone here today. 

Briefly the proposal that we have presented is hardly 
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an afterthought. It had its genesis back in 1971 when 

I first campaigned for public office for the State Senate. 

l couldn•t follow through on it because I lost. It was 

updated in 1973 primarily as a result of the benefits 

Ae received from the two-year study of the New Jersey State 

Tax Policy Study Commission. As a result of that study, 

'vJe incorporated a number of the recommendations of the 

Commission in our proposal that was presented in 1973 and 

we campaigned on that proposal. So what we present here 

today is not a reaction to the Governor•s income tax plan 

but something we have advocated now for three years. 

In January of this year, a copy of that August 1973 

presentation vJas sent to every member of the Legislature, 

and brought up to date more recently by the presentation 

last week. 

Basically what our concern has been -we recognize, 

as does the Governor, the inequities that exist in the 

present property tax. We differ with him only with regard 

to the solution. There is no question the property tax, 

as presently applied, is quite regressive and we seek to 

meet that regressivity in our proposal. 

I think it is important to keep in perspective what 

is wrong with the property tax. The property tax is not 

inequitable and unfair to the citizen in the community that 

is paying 29 cents per hundred. He is very happy. He is 

delighted. He is nc ~ crying out for relief for tax reform. 

The citizen crying out for tax reform is the citizen 

in the community paying $4, $5, $6 or $7 per hundred. 

That is where the inequity lies, as well as the disparity 

in t.he c~xper:.di ture of funds under the present system. 

We sou9ht to meet this inequity, not by an income 

tax which has certain advantages - there is no question 

about it - but which also leaves some communities after 

the program is put into effect paying a real estate school 

property tax rate as much as five, six, seven or ten times 
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more than other communities. That is not our concept 

of fairness. Rather what we have proposed, is an equalized 

rate throughout the State. -Recogruzing that public education 

is a State function and not a municipal function, it was 

our position that each resident of the State ought to pay 

the same proportionate share and each student ought to 

have the same equal opportunity with regard to expenditures 

so that he might have the same opportunity for education 

as a student in another, perhaps more wealthy, community. 

We have attacked the problem by an equalized 

school property tax rate of $1.50 per hundred. As you 

recall from the proposal, it actually has leeway in there 

where it can be reduced even further if the Legislature 

so desires. We would extend, however, the property tax 

on commercial and industrial properties over $50,000 in 

value to $2.50 per hundred. This alone would raise enough 

to meet our educational requirements that are projected 

for the 1975-76 year. 

We went further, however, and rather than give the 

Legislature and the people of this State an alternative to 

accept or reject as written, we allowed leeway. We proposed 

a number of tax increases that would raise an ad-

ditional $418 million more than we need. The reason for 

that is to allow our fellow legislators to reduce those 

taxes that they perhaps might feel were too high on some 

groups. Incidentally, some of these proposed tax increases 

are not figures arbitrarily selected out of the air because 

we feel it is political to adopt a "soak business" or "soak 

industry" philosophy. We are very mindful of the competitive 

position of New Jersey and we tried to consider it. 

Many of these proposals we have offered come from the 

recommendations based upon the study of some two years of 

the New Jersey State Tax Policy Committee. When we total 

up all of these various fund-raising efforts, the total 

we would raise, including present State aid of $634 million, 
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is a total of $2,815,000,000, which' is $215,000,000 more 

than we need raised. We suggest that part of that be 

used for a senior citizen homestead exemption of $10,000 

on his school property tax. That would take some of the 

J'~egressivity out of the property tax for that low-income 

9roup. 

When you analyze the additional or increased taxes 

that are being put on the industrial community - we have 

heard talk about jobs today - we consider that reference 

to be made primarily to the industries of the State of 

New Jersey. We have asked for a breakdown of our major 

taxes and how they affect industry. The conclusion we 

have come up with is that they would increase industrial 

taxes by approximately $135 million. If that be so, I 

remind the Committee, just as the Governor did with regard 

to the income tax, that that amount is a deductible item 

against federal income taxes paid by these industries. If 

we assume the 52 percent bracket. as being what most of our 

major indu~tries are in, not all, of course, that would 

bring the total additional cost to industry in the State 

down to approximately $65 million. We don't think that is 

going to cause a traffic jam of trailers loaded with the 

components of plants in New Jersey, going in the Holland 

Tunnel to New York, especially when one considers that most 

of the tax rates we have studied and the State Tax Policy 

Conmittee studied showed New Jersey to still be at quite 

a competitive position with regard to surrounding states. 

Using only one, and I realize there are more, the corporate 

income tax that we propose to raise to 7 1/2 percent, the 

figur,:= that was recommended by the State Tax Policy Study 

Commi ·::~.ee, that still would result in a corporate income 

tax lower than that of surrounding states. 

What do we accomplish by this? We have taken the 

residential property owner who is in a high tax district 

and we reduced his tax to $1.50 per hundred and stabilized 

it at that figure. That, incident.ally, would cover some 
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84 percent of the property owners in New Jersey. The other 

16 percent, or a little less than that because some wouldn't 

change, whose taxes would go up, aren't going to be hit 

with an economic hardship with very few exceptions because 

they are in very low tax districts. 

When we are all through, if this program is adopted, 

every citizen in the State of New Jersey will be paying the 

same tax rate to support public education, a State function 

in New Jersey. 

With regard to the comments of Mr. Leone that the 

proposal nentioned would cause us to have to seek tax 

increases in several years* Mr. Leone stated that we used 

only the three best years as the basis for our contention. 

It would s~em perhaps to some that we picked three scattered 

years and picked the highest three and used them. We 

didn't do that, of course. We picked the three last years, 

the most recent three years. Our proposal as to the 

sales tax extension to lawyers, architects, etc., has a 

projection of a 10 percent climb through each year and was based 

on a period-of ten years. We didn't pick ten at random, 

but the bulk of the last ten. We are dealing with present 

performanc~. If there is a complete turn-around in our 

economic picture in the future, neither we nor the Governor 

can anticipate that because certainly,if that happens, the 

income tax rate is going to have to rise too. 

So absent something unusual and based upon the performance 

of the last several years, we feel that the 12 percent rise 

in property ratables offsets the 8 percent educational cost 

rise, and we don't anticipate that rise to continue at 

8 percent ln the future, as we now enter some 15 years of 

declining enrollment. 

The Treasurer stated that under our proposal a typical 

$30,000 would have to be valued at $47,500 in five years 

in order to keep up with the effort we are proposing to make. 
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That is simply not so. The 12 percent rise we refer to 

is not a 12 percent rise entirely or even in substantial 

pnrt of the values of present property. It includes in 

substantial part new construction, whether it be new 

homes, new industries, new plants or what have you. It 

would not require a 12 percent increase in ratables or 

assessment values of the average $30,000 horne in order 

to keep up the pace that we have projected. 

With regard to the effects upon business, as was 

mentioned earlier, there really is a very slight difference 

in the property tax effect of our proposal and that of 

the Governor. Under the administration proposal, the 

effective property tax over-all rate on industries in 

New Jersey statewide would be $3.60. It is $3.90 under 

our proposal. It is not a big difference, less than 

8 percent, but don't forget it allows us to provide along 

with our other adjustments some $325 million in property 

tax relief to the homeowner in New Jersey, and it is the 

homeowner in New Jersey that renders the present system 

so inequitable. In New Jersey, as I understand the figures, 

homeowners pay 65 percent of our property taxes as compared 

to 35 percent paid by industry and business, compared to 

a national average of 50-50. We seek to bring it more 

in line with where it should be and we don't think business 

is going to conduct a mass exodus-from the State of New 

Jersey as a result of it. 

I think you rec.ill from the proposal we not only met 

the educat1onal prob:.ern with our figures, but, in fact, also 

met the anticipated budget short-fall, which no one seems 

rer~ain is going to axist. 

think the critical thing to remember when we talk 

10:. _ tl•e effects upon industry so far we have heard 

a statement by the Treasurer that our proposal would threaten 

New Jersey's cornpet.itive position in bidding for commercial 

and employment development and Dr. Freund's statement also--
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but so far we have heard no facts, figures or statistics. 

We just simply don't believe that a net increase, net 

after federal income tax deduction, of some $65 million 

to our industries in New Jersey as against corporate profits 

of $3.3 billion is going to cause a mass exodus. We contend 

rather that in New Jersey the determination to locate or 

not locate, stay or not stay, is based upon factors other 

than the difference in the property tax rate between what 

we have proposed and the Governor's. 

Finally in conclusion, we do not criticize the 

Governor's proposal, rather we project our own. We are going 

to attempt to continue with that proposal. We think 

perhaps the Treasurer's statement was well applicable to 

this Committee and we hope to all members of the Legislature. 

This is an alternative that we believe in. It is an 

alternative that was presented three years ago and continued 

to the present day. We hope, in fact, every legislator 

will present alternatives if there are some, because in 

this res~ct, we agree with Governor Byrne and we admire 

his initiative. This problem must be resolved by December 

31st of this year by whatever the 'best plan may be and 

we ought not shrink from that obligation. Certainly in 

the case of myself, Assemblymen Dan Newman and John Doyle, 

we don't shrink from it. We do not take the position 

that the Governor's plan is bad and ours is better. We 

simply say: Here is ours; here are the facts and figures; 

we think they are well thought out; we worked a long time 

on them; we think they are accurate. They are here for 

the Legislature and the people of New Jersey to consider. 

Thank you, gentlemen. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Thank you, Senator. 

I have one question. You indicated in your plan that 

there were a number of communities wherein there would be 

a tax increase and also that in most of those communities 
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there would be low tax rates to begin with. Referring 

to my own district, being that we are all selfish animals, 

I represent the City of Atlantic City which would have 

c. tax increase under your proposal and which has a present 

t.ax rate of $6.84, which is certainly by any standard -­

v'ell, at least, by Atlantic City's standard it has pre­

cluded effective investment among other things for some 

time. Your proposal would increase the taxes for som~ 

75,000 residents of the Second District. I wonder whether 

or not you would speak to that. 

SENATOR RUSSO: There actually are, in fact, two 

other districts in the State, Assemblyman Perskie, where 

more than a majority of the people in the districts would 

have tax increases. But they are the only two out of forty. 

Out of seven million some people in New Jersey, more than 

six million people live in communities that will have tax 

reductions. Soma one million will have tax increases. 

For example, in your own district - I think it is in your 

district - in Atlantic County, Buena Vista has a $2.84 

rate. It will go down to $1.50. I don't think any of 

us can deny that unJer any proposal that has been presented 

thus far -the Governor's, Senator Bedell's or mine -we 

cun point to difficult situations that maybe we can resolve 

and maybe we can't. We don't make any 2retense to have 

accomplished a perfect solution for every district in 

the State. We de p>int out though that 84 percent of the 

homeowners in this State - we wish we could say 100 per­

cent - but 84 perce.1t of the homeowners in this State 

are going to have a tax reduction under our proposal. 

h,."1d ~Ae r.hink that tax reduction has been desperately 

nee6ed for ~1 long time. 

We wish we could go down to perhaps $1.30 - and there 

is provision in our proposal to do that - and that would 

cover Atlantic City as well. We would join with you in 

an effort to include Atlantic City. We don't know if we 
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can in good conscience take the $1.30 figure because of 

the effect qn business and industry. We don't want to 

go beyond the point where business would not be competitive. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Senator, you do indicate 

then that your proposal as well as some of the others 

does cause some degree of economic hardship on certain 

people, depending, of course, on where they are, and 

certain communities would suffer tax increases. You point 

out the other programs likewise include some measure 

of hardship on certain individuals. What I want to ask 

you is whether or not -- or how you react to the distinction 

that some have drawn1 in that while your program to the 

extent that it does impose a hardship on certain people 

does so in the form of the regressiveness of the property 

tax, which you, yourself, have acknowledged, and that by 

and large under some of the other programs a hardship 

that may be imposed is imposed on the basis of the income 

tax, which is a somewhat more progressive tax than that 

which you have proposed. 

SENATOR RUSSO: I don't concede that the proposal 

that we have advanced here is a totally regressive proposal, 

not at all. I. say the present property tax system as 

administe~ed today is. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Excuse me. I didn't mean 

that. 

SENAT~R RUSSO: Perhaps I misunderstood you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: You conceded in your testimony 

that the property tax was quite regressive and that you 

have attempted in this proposal to meet that regressive­

ness. 

SENA~OR RUSSO: Yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: And you have likewise conceded, 

as I think we all must, that all of the programs that 

have been proposed in major outline impose some degree 

of economic hardship on somebody somewhere along the line. 
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Ny point to you is that inasmuch as your program is based 

on a property tax and that the property tax has by all 

accounts ueen labelled the most regressive of a variety 

of taxes, isn't it a fact that the hardship that is 

imposed under your proposal is a more regressive hard­

ship than that imposed under the other proposals? 

SENATOR RUSSO: No, I don't think so, if I under­

stand the question correctly, because once we have reduced 

t.he property taxes for the people in mostly our low-income 

communities that are paying the high property tax rates 

now-- when we reduce their property tax rate and give 

the setilior· citizens a $10,000 exemption over and above 

the $1.60 exemption they now have or credit - it gives 

them an effective $20,000 exemption at $1.50 rate -we 

have taker. an awful lot of regressivity out of it. Also, 

remember, our program is not based entirely upon the 

property tax, but also the higher income taxes I have 

mentioned, as well as the industrial and commercial taxes 

that have Deen outlined. 

So it is our contention, Assemblyman Perskie, that 

the regressivity is considerably removed under the 

proposal as we have presented it. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Doesn't that analysis, however, 

apply only to those who benefit under your program? I 

am talking about the ones who are hurt under your program. 

SENATOR RUSSO: Let's stop for a moment. Sixteen 

percent of the peoplt:~ of this State will pay higher taxes 

under our program. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: I urn talking about that 16 

pc r::ent. 

SEN1-d'C1R RUSSO: That is what I am going to talk about 

"· Jr a moment now. Moft. of that 16 percent, since most of 

those communities are the higher-income communities or 

wealthier corr.muni t.ies, are not going to end up with an 

economic hardship. First of all, it is only going to 
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be an equalization of what they should have been paying 

all along. Public school education is a statewide function. 

There will be, however, isolated instances in tho~com­

munities where a person is going to be living in a 

wealthy community, yet he, himself, is not wealthy. Yes, 

there is no question about it, but out of the 16 percent, 

you might be down to 1 or 2 percent. And if we are right 

and if we are successful in solving the problem for 98 

percent, I could live with that 1 or 2 percent. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: I can understand that. But I am 

referring now to the number of communities that don't 

apply to that analogy that are not, in fact, wealthy com­

munities that would still suffer a tax increase. 

SENATCJR RUSSO: I don't know that there are too many 

of those, Assemblyman Perskie. You must remember the only 

communities that will have an increase will be those 

paying less than $1.50. You point to Atlantic City. I 

think that is a tough example. You happen to live in 

probably, at least to my knowledge; the toughest illustration 

under any 0f these programs that one can think of. Even 

under the Governor's program that tax will go down, but 

those people don't pay an income tax now. 

ASSEMBIJYMAN PERSKIE: We do all right under that pro­

gram because with their incomes in that city, they are 

still going to make out. 

SENATOR RUSSO: I don't know. I can't, of course, 

answer for them. I don't know how your people feel. We 

just think; looking at it in the broad view, statewide, 

.the propos:tl is a sound one for most of the people in 

the State. 

ASSE.MBI,YMAN PERSKIE: Thank you very much. 

Any questions by Committee members? 

ASSEMBLYMAN CHINNICI: Mr. Chairman, through you­

Senator Russo, you stated just a few minutes ago, just 

about two or three districts out of the forty are truly 
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hurt by ycur plan. Since there are only two or three 

~istricts that are being severely penalized under your 

plan, did you make any provision for a save-harmless 

clause at all to sort of protect those who have no 

place to go? 

SENATOR RUSSO: I might make this point first of all. 

I don't agre~ that if our plan is adopted instead of the 

Governor's plan that those two or three districts are 

severely penalized. They will pay a h~gher school property 

tax rate, but they won't be paying an income tax. I 

think that is an important distinction to keep in mind. 

As to "save harmless," no we have not. We do have 

a proposal coming as to the distribution that will, 

you might say, take some period of time to equalize the 

burden. But I personally have no sympathy with save­

harmless provisions. They are the provisions that have 

gotten us in trouble with the Supreme Court in Robinson 

versus Cahill. If a community is paying less than it 

should be, I don't see why we ought to have a save-harmless 

provision and preserve its tax advantage. 

ASSE.MBLYMAN CHINNICI: Senator Russo, if I may, I 

represent the First District which includes Cape May and 

Cumberland Counties and I disagree with you when you say 

Atlantic County is hit hardest under either plan. I 

think Cape May really is. Eleven out of the sixteen 

districts in Cape Mry have a substantial increase in their 

property ta.x ir:. addition to paying an income tax. In 

view of that, you h;: 7e the largest amount - if you will 

look at the ~irst Djstrict in your own figures you will 

·· "!e t:.h-·lt 37,390 people have an increase in taxes in the 

ll :; t 'i > t·--l.ct. The entire 3 7, 3 90 is in Cape May County. 

rL . .tt .Jo you ?ropose that these people in Cape May County 

do? 

SENATOR RUSSO: First of all, don't forget in that 

same district 152,664 of your constituents are going to 
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have reduced school tax rates under our proposal. 

ASSEMBLYMAN CHINNICI: Yes, I see that. 

SENATOR RUSSO: As to the 37,000 who go down-- see, 

you happen to be in a position such as some of the people 

in Bergen and in my own County of Ocean are. For example, 

unfortunately, and I don't mean to be disrespectful to 

a resident of Avalon, but he is paying 29 cents per hundred 

school tax rate now. When we compare that with five, six, 

seven and eight dollars in other communities, I can't be 

too terribly concerned if we take a State function such 

as public school education and require him to pay $1.50, 

the same as every other resident in the State would be 

required to pay. It isn't going to make him happy, but 

I don't think an income tax is either. 

ASSE~~LYMAN CHINNICI: But, Senator Russo, isn't it 

possible that the officials in this particular district 

have done a pretty good job. 

SENATOR RUSSO: No. 

ASSEMBLYMAN CHINNICI: There has to be a reason 

somewhere. 

SENATOR RUSSO: I think if you will look at the 

ratables behind each student - I don't have those figures 

in front of me - but I know one particular woman at one 

of our Subcommittee hearings in her community was paying 

like 30 ceats per hundred and she said, "why do you want 

to penalize us - we have had good government, etc." I 

pointed out to her that in that community the average 

ratable per pupil, considering the $57,000 State average, 

was $550,000 per student. That is why she was paying 30 

cents, not because of good government. 

We can't really seriously argue that the rate is 29 

cents in Avalon in your district and $2.30 in West Cape May 

because the people in Avalon are so much better adminis­

trators than the people in West Cape May. It isn't so. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN CHINNICI: There is a school function, 

no question about it. The children are probably in a 

Ioore concentrated area in the West Cape May area. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Mr. Russo, for factual informatio~ 

~he equalized valuation per pupil in Avalon appears to 

be in the neighborhood of $499,000. 

SENATOR RUSSO: That is why they are paying 29 cents 

per hundred. 

ASSEMdLYMAN CHINNICI: One more question, Mr. Russo. 

Take a district in Union County that has a school tax rate 

of $594. 

SENATOR RUSSO: Is that Winfield? 

ASSEMBLYMAN CHINNICI: Yes. I see from the Governor's 

proposal ~hat the tax rate is $15.99 or $16 per $100 

assessment. Is this an equalized rate, this $15.99, do 

you know? 

SENAT0R RUSSO: They are both supposed to be an 

equalized rate. I won't criticize the Governor's figures, 

except to tell you that ours are correct. 

ASSEMBLYMAN CHINNICI: What makes it so obvious 

is the fact that fr•1m $15.99, you drop to $3.60, you 

drop to $~.14; what is the rationale for this tremendously 

high $15.99 tax rate in Winfield? 

SENATOR RUSSO: Low ratables behinJ each student. 

If you looi< at the ratable table in the Governor's plan, 

_-: t shows that and t- le very simple reason is less property 

value behind ed....:h s .. udent in that township and that is 

why they pay ::-'J.ch a high rate and that is why Avalon pays 

such a low rate. I think if you look at West Cape May - and 

I do:1' t even have it:. in front of me - you will find they 

h~.:..: _ l·el<.t..:...vely low ratable per pupil. That is why 

th·:y pc..._ 2 ;2. 30 rate, whereas Avalon only pays 29 cents. 

ASSEMOLY~AN CHINNICI: One last question to you: 

Mr. Russo, I think if you could have a save-harmless 

clause in your plan, you would have a pretty good plan. 
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SENATOR RUSSO: I woald like to have it, except I 

doubt its constitutionality. That is the only thing that 

concerns me and I don't believe any of us want to pass 

something that is going to bring us back next year in 

the hot summer again trying to find a new plan. 

ASSElffiLYMAN PERSKIE: It was hotter than this two 

years ago. 

ASSE1'JBLYMAN BROWN: Mr. Russo, what will your program 

do to assist the municipalities and the counties that 

are overburdened? 

SENATOR RUSSO: When you say "overburdened," could 

you help me a little on that? What do you mean by 

"overburdened"? 

ASSE~ELYMAN BROWN: Well, that are over-taxed, that 

have more responsibilities than some of the other counties. 

SENATOR RUSSO: You see, Assemblyman Brown, our 

proposal deals strictly with education, of course. I 

should make that very clear. What we are trying to do 

here is find a concept that will meet the Robinson versus 

Cahill decision constitutionally and be fair. 

In most of those communities you refer to, the 

residential school property tax rate is much higher than 

$1.50 per hundred. So it would reduce the rate to $1.50 

per hundred in those communities, the only exception being 

Atlantic City. Other than that, we reduce the rate for 

those people in those over-burdened communities. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BROWN: In other words, certain areas 

are still paying a tremendous amount of property taxes and 

you mentioned everyone would be paying the same amount of 

taxes throughout the State on the property level. 

SENATOR RUSSO: School property taxes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BROWN: How would this deal with one's 

ability to pay? Are you saying, regardless of his ability, 

he still should pay the same amount? 
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SENATOR RUSSO: Yes, I am saying that. His residential 

property tax would be $1.50, no matter where he lived. 

of course, if his home was worth, say, $50,000 as compared 

to $25,000, he would pay twice as much tax, but the rate 

would be the same throughout the State on every home­

owner, anj on every corporate or commercial establishment. 

The rate ,.,auld be the same. We think this is another 

80ncept that the Supreme Court was talking about in 

Robinson versus Cahill that we were trying to meet. 

It wouldn't remain the same under the Governor's 

plan. Under the Governor's plan, the low-tax communities 

would come up, but still be much below many of the high­

tax communities. 

ASSE1>1BLYMAN BROWN: In other words, in spite of 

the amount that they are paying now and regardless of the 

fact that they are sharing some of the statewide problems, 

that they are already overpaying, you are saying that 

that is not totally the responsibility that we should 

be dealing with also. 

SENATOR RUSSO: No, I am not saying that at all, 

Assemblyman Brown. It may be that there are problems 

that should be taken up by this Legislature at this 

time e>ver and above \vhat we have sought to meet. What 

we are trying to de .l with is the educational problem 

in this State and we~ have thrown in the budget short-fall 

]~ cause it may be a :act of life. We haven't tried to 

solve all of the St~<te's problems. We haven't tried to 

go into a State takc,-over of welfare or court costs. 

Cer a i.n1y if ,~his L• gislature wanted to do that now or 

, ;~ /t -~·e<L' or 11hene ver, there is no reason why it shouldn't. 

; mer~.ll .< ,., "tJC:. haven't tried to do anything but meet 

~he problem th~t brings us here this summer, namely, a 

December 31st deadline to meet the question of financing 

public education. That is what we are directing our 

efforts toward. 
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ASSE~ffiLYMAN BROWN: Would you be in favor of a State 

take-over of these problems? 

SENATOR RUSSO: I certainly would be in favor of it 

if we couJ.d figure out a good way to pay for it. other 

than an income tax. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BROWN: But in the meantime, let the 

overburdened counties worry about that. That is what you 

are saying. 

SENA'l'OR RUSSO: No, I don • t take that calloused 

approach. You know I get a lot of criticism in some of 

my own communities, wanting to know why we should pay 

for the school children in Newark. And my answer is pretty 

simple. To me, the school child in Newark deserves the 

same educational opportunity in our public school system 

as the school children in my community or my own family. 

I don't think it should matter whether he is born in 

Newark or in Toms River or whether he is Black, White, 

Italian or Jew. He ought to have the same educational 

opportunity. That is what we propose under this system. 

The only question is what form do we use to pay for it 

and that is where there are different alternatives. But 

I don't take the position, let them worry about it. No, sir. 

When it comes to medical care and when it comes to 

education, no child should have to do with less than any 

other child. That is my firm philosophy. 

ASSE~.BLYMAN BROWN: Thank you very much. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MAC INNES: Senator Russo, - through you, 

Mr. Chairman -one of the problems that doesn't receive 

the attention it should with the property tax is the 

problem of assessment. Two people owning the same type house 

with exactly the same market value but because of the 

assessments may pay taxes that may be different by 40 

per cent, not just in a different town, but in the same 

town'. Wi til a program that puts so much emphasis for a 

collection of revenues from a property tax, could you 
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j•.1st outline very briefly your recommendations for insuring 

that V·Je will get closer to uniform assessment practices 

in the State of New Jersey? 

SENATOR RUSSO: First of all, much of the problem 

J.s met by the present equalization procedure. I don't 

know if it all is or not, very honestly; I just don't know. 

But, as you know, where there is one level of assessment 

in one town and one in another - and I say this not L r. 

your benefit because you know as much about it or more 

than I do, but for those listening - we have equalization 

t:ables. That meets much of the problem. I would think -

c:md I suggested in the proposal that Assemblymen 

Newman, Doyle and I presented - that we ought to consider 

legislation regarding statewide assessment procedures to 

meet that problem even further. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MAC INNES: Would this do away with the 

local assessors~or would this be statewide assessors on 

top of local assessors? 

SENATOR RUSSO: I really don't know yet whether, we should, 

in effect, since we are dealing only with school taxes 

here, have the State worry about that part and the mun­

icipalities about the wunicipal-purposes tax or whether 

it should .: ... 11 be dcne t:Jgether. I don't profess to have 

:.:.La_ answer. It maL .:.ers not to me. Whc1 I say it matters 

not to me, what I mean is - I am concerned about it - but 

which al terna ti ve i ' adopted is not an integral part of 

our program. I ,voul• 1 deL::r to the wisdom of those who 

know more than I do bout that aspect of it. 

SENATOR MARTINDELL: Senator Russo, - through you, 

."· Cha i~~man - I have t'b.ree questions. The first- one was 

"·;·· ':n you referred to this morning about the similarities 

.n yc11r i:Jl an to the Tax Policy Commission Plan. 

ASSEMBLY~~N PERSKIE: Senator, would you be kind 

enough to keep your voice up, please. 

SENATOR MARTINDELL: -- the similarities in the 

46 



Tax Policy Committee's report and your suggestions. 

If that is so, why did you knock out the feature in that 

report which gave it its elasticity, which was the income 

tax? 

SENATOR RUSSO: When I said similarities, I did not 

mean to suggest - and I hope I didn't convey that impression -

that our over-all proposal is similar to the State Tax 

Policy Conunission's over-all proposal. I said that certain 

of the taxes, for example, the corporate income tax, the 

financial institutions tax - a t.hird one escapes me for 

the moment - were adopted right out of that report. They 

made an analysis of these three tax increases. They analyzed 

whether it would place New Jersey at a competitive dis­

advantage wi·ch ot er states and they concluded it would 

not. This convinced and influenced me because I certainly 

have no independent knowledge over and above what I 

learned from those studies and other studies. So these 

certain aspects came from their proposal, certainly not 

their entire proposal which was a one dollar equalized 

statewide property tax plus an income tax. We came to a 

point wher~ we parted ways. We adopted what we thought 

were the good parts of their program and rejected the 

parts that we didn't feel were sound, rightfully or 

wrongfully. 

SENATOR MARTINDELL: But you didn't say why. Why 

not the income tax? 

SENATOR RUSSO: Why not the income tax? There are 

several reasons why not the income tax. First of all, 

using appr0ximate figures, taking the Federal 

income tax as an example - and our progressivity is not 

really any more than theirs, if it is as much - some 

$432 billions of that comes from the people in the $15,000 

to $25,000 group, some~4 billion in the over $25,000 

group. I am not opposed to the concept of an income tax 

as such. I would say if we took - and I mean separate and 
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apart, not as part of this entire problem - the income 

tax and the sales tax, just those two things -- in 1967, 

I think it was, I personally favored the income tax as 

a replacement in its entirety of the sales tax and I may 

still do so today. I just don't think that an income 

tax at this point to solve this problem is required or 

necessary. 

You then go to the second problem, to me a very 

difficult and obvious problem. I don't think our people 

or our Legislature want an income tax and I think we are 

beating a dead horse. 

SENATOR MARTINDELL: Do you mean you think the legis­

lators are afraid of it? 

SENATOR RUSSO: No. I think some are, yes. I think 

it would be unfair to say there aren't some legislators 

who are opposed to an income tax because they are worried 

about getting re-elected. I hope they are very few in 

number. 1 think there are others who feel as I have felt 

for three years that to meet this particular problem, we 

don't need an income tax. We can do it in another manner with­

out it. We think this proposal is one, or some variation 

of this proposal. I don't claim that it ought to be 

-exact.ly what we have presented. We just simply don • t feel 

ln good conscience that an income tax is necessary to meet 

the problam we are faced with in 1974 with regard to 

educa -t:ion. 

SENATOR MARTINDELL: Thank you. I have a couple 

more questions. As a member of the Education Committee, 

i_n gains around to hearings and meetings around the State, 

t·~y~ -concern that people have who testify are not only 

. .1bout ah ... · '-ease or fear of an increased tax burden; they 

.:..re also V(:ry afraid of the possibility of even half State 

funding of education. And your plan calls for a full 

funding o~ educ~tion, and the concern would even be increased 
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that there would be more State control and that, in this 

home rule state, we wouldn't have the local input. 

SENATOR RUSSO: That is going to be up to the 

Legislature, Senator Martindell. Certainly I don't share 

the concept that we ought to take the control of education 

out of the hands of the boards. There are some who 

argue that a proposal of full State funding would actually 

benefit lo~al control because it would take the burden 

of budgets and tax-raising out of the hands of the local 

people and let them concentrate on education within the 

framework of the State. Today, of course, you have most 

of that control right now. You can't build a new school 

without State approval. You can't do many things without 

State approval anyway. But how much local control should 

remain is something that, no matter which plan we pass, 

we are going to do a lot of debating on in the Senate and 

Assembly. Our approach here is strictly to the funding 

and distribution portion. We do not advocate a complete 

State take-over of the control of education as distinguished 

from the financing. 

SENATOR MARTINDELL: To get back to another question 

about the m~nicipal overburden, another thing that comes 

across in these hearings is that it is closely tied to 

the costs of each community. Why do you assume that the 

welfare costs and court costs do not affect education because 

in a certain budget,if you have so much to spend, you are 

going to have to take that into consideration? 

SENATOR RUSSO: Senator Martindell, I don't suggest 

that they don't have any effect, not at all. What I have 

tried to do - I started by reading Robinson versus Cahill 

47 times before I understood it, and then tried to make 

a determindtion in my own mind, as did Assemblymen Newman 

and Doyle, during the past summer, as to what must we do? 

What is the court saying to us? What are our obligations 
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and how do we meet them? I don't pretend to try to 

otterr.pt to solve all of the State's problems or all of 

the local pr0blems. I know it is something far beyond 

Int~. I don't know that I am capable of solving this one 

or even contributing to it, except to do the best I can. 

So I haven't taken on more than I can chew. I may have 

as it: is, but I don • t want to take on even more than I 

can chew because I don't know how to solve all those 

problems. I haven't attempted to. They should be solved 

some day, but I don't know that now is the time. 

SENATOR MARTINDELL: My point was that it does affect 

the budget. 

SENATOR RUSSO: I think you are probably right, but 

so do many. many other things. We could probably go on 

indefinitely and unless we have Well, I don't want 

to get into that. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Thank you very much. Are there 

any other questions? 

SENATOR MERLINO: Senator Russo, you have made the 

statement that for the time being, for the moment, to solve 

the immediate problem, your proposal for a statewide 

property tax would ~~ the job. But you really haven't 

said that the income tax isn't a fairer tax, have you? 

SENATOR RUSSO: No, not at all. Senator Merlino, 

you asked me that question because you know very well from 

my prior statement L1at I don't have the slightest intention 

oi criticizing the ~ 7arnor's program. 

SENATOR MERLINC Well, which tax is fairer in your 

estimation, the Statewide property tax you propose or 

an inco1nE' tax as pro posed by the Governor? 

SENA'rl_;fl. RUSSO: Fairer in what sense, Senator? I'm 

;crry, I don't understand you. 

SENATOR MERLINO:One which would be least offensive 

to the people who are going to pay. 

SENA'I'OR RUSSO: Well, for example, if you were to 
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substitute the income tax for the property tax in its 

entirety, I can think of some.awfully wealthy large 

landowners that would reap a bonanza if you were to do 

that - if you were to talk income tax versus property 

tax. Remember the Governor, himself, has combined the 

two. I think we all agree there. is some basic validity 

to the prop3rty tax. It is not all that bad a tax. It 

is terrible in its inequities the way it is administered 

in New Jersey today where the poor communities pay 

five and six dollars per hundred and the rich less. 

SENA'roR MERLINO: Hopefully we are directing our 

questions and answers just as it affects New Jersey. 

SENATOR RUSSO: I understand that. In New Jersey 

today, the property tax as presently administered is 

terribly unfair; under this proposal, not at all so, 

because your low-income group, your retired people, will 

have no property tax on the first $20,000 of assessed 

valuation for school purposes. Only when they get above 

that will they pay it, and there is no reason why they 

shouldn't after that. The people in the high tax districts 

today that are lower-income people are going to have 

a reduction. The people in the low-tax districts, with 

few exceptions, are basically your higher-income people 

and they are going to have an increase. It comes out to a 

pretty fair concept, as I see it. 

SENATOR MERLINO: For the time being. 

SENATOR RUSSO: I don't want to use the words "fore­

seeable future" around here. 

SENATOR MERLINO: Then we will say for the time being. 

SENA~OR RUSSO: O.K.- as far as I can see into the 

future. 

SENATOR MERLINO: You also stated that there is 

a 12 percent increase annually in ratables in the State? 

SENATOR RUSSO: Yes, in property ratables in the 

State. 
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SENATOR MERLINO: That would mean that there would 

be an increase in building of real estate of 12 percent 

in this State per year? 

SENATOR RUSSO: No. It is a combination of that plus 

::-evaluations where the assessments haven't been updated 

for some years and there is a revaluation to bring them up 

to current market values. 

SENATO~ MERLINO: When was the last time there was 

a re-evaluation in Toms River or Dover Township? 

SENATOR RUSSO: Last year. 

SENATOR MERLINO: Do you know how many communities 

have had a r~valuation in the State of New Jersey in the 

last five years? 

SENA~OR RUSSO: I can only talk about Ocean County and 

I believe it was most of them because I know there was a 

court actio:1 just filed against the two or three who hadn't 

done it. Perhaps other counties are dilatory, but in 

Ocean they are right on top of it. 

SENATOR MERLINO: But your statewide property tax 

covers 21 counties, does it not? 

SENATOR RUSSO: Yes, it does. 

SENA'I"OR MERLINO: I have nothing further. 

ASSE~~LYMAN PERSKIE: Thank you very much, Senator. 

We appreciate your t.estimony. 

SENATOR RUSSO: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

ASSEMBL · MAN PERSKIE: I have two announcements with 

regard to the scheduling. The next witness will be Dr. 

Mark Hurwitz of the New Jersey School Boards Association, 

who has ~remised us a limited statement. Immediately 

following his testintony, we will have a five-minute recess 

so tha .. thP. stenographer doesn't pass out. We have polled 

ch~ menillers of the Committee on the question of continuing 

the sessicn right through the dinner hours, from five to 

seven; notwithst2 ding the vote of the majority of the 

members of the Committee, we shall continue the session 
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because of the long list of witnesses that we have here. 

Attendance between the hours of 5:00 and 7:00 for the 

benefit of the members of the Committee will be voluntary, 

and the staff has been directed to supply those of us 

who are here with something so that we can stay here 

until lO:CO o•clock. 

Dr. Hurwitz, please. 

MARK w. H u R W I T Z: Thank you. Ladies and 

gentlemen, I am Mark Hurwitz, Executive Director of the 

New Jersey School Boards Association. I appreciate the 
opportunity to speak here today on behalf of the 605 local 

boards of education in New Jersey. 

The polit.:ies of the New Jersey School Boards Association reflect the 

consensus of its constituency that a broad-based tax is the most appropriate 

source of revenue to achieve an equitable funding of the educational programs 

of the State of New Jersey. 

The policies contain a series of principles which the Delegate Assembly 

views as essential to a broad-based tax program --

1. Each taxpayer's contribution shall be 
proportionate to his real income. 

2. Any taxation program must be fair and equitable 
to all taxpayers. A taxation package should be 
developed that would include an income tax, both 
corporate and individual, a selective sales tax 
and a general property tax with the provision 
that tax credits would be available. 

3. A new tax program must be devised that will not 
add inequities to the present tax system, but 
rather function to remove existing inequities. 

4. Special attention must be given to senior 
citizens, possibly a constitutional exemption with 
carefully defined limits. 
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5. Any variation in the property tax must be 
designed carefully so that all nonresidential 
taxable properties are reached. 

The Association believes that a broad-based income tax together with 

refcrm of New Jersey's total taxation programs, is a logical and necessary 

step at this time. 

A personal income tax is recognized as the most fair of all taxes. It 

is considered to be the most equitable since it is based upon a taxpayer's 

ability to p~y. It is progressive in its implementation and provides the 

necessary relief to senior citizens and young home-owners from the continually 

spiraling property tax. 

It can provide a firm foundation for school funding since it is also the 

most elastic of taxes. It has sufficient elasticity to adjust to economic 

fluctuations without the need for continued· tax rate increasee. 

The New Jersey School Boards Association is in general agreement with the 

tax proposals of ~overnor byrne's administration and urges passage of 

·legislation reauired to imJ·lement the program. 

Since the ir,troduction of the Byrne program, other pieces of legislation 

have been developed which continue to place major emphasis on the use Qf a 

property tax as the source of revenue for funds for education. 

The l ssociation has e:,.,perienced negative results from the reliance on a 

property tax as the basis for school revenues. It must be recognized that the 

adoption of n state-wide pToperty tax would serve to overcome the inequities 

which prehentl:l e&:ist between communities, however, it does not alleviate the 

ious problems encountered in the utilization of this tax source. 
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The regressive nature of the tax itself, the burden placed on senior 

citizens and young homeowners with limited incomes, the inconsistencies in 

assessment procedures throughout the state, the added burden. placed on 

business and industry, the relative inelasticity of the tax and the past 

impact upon the cities of the state should be viewed as deterrents to the 

~ontinued use nf this tax base as the major source of revenue for education. 

After ext~nsive evaluation of the various proposals and in accordance 

with the principles adopted by its Delegate Assembly, the New Jersey School 

Boards Association reiterates its support of the Byrne tax proposals. 

I thank you for this opportunity and stand ready to respond to any 

questions you may have. 

Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Thank you, Doctor. Are there 

any questior.s of the Conunittee as to this statement? 

(No questions.) 

Hearing none, Doctor, thank you very much for your 

testimony. 

The next witness after the recess will be Senator 

Bedell. We will reconvene promptly at ten minutes 

to four. 

(Five-Minute Recess} 
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APTER RECES~ 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: I am advised that the 

testimony on the forthcoming package will be given by 

~.ts principal co-sponsors in either House, the Honorable 

E:ugene J. Bedell, Senator from Monmouth County, and the 

Honorable Richard Van Wagner, Assemblyman from Monmouth 

County. 

Mr. Bedell, as present Chairman of this Committee 

I would like to acknowledge your presence here as the 

former Chairman of this Committee and indicate that we 

are very pleased to see you back. 

SEN AT 0 R EUGENE J. BEDELL: Thank you, 

Mr. Chairman. I want to express my appreciation to the 

Committee for allowing me the privilege to come before you 

today. Ha·1ing been the Chairman of this Committee during 

the past legislative session,I don't envy you your task. 

I am going to address myself to a plan that has 

been put forth by myself and Assemblyman VanWagner. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Senator, do you have a pre­

pared statement? 

SENATOR BEDELL: The statement has been mailed to 

every me~er of the Legislature. It was put in the mail 

ti:1is morning, I undE:rstand. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: If you will, will you high-

light it here this afternoon? 

SENATOR BEDLLL: Yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Thank you. 

3ENATOR BEDE.LL: With, really, no pride of author­

ship, as a matter of differentiation we have called our 

plan the 'Jcr; '"7'1gner-Bedell Program for Funding Public 

-.ducation. 

Gentlemen, looking into the proposal now before you 

concerning public educational finance, you will find that 
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the figures prove ample to provide a good level of school 

funding without an income tax. 

The following will give you enough information 

to digest and to understand how the program would operate 

and what it would mean to the taxpayers in New Jersey. 

Many of the details in this legislation could be 

changed without affecting the financial part of the program 

and its ultimate application in anyway. First, it is 

necessary to have a Constitutional amendment which would 

allow the Legislature to provide for property taxes by 

classification of property. This has been introduced as 

ACR-139 and f>CR-123, which are identical. 

Second, it is necessary to have a Statewide property 

tax based on property classification to provide the basic 

money for distribution. This has been introduced as 

A-1644. Because this is a tax measure it will originate 

in the Assembly and it is sponsored by Assemblyman Richard 

Van Wagner of Monmouth County. 

The third and most comprehensive bill will provide 

for the utilization of the money involved, how it is to be 

distributed, on what basis and if desired, what strings 

are to be attached to it. This has been introduced in 

the State Senate as S-1186, sponsored by Senator Eugene 

J. Bedell. 

The figures pertain to either the calendar year 

1973 or to the school year 1973-74. This is important 

because it d8es not take into account the large increase 

in State school aid which will be in the State Budget for the 

~ 1974-75. However, we can disregard this and consider it 

as money which may be necessary to meet increased costs due 

to inflation. It could be used to cut the impending budget 

deficit in half, provide a Senior Citizens• Homestead 

exemption, or whatever purpose the Legislature may deem. 

We say this because we do not consider - no matter how 

worthy any of these programs may be - them to be essentially 
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a part of the Better mandate. 

The receipts from this tax proposal, that is the 

classified statewide property tax, will amount to 

approximately one billion eight hundred and fifty dollars. 

If we add to that the approximately four hundred and fifty 

million for State aid purposes in the present State budget, 

1973-74, we arrive at a total figure of two billion, three 

hundred million dollars, which is somewhat more than was 

budgeted by all school districts this year. The basis 

is for full funding of all public schools at a relatively 

high level. 

The plan includes the idea of separating regular 

dny school operations from those for debt service, special 

students and miscellaneous capital. Although transportation 

is 2£ ~ full funding basis, it is considered within the 

regular day school cost because that is where it appears 

in the existing school budgets. 

Fr0m the two billion three hundred million, 

deduct seventy five million for special students - these 

are the atypical pupils under special education programs. 

Deduct one hundred nineteen million for debt service and 

miscellaneous capital in the amount of twenty one million. 

These are very close to the actual cost figures. After 

these deductions, we have two billion eighty-five million, 

which works out to more than $1200 per student in regular day 

school throughout the State. To some this may seem a 

rather low figure bu~ it must be remembered it does not 

include money fer debt service, for special students or 

miscellaneous capital which, in many districts, is a very 

high cost figure. 

It is more costly to properly educate a pupil at 

.he high school level than at the elementary level. There­

fore the distribution of money is on the basis of $1,000 

per pupil for elementary school (k to 8), $1,500 per 
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pupil for high school, $1,850 for full-time vocational 

students and $2,500 for special education students. 

Based upon current expenditures,you will find 

these to be adequate. With no breakdown between pupils 

in elementary school and in high school, we tabulate the 

average expenditure per pupil for the schools in each 

county in the State. For all expenditures, the $1200 

average is exceeded in only 9 of the 21 counties and in 

only four by any significant amount. Even if it is above, 

the $1200 per pupil mark would be very close to it. 

There are a number of significant factors to a 

program such as this; one being that provision made to 

11 phase in 11 school districts in which per pupil cost are 

so low that should they suddenly be given the amounts we 

have projected, a great deal of the money would be wasted. 

A second factor is that school districts would find them­

selves in a position where they would be compelled to 

utilize their money in a better way. 

What of the taxpayer under this program? Based 

on this proposal, the residential taxpayer would have a 

rate decrease in 446 of the 567 municipalities. That 

decrease wouid apply to 86% of all of the people. The 

commercial taxpayer would have a decrease in more than 

half of the 567 municipalities in New Jersey. 

In no instance would the increase in the school 

tax in those remaining municipalities bring the homeowners' 

tax above the State average and in only 8 or 9 municipalities 

would the commercial taxpayers' tax be pushed above the 

State averege. 

For the most part, those who have had a tax in­

crease are now paying extremely low taxes where the total 

tax bill for everything is less than in other municipalities 

for school taxes alone. Essentially what this proposal 

does is equalize the tax for public education at a reason­

able level so that everyone pays his fair share. 
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It is important to note that this is a simple, 

easy ~o understand program. It is not an additional property 

tax but or.e which replaces much of that tax now collected 

l<)Cally. While recognizing the obvious difference in 

:property used for residential purposes and those used 

for commercial purposes, it does not raise the commercial 

portion to a level which would prove prohibitive to New 

Jersey's economic growth. It does not include the use 

of the so-called 11 nuisance taxes 11 which, subject to different 

economic pressures, could have adetrimental effect on 

the entire program. 

The best feature of this program is the stability 

it brings to the public education portion of the property 

tax which, of course, in most municipalities is by far 

the greatest part of their taxes, and it does so without 

a State Income Tax! 

There are a few more relevant remarks . I would like 

to make because I am anticipating some of the questions 

you might ask. An additional feature of this bill would 

establish a contingency fund of no less than one-half nor 

more than o~e percent of the proceeds from this Statewide 

tax. Such a fund would be established to provide for 

emergencies of an unanticipated increase in any enrollment 

~·-n any district for experimental purpose.J, for transporta­

tion which does not fall within statutory limits, or where 

haz2rdous conditions raay prevail and, finally, for capital 

ccnstruction in emergency conditions. 

We feel that our proposal would be less likely 

to raise a court objection than the equalized per-pupil 

resource approach used in the administrations • s program. 

If the court's major concern is with students and education 

2ther than the taxpayer and taxation, then the amount 

actually spent by a school district on education is far 

more releva::1t to the court's concern than the amount 
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available to spend. Stated another way, educational 

opportunity for a student should be actual rather than 

potential. Thank you. 

ASWEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Thank you very much, Senator 

and Assemblyman Van Wagner. Are there any members of the 

Committee who have any questions of either legislator? 

Senator and Assemblyman, we have been given copies 

of your proposal and, as I have indicated in the past to 

Assemblyman Van Wagner, the proposals will receive the 

careful consideration of the Taxation Committee. We 

are presently submitting them for the fiscal analysis of 

the Office of Fiscal Affairs and when that is completed 

we will ha\·e some report back for you. 

The Constitutional amendmenGthat would be 

necessary t.o effectuate your program have been already 

released either by the Assembly Taxation Committee, before 

the legislative recess or, in some instances, by the Senate, 

which submitted them to second reading at their intro­

duction. Thank you very much. 

SENATOR BEDELL: Mr. Van Wagner would like to make 

a few remarks to the Committee. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Yes, sure. 

ASSEMBLYMAN VAN WAGNER: Just for the Committee's 

consideration- in consideration of the funding levels, I 

think you should be aware that in the Bedell-VanWagner 

Tax Proposal - in the distribution bill - the portion that 

we are funding of the entire local school board ledger 

deals with administrative, teaching, maintenance and supply 

cost. The transportation, tuition and atypical student 

cost is not considered in the total funding area. I think 

this is a very important consideration since, in looking 

at the revenue side of the ledger on a local school board, 

we are not considering the surplus or federal aid that the 

school board may receive. So the figures we are showing 

you are, in a sense, base figures, based on the expenditure 
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and revenue levels now being implemented. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Thank you. Assemblyman, I 

might note that, notwithstanding the close relationship 

between this Committee and Senator Bedell, the proposals 

w·,:mld stand a substantially increased chance of acceptance 

i:Cl this House if they were known as the VanWagner-Bedell 

Propo.sals. 

ASSEMBLYMAN VAN WAGNER: That 1 s what they are 

known as, sir. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Thank you, gentlemen. 

The New Jersey Education Association, Walter J. 

O'Brien, Director of Government Relations. Is Mr. O'Brien 

present in the Chamber? 

(not present) 

We also have James Reilly the Research Director 

and Richard Moore, the Associate Research Director listed. 

Gentlemen, if you have a written statement, please present 

it to the staff and please be kind enough to summarize it 

orally. 

R I C H A R D M 0 0 R E: Mr. Chairman, Members of 

the Assembly Tax Committee, my name is Richard Moore. I 
am Associate Director of Research for the New Jersey 

Education Association. We thank you for this opportunity 

to address you today on the subject of Governor Byrne's 

Tax Program. Walter O'Brien had hoped to be here but he 

h.-~ to be downstairs with the Labor Committee, so he 

expresses his regretf: .. 

As you are we~l aware, I am certain, the N.J.E.A. 

throughout its histoi.y has been intimately involved with 

e:Ery step in the struggle to get increased and improved 

schooi financ8 in the State of New Jersey. The Association 

nas either led, or been in the forefront of every major 

campaign, net only to win a more thorough and adequate 

support for education but also for the necessary taxes 

to support the public school needs. 
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The NJEA Delegate Assembly has maintained the Association's traditional policy in support of broad-based taxes 
to provide increased state support for public education. NJEA continues to be on record for: "either a general 
sales tax (with food and drugs exempted) or a personal incorne tax, or a combination of both, or such other 
taxes as may produce the amount (of funds) required." 

Under this mandate, NJEA campaigned for such .programs as Governor Hughes' "shared cost" school aid plan 

and income tax in 1965 and, when that failed, for the compromise increased foundation aid plan and sales tax 

in 1966. NJEA worked for the J968 recommendations made by the State Aid to School Districts Study Com· 

mission and pressed thereaftet for the full funding of these basic "Bateman/Tanzman" formulas, which finally 

will be achieved in the 1974-75 budget year. 

In 1972, NJEA responded to the recommendations of the State Tax Polley Commission. The Association sought 

amendments for salvaging the inadequate "state funding" proposal offered by Governor Cahill, in hopes of finding 

a way to maintain school quality throughout the state, guarantee the full educational opportunity mandated by 

the Robinson v. Cahill decision, and win agreement in the Legislature for the tax reform measures. The 1972 

proposals never resulted in legislation adequate to warrant support by the major education groups. An all-out 

effort to win passage of school flll3nee and tax reform proposals never materialized during the 1972 special session 

of the Legislature. 

Earlier this me nth, the NJEA Delegate Assembly adopted resolutions expressing Association support for the general 
concepts of th ~ school fmancr and tax reform proposals of Governor Byrne. 

On June 10 the 1\TJEA testified before the Joint Education Committee& of the Legislature. At that time we 
expressed the Association's general support of the Proposed Public School Education Act of 1974 (S-1256 and 

A-1863). We proposed some amendments that we believe will clarify and strengthen the proposed legislation. 

It is in that same spirit of general support and cooperation that we now offer for your consideration NJEA's 

observations and analysis of some of the tax proposals that have been offered. 

Thank you, gentlemen. 

J A M E S R E I L L Y: Good afternoon, my name is James 

Reilly, N.J.E.A. Director of Research, and I would like 

to pick up the presentation where Mr. Moore left off. 

----~~-;~;purpose of t~s hearing is to solicit opinions relative to the Administration proposals, we believe that 

press of events makes it imperative that our opinions of other recently introduced tax reform proposals be 
voiced as well. In the course of my comments, I will make reference to school funding plans which are not 
a direct concern of this committee. However, public school revenue raising schemes are so ~extricably inter­

twined with public school revenu~ distribution schemes that such is unavoidable. It is critical tha~ th~ Com­
mittee be aware of the implications of tax reform and revenue proposals as they impinge school tundiug. 

-··----~-- . ·ec;;;.,;u on-t~ ptopo•l offfred by Senator Russo and Assemblymen Doyle and Newman. It is obvious that 

~an immense amount of thouBht and hard WO}'k have been invested in this proposal, and that it is a sincere effort 

to deal with the challenges posed by the need for both tax reform and an adequate response to the thorough and 

efficient mandate. These gentJemen are to be highly commended for their courage and diligence. We do, however, 

wish to mention some questions and concerns we have in relation to the proposal. 

We wish to take issue with the comment in the proposal that the State of New Jersey is "more than satisfying our 
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tot;1l obligation" m respect to education, and that educational expenditures need not there~fore be increased. 

Jt is stated that New Jersey, with the Sth highest per capita income in the 

United States, has the 3rd highest per capita expenditures for education. These are dollar figures and are mis­

leading. Percentage of persor:al income expended for education is a much better measure of effort, or sacrifice, 

in the interest of thorough and efficient education for the children of New Jersey. Per pupil expenditure for 

education in New Jersey constitutes 4.8% of personal income per pupil, compared to a national average of 4.7%. 

New Jersey's school funding effurt is clearly average. 

The plan proposes tax rates of $1.50/hundred for residential property, $2.50/hundred for business property over 

$50,000, and states that the $1.50/hundred residential property tax rate is 25% less than the 1973 statev-ide 

average of $2.03/hundred. But it is only 21% less than the 1974 statewide average of $1.89/hundred. While 

rate relief would still be provided to many residential property tax payers, it is critical to point out that taxpayers 

in any district spending more than the state support levels discussed by the plan would pay a rate higher than $1.50/ 

hundred if they desired to maintain their program. A few examples illustrate this point: 

TABLE 1 

Property Tax Aates Necessary to Maintain Current Program in Certain Districts During 1975-76 School Year Under 
• Russo-Doyle-Newman Plan 

Excess Current Equalized Tax Rata 
Current Expenset Expense Over Required (I ncludlng 

District Cost/Pupil Basic Support State Property Tax) 

Englewood (Bergen) $2,150 $650 $2.20 

Demarest (Bergen) 1,703 203 1.81 

Ridgewood (Bergen) 1,791 291 1.98 

TeanecK ~Bergen) 1,893 393 2.04 

L')wer Cape May Reg. (Cape May) 1,732 232 1.82 
.. :Gatclair (Essex) 1,848 348 2.05 
O, ;qe (Esse\.) 1,733 233 i.09 
liunterdon Central Reg. (Hunterdon) 2,136 636 2.56 
West Windsor-Plainsboro Reg. (Mercer) 1,7'.4 244 1.82 
t\· rth Brunswick (Middlesex) 1,870 370 1.90 

·"·A.>.mmes $1 ,500/pupil base support. +-1974-75 budgeted current expenses and equalized valuations. 

T;·, ·<>. taxpayers in a significant number of school districts, at least 25%- perhaps 30 to 40% or more, would re­

~~ ii'tlc or ~ , property tax rtlief. Additio11al statistics clarifying this aspect of the proposal should be made 

v:·ibt ~;:- -,,r cit, jy if the plan should come under serious consideration as an alternative to Administration 

, proposes to make the initial tax rates permanent by ame;~g ib;.Constitution of the State of New 

Jersey tc so state. It is apparently felt that such is the only tactic which will secure the approval of a basically 

distrustful public. This is a !'egrettable circumstance. But while the credulousness of the public is currently a 

gr<J re ·. on cern, the Legislature should seriously consider the wisdom of an incipient policy which modifies our 
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most cherished and respected document, the ultimate repository o(our "social and politicatfabdc, to accomplish 
ends which are more property achiewd through traditional statutory means. 

Since a change in the State Constitution would be required in order to change State property tax rates, the plan 
apparently intends to rely on increases in ratables to provide for fut\ue increases in school costs. This may prow 
to be an inadequate solution. The rapidly rising rate of increase in value of ratables has slowed drastically, from 
over 13% in 1973 to about 8*% in 1974. If State wide property tax revenues prove inadequate, alternatives 
might include an increase in the sales tax or other "nuisance" taxes. Such measures are usually unpopular or 
damaging to the development and preservation of business and industrial activities in New Jersey or both. 

We see in these considerations of the proposal a distinct possibility of future school funding problems at the 
State level. As before, local communities will attempt to remedy the deficiencies of the State. For a variety of 
reasons, citizens in local school districts vary widely in their willingness to financially support the public schools. 
As before, New Jersey could slowly slip into a pattern of wide inequities in resources available to each pupil. 
Such an event is obviously repugnant to the thorough and efficient provision of the New Jersey Constitution. 
It is thus apparent that the proposal does not constitute the thorough going·revenue reform so badly needed 
in New Jersey. 

While a desire to reass~re tax~yers is understandable, it appears to us that any proposal attempting to meet the 
_ State Constitutional mandate· nust guarantee that adequate revenues will always be available to fully fund 
educational requirements. 

It should be noted that the plan takes per pupil expenditure figures from the Administration proposal which 
are, of course, a simulation based upon data contained in 1974-75 budgets. The revised school fmance scheme 
would go into effect during the 1975-76 school year. If the plan is discussing 1974-75 expenditures, and this 
is not entirely clear, an 8% increase in expenditures, a rate mentioned in the proposal, would increase the 
$2.4 billion cost to $2.592 billion. This f~.gure is consistent with estimates of pupil population and expense 
obtained from the Office of Y.'anagement Information which indicate a 1975-76 basic school current expense 
cost of $2.42 billion plus compensatory education, vocational education, post high school student education, 
debt service, and capital outlay. The $195 million increase, which may be a modest estimate during one of 
the worst inflationary periods of this century, will quickly eliminate most of the $215 million surplus. 

Since the proposal does not address itself to the problem of municipal overburden or place restraints on 
property taxation for other municipal and county pur~ses, there seems to be a distinct possibility that 
the purported property tax "relier' will quickly disappear, leaving the average citizen more disgruntled 
and angry than ever. 

The property tax, upon which the plan plac~s ~uch heavy reliance, is, as has been stated many times, both 
regressive and indastic. Any revenue reform proposal which places heavy reliance upon property taxes 
will suffer these faults. The proposed homestead exemption for Senior Citizens would mitigate the problem 
for the elderly if available funds permit enactment. 

Our examination of the plan's revenue projections give rise to concerns about the adequacy of estimates. 
Calculations based upon recently available 1974 apportionment valuations seem to indicate that the 
anticipated yield of the statewide property tax will fall more than $90 million dollars short of projections 
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TABLE 2 

Revenue Estimates - 1975 

$1.50/hundred Equalized Residential Rate 

$2.50/hundrad Eqwllzed Commercial and 
Industrial Rate 

Total 

Difference 

BuSIO-Doyle-Newmaft Proposal 

$1,022,245,740 

781,878,296 

$1,784,122,036 

. ....._...._._. 

$ 890,291,978 

798,979,981 

$1,689,271,969 

94,850,076 

*-Based on 65-35% division of residential and business-industrial property. Note: 1974 apportionment valuations 
increased by the 1973 to 1974 increase of 8.4%. NJEA figures contain no provision for exemptions. 

We have also noticed that the budget deficit estimate of $200 million differs significantly from the Administration 
estimate of $300. A larger than anticipated deficit could, combined with current inflationary increases, and other 
factors already mentioned, precipitate a budgetary crisis at the very inception of the plan. 

Further, if the $1 ,500/pupU figure referred to earlier is intended to be the support level during the 1975-76 school year, 
perhaps 40% of all school districts would experienc~ "H Iter reductions m program or higher property taxes. If a $1,400/ 
pupil figure, also mentioned, is adopted, SO% or more of the school districts in the State could suffer program reductions. 

It would thus appear that, while the distribution scheme is incomplete, the plan could lead to "leveling down" of 
some of the better educational programs in the nation to a level currently exceeded by 35%, or more, of school districts. 
Thus, many of the States school districts could suffer damage to their educational program. NJEA views this possibility 
with alarm. 

·Of course,t~proposal is presently incomplete and NJEA must therefore reserve comment, aside from the few questions 
we have raised, until the entire proposal is made ;.vailable. 

Comments on the proposal offnred by Senator Bedell and Assemblyman VanWagner. The tax reform-school fmance 
proposal put forward by Senator Bedell and Assemblyman VanWagner is, again, a genuine and positive attempt to 
tid adequate and workable solutions to the myriad problems with which the State is currently confronted. We 
. • •:;·nend these gentlemen also for their hard work, sincerity, and the thoroughness of their efforts. Again, we 

uave co.·· a in questions and concerns which we feel constrained to mention. The proposal is similar to the Russo­
Doyle-N~wrnan proposal in respect to revenue sources. Many of the questions we have raised previously therefore 
ap11ly to this I '' l~ '''ell. This plan differs most notably in that it relies entirely on the property tax for new 
;·evenue, .illd it specifk:. a school finance scheme :)ased upon full state funding. 

The c~lan proposes statewide pr'1perty tax rates of $1.75/hundred on residential property and $2.00 or $2.25/ 
hurH1red un husin~"' and commercial property. Jt thus causes the burden of taxation to fall a little more heavily 
.~~. ,;, • .. io;'1eJw: .·r. in addition, the plan eschews additional business oriented taxes suggested by the Russo-Doyle-Newman plan. 

'In· ~ •r• iA<:s i>taiewide property tax rates by amending the State Constitution. We have already stated 
fT~ . , ,~,;ems about this measure . 

• ~.,:) propusal b somewhat more regressive and inelastic than the Russo-Doyle-Newman proposal in that it places 
even greater reliance on the property tax, and greater emphasis on taxation of the homeowner. Further, this 
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proposal envisions no relief for the elderly, the disabled, or low-income persons, other than presumed continuation 
of existing senior citizen and veteran exemptions. 

1llis plan also makes no adequate provision for increased revenues which willbe needed to fund future expenditures. Further, 
tbis proposal makes no visible provision for municipal overburden problems, and our concerns about rapid disappearance 
of purported property tax relief thus apply: 

We are pleased to note that this proposal mandates that sending districts not part of regionals either operate or CPDM>lidate. 
A stronger mandate for consolidation would be evefn better. 

Tllis proposal appears to significantly restrict the concept of local control of the operation of local school districts. 

Pupil support levels would be rigidly fixed and· every local capital outlay would in effect have to be approved by the 

Legislature, and would receive such approval only if given "frrst priority" status, unless unanticipated surpluses became 

available for second priority projects. Vocational education facilities support would apparently be entirely taken 

away from local high schools and restricted to county vocational schools. NJEA seriously questions both the practical 

wisdom and political feasibility of such measures. 

Tllis proposal specifies a five-year "phase-in" program for new State funds in low spending districts. Five years is 

much too long to wait for the thorough and efficient education demanded by the State Constitution, and a much 

shorter period would be more appropriate. 

We noted in respect to the Russo-Doyle-Newman proposal that taxpayers in many districts would fmd themselves paying 

more than the $1.50/hundred rate in order to maintain current programs. The same is true of this proposal, only 

more so because the residential rate is higher. Taxpayers in in approximately 33% of school districts currently pay 

less than $1.75/hundred in equalized taxes- they would experience an immediate property tax increase. Again, 

taxpayers in any district spending more than the State allotment would be obliged to impose a rate higher than 

$1.75/hundred in order to maintain their program. 

It is, in fact, in the area of per pupil funding that we find this proposal most disconcerting. Table 3 compares current 

expense expenditure estimates, excluding vocational education, based upon figures obtained from the Office 

of Management Information, with funding levels stated in the ..,roposal. 

TABLE 3 

Revenues Required to Fund Current Expense Cost! 1976-76 
(Vocational Edu~tion Excluded) 

Proposed Current Expense 
Cost Per Pupil Current Expense Cost (in millions) 

Estimated Bedell- Bedell· 

1975-76 OM It VanWagner OMIt VanWagner 

Grade Level Enrollment Estimate Pro!!Qsal Estimate Pro!!Qsal 

Kindergarten 111,000 $ 700 $1,000 77.7 111.0 

Grade 1 · 6 623,000 1,500 1,000 934.5 623.0 

Grade 7 · 8 227,000 1,700 1,000 385.9 227.0 

Grade 9 -12 454,000 2,000 1,500 908.0 681.0 

Special Education 28,000 3,000 2,500 84.0 70.0 

Education 
Ungraded 18,000 I ,700 (est.) 1 ,500* 30.6 27.0 

Total 2,420.7 1,739.0 

*-Assumption t . Office of Management Information 
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Difference 

(33.3) 
311.5 
158.9 
227.0 

14.0 

3.6 

681.7 



The discrepancy between normal projections and the proposal is immediately apparent. The discrepancy would 

require additional local property taxes which might average as much as $0.75/hundred across the State if existing 

programs are to be maintainer\. We may thus be talking about an average residential school tax rate of $2.50/ 

hundred. More than 80% of all school districts currently pay a lower school tax rate. Please note that additional 

expenditures required in low spending districts in order to meet the thorough and efficient mandate were not 

considered in the Office of Ma&gement Information estimates. 

This proposal could bring turmoil to many school districts in New Jersey. Taxpayers in some districts,:particularly 

where large increases in municipal taxes occur, will balk at approving the additional taxes needed first to maintain 

current progrm1s. Thus, some of the best educational programs in New Jersey, and indeed the nation, will begin 

the process of "leveling down." Some very good and painfully constructed programs may be ruined. We predict 

that the publi; reaction to this process will be seriously negative when its implications are fully realized. 

Citizens will rally to the suppl>rt of the schools in some districts, as some always do, while others will do less. 

Thus, as previously stated,the drift backward toward wide inequities will begin. It is therefore likely that this 

proposal will fail to meet the thorough and efficient mandate. 

NJEA doubts that this proposal is an adequate response to the mandate of the Supreme Court. Indeed, the 

proposal gives,rise to serious concerns about maintenance of quality education in the State of New Jersey. 

Comments on Administration Proposals. Finally, the NJEA Delegate Assembly has endorsed the general concepts 

of school finance and tax reform proposed by the Administration, subject to certain considerations, including a 

graduated personal income tu and a business stabilization tax. NJEA has long been on record as supportive of 

any broad-based tax or combination of taxes which will provide an adequate base for financing the public 

schools. Taxes which take cognizance of ability to pay are preferable to those which are regressive, and the 

Administration tax scheme is the mo!lt equitable in our opinion. 

NJEA is pleased to note the Administration has included a "circuit-breaker" provision in the plan. This provision 

limits the percentage of personal income which may be paid in property taxes among lower income households, 

and thereby makes the total tax structure of the State less regressive. 

The Administration is to be commended for directly addressing the serious municipal funding problem in our State 

in a contc~t completely apart from school funding legislation. The two concepts can and should be considered. The 

graduated income tax is a progressive tax and s;g'lificantly more elastic than the local property tax. It is thus 

nr e equitable and makes bet'er provision for future expenditures. Not having extensive data on levels of personal 

in<:ome in ·r-<~w Jersey available to us, we must accept the revenue projections as accurate. 

'The Busir.ess Stabilization tax ap,ears to be a fair method for preventing ''windfall" tax savings for business and 

industry in some "nunicipalities. Present ''tax havens" appear to be largely eliminated. 

The NJEA Ddegate Assembly has placed itself on record as being strongly opposed to " ... limits that are arbitrary 

rcstndnts on amounts of necessary spending or ·':~x sources. Any limits on increases in spending must be flexible 

enoujh to accr:modate future increases in the cost of living, efforts to upgrade the quality of staffing and 

;>~····rams in schools, sudder; emollment growth or decline, and an appeals procedure for adjustments under the 

Commissioner of Education." We are thus con<Xuled about the apparently arbitrary 6% limit imposed upon 

h l .. · . · taxe~ to be impost:d after the second year of the program. Such limits are not necessary in view of 

b .g • i mope1 ty tax ratrs. 'lhe 1976 state-wide average equalized school tax rate has declined 6.9% since 

last 'J:: ,! 10.8% since 1971. However, if political considerations demand that limits be imposed, NJEA feels 

that such limits should provide for the worst possible situation; i.e. local ratables do not increase at all, or even 
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decrease. The lqcal property tax based portion of the budget should be allowed to increase by an amount equal 
to the greater of (1) the iJlaease in the Consumer Price Index or (2) the .average state-wide increase in educational 

costs, currently somewhat mc.re than 8%. NJEA recommends, therefore, that the proposed annual limit on local school . 
tax rate increases be set at 8% or the increase in the Consumer Price Index, published by the Bureau of Labor 
Statistics, whichever measure ~rini~s the percentage increase which· may be required. 

We have noted that the Administration proposalappean to:make scant provision for districts in which un~xpected 
enrollment increases precipate budgetary crises. The pupil population of Union Township in Ocean County 
recently tripled in one year. We urge that provision be made for funding problems in districts which experience 
unanticipated enrollment increases. 

All state aid is apparently to be calculated on the basis of actual figures for the year previous to the year in 
which aid is to be paid. We urgt that funding be restored to a current basis and the proposed one year lag 
eliminated where possible. Such a change would require re-examination of provisions for districts with expanding 
or contracting pupil populations. 

We are aware that the concerns about school tax rate increases reflect the fear of many that large increases in 
school tax rates will soon eliminate any property tax "relief." Such a view fails to give sufficient credit for fiscal 
responsibility to the many dedicated citizens of our State who sit on local school boards, boards of school estimate, 
and municipal governing bodies. NJEA can certify through painful experience that our school boards are extremely 
reluctant to raise local property tax rates. 

The income tax proposal, as presently written, appears to leave open the possibility that a retired person 
moving to a distant state which does not have a reciprocal tax agreement with New Jersey might have to pay 
income tax in both states. 

The income tax proposal allows the Director of Taxation to order forwarding of salary withholdings on a semi· 
monthly basis. A plan congruent with the monthly forwarding requirements currently employed by the Federal 
Government would be significantly easier on employers. 

The proposed 6% penalty on delinquent payments appears inadequate to encourage prompt payment in .light of 
current interest rates. 

We wish to point out that wt do not yet know exactly how the limit on local school tax rate increases 
proposed by Governor Byrne will operate in actual practice. The general intent outlined in the proposed legislation 
appears to stipulate a fixed percentage limit on rate increases in districts above the guaranteed equalized valuation, 
and somewhat greater flexibility for less wealthy districts. However, we have heard several versions of how the 
limit would actually work, and preliminary calculations based on our present information have caused us some alarm. 
Additional information clarifying the impact of the proposed limit on local school tax rate increases should be 
released as soon as possible. 

In general, and subject to the reservations stated, we are inclined to feel that the Administration proposal is a responsible 
and comprehensive response to the problems at hand, which brings about genuine tax reform and establishes 
the basis for an adequate response to the thorough and efficient mandate. We have some concerns about the 
school aid distribution portion of the program, which we have voiced before the Joint Education Committee. 

NJEA is continuing to study all tax reform proposals in cooperation with the National Education Association 
and racognized authorities in the field of taxation and school finance. We will have more to say as the situation 

develops. 

Thank you very much for your kind attention. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Does any member of the 

Committee have any questions? Senator Martindell? 

SENATOR MARTINDELL: I was very interested in what 

you said about the municipal overburden part, which is a 

part that directly affects education. It is your point that 

t3.x relief will disappear if this isn't addressed. 

MR. REILLY: It would appear there is nothing 

in the proposals, other than the administration proposal, 

which would permit erosion, in effect, of the property tax 

savings which would result from this kind of a reform, so 

that prope~ty tax rates could rapidly escalate to present 

levels or higher and there would be a statewide income 

t&x as well. This would have a severe effect on the leeway 

taxation that would be allowed for schools to operate above 

the minimum programs stated in both proposals, which we 

also feel are lower than they should be, or could be. 

SENATOR MARTINDELL: Despite the fact that it would 

not bring relief, it seems to me from studying it yesterday -

and I am still studying - that, despite what the authors 

say, it does put the burden on the middle income taxpayer. 

Have your figures shown that? 

MR. REILLY: I would be reluctant to state, on the 

basis of the amount of study we have been able to do in the 

short time available, that the alternative plans to the 

administra~ion's put any greater burden on middle income 

taxpayers than currently exists. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Are there any other questions? 

SENATOR RUS50: Mr. Reilly, did I understand you, 

or perhaps one of your colleagues, to say the N.J.E.A. was 

...... n favor of extending the sales tax to food and drugs? 

MR. REILLY: We do not have a policy that specific·, 

Senator. Our official policy is that we are in favor of 

any broad-based tax, or combination of taxes, perferably 

progressive rather than regressive, tht will accomplish 
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necessary funding for public schools. 

SENATOR RUSSO: In your comments concerning New 

Jersey being 5th highest in per capita income and third 

highest in expenditures, you mentioned that you did not 

feel - as I understand - that we are necessarily spending 

a sufficient amount on education, is that correct? 

MR. REILLY: Well, we simply wanted to point out 

that there are several measures of effort and we would 

feel that a somewhat better measure of effort is the 

percent of personal income spent on education. So, I think 

there are a number of these measures and we could debate 

them at some length. We did want to put in a brief 

disclaimer. 

SENATOR RUSSO: You referred, of course, to the 

statement in our proposal that we are spending enough. 

Are you aware of the fact that the Governor has also taken 

the same position? 

MR. REILLY: I was not aware that the Governor 

has stated specifically that we are currently spending 

all that needs to be spent. I think we would take some 

exception to that. 

SENATOR RUSSO: I think he did. 

The next question: You point out that with regard 
to the schuol 'tax rate, based upon,l973 rates of ~2.0~ per 

hundred as a statewide equalized figure, this year it is 

21% less bec~use the rate has dropped to $1.89 per hundred. 

Isn't it correct that the reason for that is because the 

State - the administration - has infused some $192 million 

in new funds to education and that has caused that school tax 

rate to drop? 

MR. P~ILLY: I would assume that would be part of 

the reason. 

SEN~TOR RUSSO: The next figure you·mention concerns 

me, because 1f you are correct it causes me some puzzlement. 
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You said that there is an 8~ rise in ratables 

in 1974. 

MR. REILLY: According to the figures that we have 

obtained recently. 

SENATOR RUSSO: Well, our fiscal analysts tell us 

that the fi<,;,ure is 12. 9<'A, in 1974. Could I ask you the 

source of your figures, just in case you are right? 

MR. REILLY: I believe that the source of our 

figures would be the State Division of Taxation. I would 

have to consult with the individuals on our staff who are 

responsible for collecting that kind of information to 

determine if an error has been made on our part. 

SENATOR RUSSO: All right, we will check ours 

also and maybe you can do yours as well. 

MR. REILLY: Fine. 

SENATOR RUSSO: You pointed to the figure per 

pupil. It is clear to you, is it not, Mr. Reilly, that 

under the proposal that we presented, the total sum 

raised for education is, in fact, even higher than that 

proposed under the Governor•s proposal? 

MR. REILLY: I would have to recheck all of my 

notes. I will not dispute that statement right now. 

SENATOR RUSSO: You wouldn 1 t dispute that statement? 

That is all I have to ask. Thank you, M::.:. Chairman. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Thank you, Senator. 

Thc..nk you very much, Mr. Reilly. We appreciate 

your testimony. 

MR. REILLY: Thank you, sir. 

ASSEMELYMAN PERSKIE: The next witness will be 

Mayor Martin Vaccaro of Allenhurst. 

I •:;1. ::tll l10t, at this time, impose any time limit 

~n any of the witnesses, other than a request by the 

Committee that each witness exercise - and this is certainly 

not addressed to the Mayor just because he happens to be 
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next - some measure of self-control in order that we may 

accommodate everybody who has come today to testify. 

Thank you very much for coming, Mayor, we appreciate it. 

M A Y 0 R M A R T I N V A C C A R 0: Thank you. 

I am Mayor M2.rtin Vaccaro of the Borough of Allenhurst. 

I am here as Chairman of the Shore Ad Hoc Committee of 

Mayors on Tax Reform Study. 

I am here today to address you at the urging of 

Rev. s. Howard Woodson, Speaker of the Assembly. A 

contingent from our Ad-Hoc Committee met with Rev. Woodson 

last Tuesday, June 18th.to discuss our analysis and 

recommenda~ions on the various tax reform plans being 

offered to t~e Legislature. Upon hearing our presentation, 

Rev. Woodson strongly urged us to make our position known 

to you by testifying here today. 

---
In our approach to tax reform we must not lose sight of the 

fact that the mandate for tax reform stems from the ruling of Superior 

Court Judge Theodore Botter that the present system of public school 

financing is unconstitutional. He found fault with the property 

tax system for raising funds and with the state aid formula for 

allocating funds to the school districts. He said "The system dis­

criminates against pupils in districts with low real property wealth, 

and it discriminates against taxpayers by imposing unequal burdens 

for a common sta·~e purpose". He further ruled that it was the duty 

of the state to finance a thorough and efficient system of educa-

tion out of state revenues raised ~ levies imposed uniformly on 

taxpayers of the same class. 

It is now a matter of history that the New Jersey Supreme 

Court and the u.s. supreme Court have upheld the Botter decision. 
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The mandate placed upon the legislature is to devise a system 

of public school funding which will eliminate the inequities cited 

by Jud~e Botter. There is no pressing need to delve into the 

financing C'f anything but our public school system at this time. 

All efforts at tax reform in other areas merely detract from and 

complica~e the basic problem facing the legislature. 
~---

The basic thrust of the Botter decision is that state support 

of public schools must provide for a thorough and efficient educa­

tion fer all pupils regardless of the financial resources of the 

community in which they reside. Furthermore, that the system of 

taxation for raising the needed funds shall be based on ability 

to pay. We must not lose sight of these objectives. 

Any plan which would impose a state-wide tax on residential 

property would be regressive and would not be based on ability to 

pay~ Persons in the lower income brackets traditionally pay a 

higher percentage of income for their homes than those in higher 

income brackets, consequently, their property tax is a greater 

percentage of income. It must also be recognized that ownership 

of property is not a valid indication of income or ability to pay 

taxes. Many homeowners are living on fixed retirement incomes or 

are so overburde~ed with mortgages and other financial commitments 

·tc.at ~:hey are unable to pay additional taxes. 

·:..·iK:; 'i i::!ci.J 'ch (.;f. a community cannot be ·measured by the ratio of 

equ~:o.lized valuation per public school pupil. Any levy or distribu-
I 

tion of funds based on this ratio has no correlation to wealth or 
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need. This is evident from the tabulations for communities in 

Monmouth county shown 'in Exhibit 3. The column titled "Current 

Property Tax Burden" is the residential tax burden expressed as a 

percentage of personal income. It is derived as follows: 

(total property tax levy) x (% residential property) 
-------------------------------------------------~~~~~X 100 
(avg. personal i11come per family) x (nwnber of families) 

This ratio is, in effect, a measure of the percentage of per­

sonal income paid as property taxes by the individual taxpayers of 

a community. 

We have deliberately excluded the commercial, 

industrial or business portion of the tax levy from the 

total to be credited as taxation for the property owner 

because, frankly, he doesn't pay that, someone else pays 

it. This will average out for communities that have a 

higher ratio of commercial-industrial property. 

It will be noted from Exhibit 3 that there is no 

correlation between the ratio of Equalized Valuation per 

Pupil and the Property Tax Burden ratio and an insignificant 

correlation between this tax burden ratio and the average 
income per family. 

For the reasons cited, we are opposed to any Tax 
Reform PlAn which would levy or distribute funds on the 

basis of equalized valuation of property per public school 
pupil. 

If additional funds are needed to comply with the 

mandate of the courts, they should be levied through an 

equitable graduated income tax and they should be dis­

tributed to the school districts on a uniform dollars 

per pupil basis, or weighted per pupil basis. 

The graduated income tax feature of Governor 

Byrne's proposed tax program appears to be an equitable 
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one and we therefore do not object to it. However, we 

are opposed to the business/commercial statewide property 

tax feature of his plan. We are also opposed to his 

dJ.stribution of funds on the basis of equalized valuation 

~er pupil because this is, in essence, placing a double 

l:urden on communities with a high burden of equalized 

valuc.tion per pupil. They are paying a high income tax 

and they are also being penalized a second time because 

the ratio in their town happens to be higher. 

OUr Committee has computed the equalized property 

tax rates which would result for various communities in 

l-'Ionmouth County if the State funds were to be distributed 

on the basis of $1,000 per public school pupil. That was 

an arbitrary figure. It is a figure which is a fairly 

reasonable one and it is a figure from which one can 

derive the impact of a different allocation rate. 

The calculations are listed in Exhibit 2 along 

with the equalized tax rate which would result from 

adoption of Governor Byrne's plan and the plan proposed by 

Assemblyman VanWagner, et al, in bill A-1644. 

It is wrong to attempt to cure all the financial 

ills of urban communities through subsidies for school 

costs, because it is obvious that there is no relation­
ship between many such ills and school c~sts. 

The other problems should be attacked by analyzing 

the causes and addre;3sing the cure to the cause. 

There are a number of federal and state programs 

which are intended fJr these purposes, such as Block 

Grants, Clean Cities, Urban Renewal, various environmental 

1mpact subaidies. Tuere may be expansions or variations 

uf these subsidies needed for communities, depending 

upon the plight they find themselves in. 

The mere fact that the local property tax rate 

varies from community to community should be no cause for 
concern. 
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Individual towns are structured differently and 

require different services. The tax rate goes up or 

down accordingly. 

Any drastic increase in tax rates of the more 

affluent communities will have a detrimental effect on the 

families in the median and lower income brackets. The 

result will be a migration of such families to communities 

with a more favorable tax rate, thereby further stratifying 

the communities on the basis of income level. This is 

contrary to basic constitutional objectives. 

We take note of the fact that as a prerequisite 

to any tax reform program, it is the duty of the Legislature 

to define thorough and efficient education in terms that 

are sufficiently specific to permit assignment of costs. 

This has not been done to date. 

That is the end of my statement. You will notice 

that I have rather elaborate and extensive tables which 

will give you a picture as to the effect and the impact 

of various proposals that are being presented to you 

for consideration. (see page72 A. ) 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Thank you, Mayor. Mindful 

as I am of the clock, I would like to ask you two 

questions. One is with reference to your suggestion that 

we apportion the school aid formula on an equal dollar 

value per student basis, I believe. 

MAYOR VACCARO: That's correct. 

ASSBMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Does that not imply that 

which the court specifically refused to find, to wit: 

that equal education means equal dollar expenditure? 

MAYOR VACCARO: Sir, you are losing sight of the 

fact that the funds will be raised through income tax 

and that's where the burden is shared equally. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: I appreciate that and I 

appreciate that that formula would solve a portion of 
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the theory behind the decision. There is QO question 

about that, at least with respect to the property tax. 

Wha.t I am asking is whether you feel comfortable with 

the assertion that an equal dollar expenditure per 

s~udent throughout the State will satisfy the constitutional 

m.~ndate of equality in the thoroughness and efficiency of 

the education? 

MAYOR VACCARO: I do, unless we can come up 

with somethi::1g better. Now I feel that the Governor's 

plan is certainly no better. The Governor's plan uses 

an arbitrary equalized valuation per pupil and that has 

absolutely no relationship to ability to pay. I think 

my tables will prove my point. 

ASSEr~LYMAN PERSKIE: All right. The second 

question I have deals with an area that you didn't cover 

in your statement but, in which, as a Mayor, I feel you 

might have some exnertise. As you know, a nart of this 
proposal contemplates, by statute and constitutional 

amendment, a limitation on the rise in effective tax 

rates for municipal and county purposes that has been 

specified, at least at the moment, at 6%. I wonder if 

you can give us, in the first instance, the recent 

experience of Allenhurst with respect to your effective 

tax rate increases o·rer the last several years and, second, 

whether or not you think Allenhurst could live within 

sL ~·h a limitation. 

MAYOR VACCARO: We are always in a very vulnerable 

position - all corrununities are. There are a number of 

fa::;t . ...,-:.:-s over which we have no control, that can, very 

·=:.'-astically, change \..he levei of the burden on the 

c :)rrununi ty. }\s an example--

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: We understand that. What 

nas been your experience in the last several years with 

respect t.o your effective tax rate? 
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MAYOR VACCARO: I was going to give you an example. 

As an example, we recently-- Last year we were assessed 

for additional tuition for our students. I should have 

mentioned this; we do not have a school. All our students 

are sent to a receiving district. So, the community -

Asbury Par~t - recomputed its school costs and billed 

us a substantial amount for prior school costs. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: I am talking about municipal 

purposes. 

MAYOR VACCARO: Oh, municipal purposes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Yes. 

MAYOR VACCARO: It would be very difficult for me to 

give you an opinion because our community is almost completely 

developed. We have no vacant land. 

But I can certainly see that in a community that. 

is developing - a community that is growing - this would 

pose a rather difficult burden on them. You would have 

influx of large populations. You could have industry 

move out. There could be a number of factors that would 

require additional taxation. For example, perhaps sewer 

lines would have to be extended~ new roads constructed--

SENATOR MERLINO: There would be additional 

ratables. You would only have to extend them if you 

had more ratables. 

MAYOR VACCARO: But you don't get the ratables 

until some time later. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Thank you. Does anybody 

else on tne Committee have any further questions? 

{no questions) 

Mayor, Thank you very much for your testimony. 

The next witness will be Brian Baxter, the 

Business Administrator for the City of Trenton. 

B R I A N B A X T E R: Thank you very much, Mr. 

Chairman, Members of the Committee. I must apologize 

for not having a witten statement. I would like to take 
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the opportunity to present that to you tomorrow or the 

next day when we get a chance to get it typed up. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: It will be included in the 

transcript. 

MR. BAXTER: Thank you very much. I am here today 

representing Mayor Holland, who is with Mayor Hart, Mayor 

Gibson and a number of other Mayors in San Diego this 

week at the U. S. Conference of Mayors. 

SENATOR MERLINO: At the taxpayers expense? 

MR. BAXTER: Yes, at the taxpayers expense, as was 

discussed in the papers this morning. I am the guy who 

got left behind to do the work. 

Let me say that we, in Trenton, appear before you 

today as a very strong advocate of both comprehensive tax 

reform and better education financing in the State. 

We have had a chance to look at the Administration's 

proposal in its entirety and although we have a few sug­

gestions to make to the Committee today, we feel very 

strongly that the Governor's approach to the problems of 

both education financing and tax reform are a very, very 

good approach. 

So, I want to make it clear that while we have 

suggestion;;. to make that we think may be of use to the 

Ccmmittee, we are very, very strong supp0rters of the 

income tax,as the most fair tax,and of the municipal 

overburden portions of the Governor's proposal. 

I don't want to give anyone the idea that since 

we make so:rne suggest !.ons and comments that we don't 

think that the Governor's approach is the best overall 

approach. 

ASSE~BLYMAN PERSKIE: Mr. Baxter, I wonder if I 

.nisL!: just: interrupt to ask you, when you are covering 

your specifics, if you would please address yourself to the 

same question that I just asked Mayor Vaccaro with respect 
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to the experience of Trenton and the viability - as far 

as Trenton is concerned - of the proposed 6% limitation 

on municipal--

MR. BAXTER: Assemblyman Perskie, maybe I could 

start there. This is an area where we felt we had some­

thing to contribute to the Committee. 

In communities like Trenton, Newark, East Orange, 

and other places where you have declining ratables, or 

almost the same ratables from year to year, and you also 

have inflation - we have to pay our employees a fair 

wage and if t~e inflation is increasing 6%, 7%, 8% a year, 

we need to be able to pay our employees an additional 

6%, 7%, 8% as that inflation occurs - and have to meet 

the cost of electricity, fuel, postage, and this kind of 

thing, the cap of either 6% or 3% is really irrelevant in 

this sense, in communities - the older central cities -

only about 40% of the total revenues in the budget come 

from the property tax. So, let's say you want to give 

the police and firemen a 6% increase, next year in 1975, 
you would need to increase your property taxes,if the 

other revenues were the same, by 14% in order to pay for 

that 6% increase for the cops and firemen - or the teachers, 

or you name it. 

So, we support, on balanc~, t~e cap, or the lid, 

on the property tax because we feel that the taxpayers 
of places like Trenton around the State ought to have 

protection against having the government come back in a 

few years and make that money up again, which would most 

certainly happen. We think that the taxpayers ought 

to be protected so that they can continue to invest in 

their homes - they can fix up, they can spend money on 

their homes without getting hurt. 

We are not in a position today to take--

We don't care whether it is 3% or 6%, we are saying to 
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you that either one is so far out of line with the needs 

in a place where you don•t have increasing ratables and 

where a large percentage of the revenues are fixed -

are non-property tax revenues - that the Corrunittee is going 

to have to put some kind of a lid on property taxes. If 

the people are going to be protected from large increases 

in tl.e property taxes in the next few years, there has to 

be some kind of other formula, grant,. or some kind of 

other revenues coming from the State to municipalities. 

We are going to be wards of the State under this 

program at a cap of 6% or 3% and we think that what is 

going to be needed is some kind of formula so that we can 

rRise our total budgets realistically, justifiably, year 

to year. W6 think tl::e cap is a good idea but there is 

going to have to be some kind of other municipal aid 

formula, some kind of grant program to make that up. 

SENATOR MERLINO: Mr. Baxter, you don•t feel it 

lS irresponsible to put a cap on then do you? 

MR. BAXTER: No. We think it is a protection for 

the taxpayer. 

SENATOR MERLINO: I•m glad the Mayor is in San 

Diego and you are he~e. The Mayor issued a statement 

that it was rather irresponsible to place a cap of even 

6% on this. Unders+::.anding that there v;..~..ll be a proposal 

calling for block gr,mts whic:i:;. would take up the slack, just 

d~ yuu have explainer it here -- of course, a cap of 

even 3 percent reall.y wouldn't damage or hurt the cities 

like the City of TreJton or any of the larger cities,would 

it? 

MR. BAXTER: Nu. A 3% cap as opposed to a 6% 

cc.1·" v _.;_._Jd on 1 y make that block grant greater from the State. 

-~- tl.ctt i.> going to be financed through the income tax 
) 

t~.n the sys·tem is better. 

If 2: coulci interpret for the Mayor for a 
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moment--

SENATOR MERLINO: No, you speak for yourself. 

You are do~ng very well. 

MR. BAXTER: I think what the Mayor meant - and I 

would agree w~th him - was that if you have a cap without 

some type of other formula grant on an annual basis then 

it wouldn't work. 

SENATOR MERLINO: So it~ just irresponsibility 

when you say things and you don't know all of what you 

are saying'? 

MR. BAXTER: Well, I wouldn't--

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: That's a leading question 

and as an attorney I would advise you not to answer it. 

MR. BAXTER: I would like to say also, Senator, 

that we talked about two different block grants in this 

proposal. One was the black grant that was discussed 

very early by the Administration which would reduce further 

the overall taxes of the older cities. That would reduce 

it, as I understand Trenton's rate, maybe by another 10 or 15%. 

We obviously ~upport that kind of thing because of the 

very high taxes that people in the older central cities 

have had to pay for all these years. But no matter how 

far down the tax rates of some communities go, you are 

still going to have the problem even if you include the 

initial overburden - the original municipal grant that 

was included in the Governor's proposal - a:ven if you 

include that, you are going to have to have a second 

kind of formula that kicks in year in and year out to 

give municipalities that don't have ratable growth some 

opportunity to pay for~ services. Otherwise, what is 

going to happen, in the not too distant future, as the 

Legislature takes a look at 1087 - the PERC Bill - is 

that, if we have a cap, let's say, of 6% and therefore 

the City of Trenton is able to offer to its policemen and 
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firemen anQ municipal employees, an increase of 2% 

next year - or 2~~, which is all we will be able to 

afford - we aTe going to be hauled in under PERC for 

unfair labor practices for refusing to negotiate in 

good faith, or we are going to have a strike, or something 

like that. 

We are not going to be able at all - I am talking 

about something that could happen in February - to operate. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Is that really a fair comment? 

In the first place, the reference to a strike, it seems to 

me, would be misplaced and in the second place the issue 

would be, before any such hearing, the question of negotiation 

i~ good faith. If in fact there were such a statutory and/or 

constitutional limitation~ that wouldn 1 t affect Trenton•s 

good faith, would it? 

MR. BAXTER: Well, that is something that would 

be hard to say. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Obviously. 

MR. BAXTER: I think that is an important 

concern on our part, as the PERC legislation goes through 

at the same time. But one way or the other, it is important 

that we pay fair wages. Our employees receive so much less 

for the same work as people in County government, State 

government, and the surrounding municipaiities that we 

have to pay 6%, 7%, 8% per year just to keep the gap 

between our s2.laries and other government salaries the 

same. 

ASSEMBLYMAN : ERSKIE: O.K. We have a number of 

members of the Cornmit.tee, Mr. Baxter, that have some questions. 

Mr. Brown, I think, was first. 

A.SS'·'I'VJ.BLYMAN BROlit"N: Mr. Baxter, did I understand -

""'· am not sure - are you in favor of a ceiling of any type? 

MR. BAXTER: Yes. We think that the cap on the 

real estate taxes is protection for the taxpayer. It 

assures that the investment that needs to take place in 

those homes takes place. Otherwise the State or someone 
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is going to be faced with very expensive urban renewal 

costs later as we rebuild every home there that there is. 

ASSEMBLYIV'.AN BROWN: Are you saying that most of the 

Mayors are in favor of the 6%? 

MR. BPXTER: I am speaking here for Trenton only. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BROWN: Only for Trenton? 

MR. BAXT.E:R: That's right. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: And then only for a part 

of Trenton? 

MR. BAXTER: Well, we don't speak for the legis­

lative bra~ch, if that's what you are talking about. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Mr. Macinnes? 

ASSEMBLYMAN MAC INNES: I don't want to keep 

harping on this but as I understand what you said, you 

are in favor of the cap as long as there is a municipal 

aid program. 

MR. BAXTER: Absolutely. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MAC INNES: Which takes up the necessary 

increases in Trenton's budget over and beyond whatever cap 

might be in~osed? 

MR. DAXTER: That's right. You can't have one 

without the other. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MAC INNES: So, presumably--

MR. BAXTER: That's what would be irresponsible. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MAC INNES: What cap would be imposed 

thereby on Trenton as it negotiates if it knows that any 

increase over a particular percent, whether it be 6 or 3 

percent, is going to be picked up through a block grant 

program from the State fiom negotiating 13 and 14 percent 

increases? 

MR. BAXTER: We have a proposal that is not in 

written form yet but the concept that we would like to 

suggest is that the amount of state aid - municipal aid 

from the state - would be tied to the average budget 
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increase actoss the State per capita. 

In•other wor~s, if the average municipal budget 

across the state goes up 8% - as they have been, 8%, 9% 

10% - the communities that have no ratable growth and 

that have pretty much static resident sources, be allowed 

to increase their expenditures by the state average, what­

ever that might be. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MAC INNES: As an alternative to the 

per.centage limit on the tax rate increase itself? 

MR. BAXTER: Yes, we'd like to keep the property 

tax where it is because what has happened-- Once it is 

reduced as far as we can reduce it, one of the biggest 

problems we have in places like Trenton - I know Senator 

Merlino is very well aware of this - is that people just 

won't invest in their homes. We are having what I call 

a "dry rot" happening in places like Trenton and Newark 

and other places, where the homes are just not being 

repaired, not being fixed up. You are going to have a 

need to invest an awful lot of money in these homes in the 

future if we don't lift and keep lifted the property tax 

burden on these homes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MAC INNES: If you had the cap based 

on an allowable increase in budget based on some cost of 

living figure, or based on average.budget increases, would 

you still tie your support to that kind of capping to some 

block grant or municipal aid program ~hich would pick up 

automatically throug.'l the state some percentage of the 

increase in Trenton? 

NR. BAXTER: I didn't follow that. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MAC INNES: We have two things. I 

·jon' t w·ant to take up a lot of time, Mr. Chairman. 

One, is the percentage limit on the tax rate 

increase, 3 or 6 percent. 

MR. BAXTER: That's arbitrary, you can choose 

whatever you like. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN MAC INNES: The other is an increase 

that would be based not on the increase of the tax rate 

but, instead, based on a cost of living or on the average 

increase in budge'te across the State. Let's say that is 

8 percent. 

MR. BAXTER: Right. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MAC INNES: It would be one or the 

other, correct? 

both? 

MR. BAXTER: We would like to have both. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MAC INNES: You would like to have 

MRJ BAXTER: In other words, you would have a 

ceiling on what the property taxes could be raised each 

year, whether it is 3% or 6%. In either case, the City 

of Trenton and the other Cities of Newark, etc., are going 

to have to increase their budgets by, let's say, 8%. In 

order to get an 8% increase in Newark's budget, or Trenton's 

budget, you need to raise the property tax, for example, 

20%. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MAC INNES: Right. 

MR. BAXTER: We can't possibly-- Three and six 
percent are so much below 20% that it is ridiculous. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MAC INNES: It would be unconstitutional 

if the Governor's program went through, right? 

MR. BAXTER: That's true. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MAC INNES: So, you are in favor of 

the cap but you would see the difference and in this 

example it would be the difference between 8% allowable 

and the 20% you would have to tax in order to meet that? 

MR. BAXTER: Right, we are against the 20%. The 

20% is not fair. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MAC INNES: But the remainder would 

be picked up by the State, is that correct? 

MR. BAXTER: That's right. In a sense, Assemblyman, 

we have had in the past a series of emergency block grants 

that have done exactly what I am proposing,on a regular 
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basis. We had urban aid in 1969. We had urban aid in 1971. 

We had general revenue snaring in 1973. We an increase 

in urban aid for this year. We have had a hodge-podge 

of emergency, last minute, grants of the same kind I am 

talking about. 

What I am saying is that we ought to put that 

under some kind of a. fair formula basis, rather than 

forcing cities that don•t have any ratable growth and 

t.hat have static revenue to come back and plea to the 

legislature,every yea~ for survival. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MAC INNES: So you would not see an 

end to the urban aid program in the event that the 

Governor•s tax program went through as proposed, with its 

substantial drop in d::c effective tax rate for the city 

of Trenton? 

MR. BAXTER: Absolutely. That•s one of my major 

points. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MAC INNES: Absolutely - yes or no? 

MR. BAXTER: Absolutely I agree with you that there 

would be no way to have an end to aid programs for com­

munities like Trenton, Newark, etc. I don•t know that 

much about Paterson or Elizabeth. 

We are not having any increase in revenue sour~es -

or ratables. The ratables in Trenton have gone down in 

the last years. We have to raise the tax rate just to 

raise the same amount of money as we had last year because 

of expenditures. 

So, until we have the same kind of ratable growth 

as some of the gentlemen here have been talking about -

~oJ::.atevride-- 1 heard 12% mentioned here today and other 

-·-'· _;~..:::. l.i.k that. If Trenton had 100% of its revenues 

. .::1:·om property taxes and ratables were increasing by 12% 

a year, I could go to work somewhere else. 

But the problem is that we don•t have any ratable 

88 



• 

growth and citi~s like Trenton are wards of the State 

now, on a hodge-podge basis. I am saying, if you are 

going to put a cap on we think it is a good idea because 

it protects the taxpayers but you are going to have to 

recognize that we are wards of the State and there is going 

to have to be some way of keeping us alive • 

ASSEMBLYMAN MAC INNES: Okay. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Are there any further questions? 

(no questions) 

Thank you very much, Mr. Baxter, we appreciate your 

time and your testimony. 

MR. BAXTER: Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Bernard Yarusavage? 

Again, if there is a prepared statement - as I see 

there is,Mayor- we would appreciate it if you would give 

us a brief summary of the content of the statement which, 

I assure you, will be included in the transcript. 

MAYOR BERNARD Y A R U S A V A G E: Chairman 

Perskie, Ladies and Gentlemen of the Assembly, Ladies and 

Gentlemen in the audience, I thank Betty Wilson for her 

kind invitation to attend this meeting and to testify 

at these public hearing5on the Governor's Tax Reform 

Proposal. 

As a representative of the people of Clark, New 

Jersey, of the 22nd District, I must voice our protest 

against th~s series of bills that would create income taxes 

and place adJitional financial costs on our people. 

We couldn't sent our Mayor to San Diego. We are 

a small town. The formula for reduction of property tax 

in our municipality by the proposed 23.1%, is unrealistic 

as our local school costs are 71% of our budget. Based 

on average income figures, the proposed income tax would 

cost the citizens more than $500 each year. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Excuse me, Mayor, at this 
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point may I briefly interrupt to ask you what the 

average income of Clark is? 

MAYOR YARUSAVAGE: $15,000 as of the 1970 census. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: And you conclude that that 

would cost your families $500 a year? 

MAYOR YARUSAVAGE: Yes, sir. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: I just want to indicate -

certainly you will be permitted to finish the rest of 

your testimony - that as far as the Committee is concerned 

that figure i~ substantially in error. 

MAYOR YARUSAVAGE: The average income of Clark, 

sir? 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: No, the proposed income tax 

burden of $500, based on that figure. You may proceed. 

MAYOR YARUSAVAGE: This is a sizeable tax increase 

rather tha~ a remedy. 

Th~s abominable tax plan is another attempt to take 

away horne rule from the local municipalities. We, the 

elected representatives of the people, violently object 

to further erosion of local autonomy. I am certain that 

all of the 560 municipalities throughout New Jersey share 

this philosophy. 

There are many phases of the tax proposal that have 

not been explained nor explored. I must present some of 

my comments in the form of questions, questions in the 

minds of our people. 

Will the State negotiate one master contract 

for teachers' salaries? 

Who will hire the teachers? Who will evaluate them, 

promote them? 

Will teaching jobs also become political plums? 

How will the State reconcile local school board 

indebtedness? 

What will happen to financial commitments to 

regional school districts? 
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budgets? 

Will the State dictate methods of instruction? 

Who will evaluate local school needs and annual 

What ~ill such outside evaluators cost? It is 

done by non-paid volunteers now. 

Will educational researchers have to be employed 

to investigate new innovations? 

Would we have any guarantee that these experts would 

be hired from within our State? 

Do the new proposed omnipotent State agencies intend 

to equalize pay for all teachers with one uniform set of 

pay grades? 

Does the State believe that higher teacher salaries 

mean quality education? In Newark, New Jersey, the teachers 

receive the highest salaries in the State and, yet, the 

Newark schools have one of the lowest ratings. 

Under this new proposed system, the school district 

lines will be the State borders! The needs, wishes and 

inherent l.:>cal problems are not the same and no fair means 

is provided to allow for adjustments. 

We do need alternatives to the ever-rising costs 

of government. An income tax is not the only answer. 

Besides looking for new revenue sources, certain economies 

must be explored. 

The income tax plan is not fair nor feasible. It 

shouts for help for 550 million dollars for the schools 

and hides t.he request for 190 million for welfare! ! 

There has been a careful avoidance by the Administra­

tion to mention how much it would cost to implement and 

maintain a State Income Tax. People will have to be hired 

to work as collectors, accountants, evaluators, investi­

gators, prosecutors and there will be more money, tax 

money, spent for office space, printing and supplies, 

including many motor vehicles. 

Some other suggestions that I would like to 
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submit to your Honorable Body would include, curb and 

cut State spending. Stop the creation of new executive 

positions, such as State Senator James Dugan's plan to 

expand the various commissions by some 2,000 people!! 

One of these is to enlarge the New Jersey Highway 

A·,.lthority by four members and then salary that Authority 

at $3~,500 per member. 

Let's get the Port Authority out of the real estate 

investment and rental field and back into the transporta­

tion business. 

Now is the time for constitutional amendments and 

possibly for a full constitutional convention. 

Then such measures as the proposed spending limit 

could be imposed on the State of New Jersey,as outlined 

by the Federation of the New Jersey Taxpayers,and could be 

implemented in a realistic manner. 

The entire tax structure could be overhauled to 

give us dedicated tax accounts instead of the uncontrollable 

sugar bowl we now call the State Treasury. 

We need accountability and responsibility, not just 

a report-after-the-fact system. 

The Constitution might be amended in the areas that 
have raised the question of constitutionality in the State 
Supreme Court and have forced a stand be taken as in the 

Batter Decj.sion, which only implies that it is unconsti tu­

tional to use property tax money to finance public schools! 

In any case, ladies and gentlemen, you owe an 

obligation to us, your constituents, to review all the 

factors involved. If you have reasonable doubt, as we do, 

t.hat chis tax package is not practical, not pali tc;tble and 

only a step-gap measure and not a remedy, then you must 

_eject it. 

If you want assurances from the public-at-large, 

I challenge you to place the question of a State Income 
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Tax for New Jersey on the ballot as a public referendum 

question in November and let the people speak. 

(applause) 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Mayor, in the first instance, 

to respond to one of your comments--

MALOR YARUSAVAGE: May I finish, please? 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Oh, I'm sorry, I thought 

you were. 

MAYOR YARUSAVAGE: No. On June 17, 1974 the 

Municipal Council of the Township of Clark passed a 

resolution which was forwarded to this Honorable Body 

and the Governor saying that they were unalterably opposed 

to State Income Tax. I will not read the entire resolution 

as you have copies of it. I would appreciate it being 

inserted into the record. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: It will be. 

MAYOR YARUSAVAGE: I would like, also, to read a 

statement on behalf of the Independent Laboratory Employees' 

Union of Linden, New Jersey. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Mayor, if you will, rather 

than read the statement, if you will--

MAYOR YARUSAVAGE: It is very brief, sir. 

ASSEM~LYMAN PERSKIE: Proceed. 

MAYOR YARUSAVAGE: Thank you, sir. 

As President of the Union, I'd like to read the 
following statement: On behalf of the membership of the 

Independent Laboratory Employees Union, which is the 

bargaining agency for Exxon Research Engineering Company 

employees, I would like to voice our opposition to the 

income tax proposal. 

We feel that such a tax would discourage new 

commercial enterprises from coming to New Jersey and might 

even have the adverse effect of causing some local industries 

to move out. The loss of jobs and employment potential 

would be disasterous for the working man and jeopardize 
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the economy of the entire State. 

In the Linden area alone, as an example, the 

property tax rate would increase $3.00 per hundred. 

A state income tax would be a serious erosion 

of 11 take-home pay 11 and add another burden to the bread­

winner without a guarantee of tax relief. 

Homes with more than one wage earner, which have 

become a necessity in this inflationary economy, would 

be doubly burdened. Most of these working couples are 

putting their children through college at their own expense 

because the State of New Jersey has failed to provide 

sufficient me2.ns of higher education opportunities for its 

citizens. Do not add to their hardship of raising and 

educating their families. 

There is a great concern that State take-over of 

education administration will mean the decline of quality 

education and political appointments of teachers, rather than on 

hiring based on qualification and local needs. 

We urge you to postpone action on the income tax 

plan until a competent study can be made of the impact it 

threatens. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Mayor, first of all, with 

regard to your assertion that there has been a careful 
avoidance to discuss the administrative cost, if you had 
attended any of the prior meeting~ you would have heard 

that discussed in detail. There is an appropriation in 

the Bill, 187 5, in tlte amount of $6 million which, it has 

been estimated., constitutes the administrative costs. 

The second thing, with respect to the municipality 

or Clark in the County of Union, you indicate that an 

av·erage income is in the neighborhood of $15 thousand. 

~.- :::orJing to figures that I have, the proposed income tax 

ba.sed on that income for a family of four with standard 

and average deductions is approximately $275, as opposed 

t~ the $SOC figure that you mentioned. 

Numb€r three, according to figures that I have 
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the residents of Clark Township, with the proposals 

submitted by the Administration, would have a reduction 

of total tax ranging from substantial to slight for all 

taxpayers with gross incomes of $9 thousand or less and 

for some taxpayers up to as high as $13 and $14 thousand, 

depending, of course, on the value of the property in which 

they reside. 

MAYOR YARUSAVAGE: Assemblyman, if I may correct 

one figure, I am sorry, our average Township salary is 

$16,000. The average tax bill paid is $1,200 a year. 

Seventy-one percent of that is school budget, which would 

come to $852. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: What is the average assessment, 

do you know, Mayor? 

MAYOR YARUSAVAGE: The average assessment? 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Yes. 

MAYOR YARUSAVAGE: Do you mean our tax rate? 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: No, the average residential 

assessment. Do you have any idea? 

MAYOR YARUSAVAGE: Property value? 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Yes. 

MAYOR YARUSAVAGE: Total property value or average? 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Average. 
MAYOR YARUSAVAGE: The mean average would be 

somewhere between $30 and $40 thousand. 
ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: $30 and $40. 

MAYOR YARUSAVAGE: Per horne. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: In that case you would 

effectuate tax savings if _you couple all the Administration's 

programs pllt together. You would effectuate tax savings for 
. c. 

everybody with an income of certainly below $13~000 - although 

the computer print-out that I have doesn't have it here -

and to some small extent higher than $13f000. 

MAYOR YARUSAVAGE: I don't wish to debate the 

issue with you but these figures I have were based on 
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calculations from our Tax Assessor. 

As I say, local needs and wants of the people, I 

think,are foreign to many of you because you are up here 

in Trenton. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Well, they are not foreign. 

Each of us come.from a locality, remember. We don't come 

from the State. That is the reason I am trying to personalize 

these figures with respect to Clark Township, rather than 

give you some sort of meaningless statistic on a statewide 

average. 

I don't know, other than what you told me here today, 

what your average income or average assessment in Clark 

Township is. But I do know, based on the proposals that 

have been submitted, what the effects of these proposals 

upon the various taxpayers of Clark Township would be 

and that is what I am trying to give you here. 

I don't know where you come by your figures, possibly 

from some of the inaccurate reports that have been made 

in the press and in other areas. 

The proposals are quite complicated, as I am sure 

you are aware. The income tax figures are imposed, and the 

rates are imposed only after a great number of deductions 

and credits are computed and allowed and after a rather 

sophisticated system of real estate tax limitation is con­

sidered, knowr_ as the Guaranteed Property Tax Limitation -

and 1n the newspaper[: as the "circuit breaker". 

So, considering the effect of all of those programs, 

the figures are as I have indicated to you. I don't know 

whether, if at all, those revised figures would have an 

e~fect on either your position or that of the Township 

Committee cr Council. They may not have but I think that 

~._ least 1r. the consideration that you are giving it, which 

lS obviously very careful and very thoughtful, that you 

should at least have access to the correct figures. 

MAYOR YARUSAVAGE: I will be glad to recheck my 
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figures and contact you. But I can tell you that a State 
Income Tax means to the average citizen in Clark, 

certainly, an increase in tax dollars. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: I am trying to suggest to 

you that it 1s not, sir. I am also trying to suggest 

that I have access - or we have access - to the figures, 

based on the entire program. I don't submit that that 
argument applies to all 567 municipalities but I do 

submit it applies to Clark. 

MAYOR YARUSAVAGE: May I take your remarks then 
back to my people and say that you will guarantee that 

the State Income Tax will mean they will get a reduction 

in their overall taxes? 
ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: For every citizen in Clark? 

Absolutely not. But you may take it, for example, that 

the citizen with a $13,000 income and a $40,000 home will, 

yes. 
MAYOR YARUSAVAGE: The average is a little bit 

higher than that though, Assemblyman. 
ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Well, the reason I picked 

the $13,000 is because that is the column I have here. 

The citizen-- As a matter of fact, it is an exact break 
even here for the citizen with a $17,000 income and a 
$50,000 home. He breaks exactly even, according to this. 
There is a $335 property tax reduction and a $335 income 
tax imposition -which is a 11wash 11 • 

Now, presumably, that means that if his income 
is slightly less than that~ less than the $17,000-

and he is living in that home, he is going to make out 
a little bit better, but I don't have that on my print-out. 

MAYOR YARUSAVAGE: I will be glad to get the 

figures for you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Okay. If you check with 

Assemblywoman Wilson I am sure that she will have access 
to this. If she does- have ---access to- this, -! . am sure she 

will make it available to you. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Does any other member of 

the Committee have any questions? 

ASSEMBLYMAN CONTILLO: Mr. Chairman? 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Yes, Mr. Contillo? 

ASSEMBLYMAN CONTILLO: I think that the table 

that the Mayor got the $500 from is taxable income. 

In other words, the chart thatrwas reproduced in the 

newspaper was referring to taxable income, so that if 

someone in your community had a taxable income of between 

$15 and $17 thousand then they would pay $500 in income 

tax. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: That is without respect, first, 

to exemptions and deductions and second, to the real estate 

property tax limitation, or the so-called "circuit breaker", 

which comes in as an override against any income tax. 

MAYOR YARUSAVAGE: We worked up the figures based 

on the "circuit breaker" amendment that we read you had 

inserted. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Which, parenthetically, I 

might note, Mayor, also, for your further discussions, is 

under consideration in the Committee for amendment with a 

view toward increasing its applicability~ that is, to 

bring the percentage rates down to make it more available 
to more pecple, which would, again, have a negative effect 
on the income tax liability. In other words, it would 
make the income tax liability smaller for a greater number 

of people. T~at•s at least the way the Committee wants 

to go; now whether we can come up with the money to fund 

it remains to be seen. 

We do appreciate your time and your, obviously, 
t~;oug~:ycful efforts. 

Assemblyman Brown, do you have a question? 

ASSEMBLYMAN BROWN: Thank you. Mayor, how 

would the 6% ceiling affect you? Would you be in favor 
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of that as the Mayor of a town? 

MAYOR YARUSAVAGE: It would be great if we could 

have a 6% ceiling on all spending~ that would include 

state, county,local. But I don•t think we can guarantee 

anybody anything, anymore than you can guarantee that 

my people ~re going to have a tax reduction. 

For instance, in Clark, we are still at the stage of 

development I would say we are about 85% developed. 

However, if the township•s outlook on growth changes and 

we are suddendly hit with more people, or highrise buildings, 

then we would have to consider such things as a paid fire 

department and that would impose a tremendous burden on 

the taxpayers. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BROWN: Well, as a Mayor, how would 

you guaran·cee the property owners some type of relief -

instead of an increase in taxes, etc.? What would you 

do on an administrative level to try to maintain the 

taxes? 

MAYOR YARUSAVAGE: On the administrative level I 

would certainly pledge to operate as efficiently as possible 

and to enforce all the laws that are passed by the legis­

lature in an efficient manner. It would take a combination 

of efforts by the Council and by the Mayor•s office to do 

all of this. We can•t ignore the roles of the State Govern­

ment or County Government in this area. 

I come before you hoping that you, with your 

expertise at the State level, can come up with a better 

plan and alternate measures of relief for us. If you 

give us the laws, we will certainly enforce them to the 

best of our ability. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BROWN: Thank you very much. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Thank you, Mayor, we appreciate 

your corning. 

MAYOR YARUSAVAGE: Thank you. I will be very happy 

to recheck those figures if you promise me you will re­

evaluate your position on the income tax. Thank you. 
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(applause) 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: All right. Frankly, 

we don•t have enough time to delay the proceedings 

and we would appreciate it if the members of the audience 

\\'ill refrain from any such demonstrations. 

Our next witness will be Hannah R. Tindall of the 

Leadership Foundation. 

H A N N A H R. T I ND A L L: Chairmen Perskie and 

M3rlino and the Honorable Ladies and Gentlemen of this 

Assembly and citizens, the New Jersey Leadership Foundation 

is deeply concerned that the right of everyone to a free 

education has been infringed upon by a group of education 

dictators who lack total honesty and integrity. 

Our problem is the lack of quality education in 

spite of extravagant school buildings and the millions of 

dollars that are spent on education. Educational Testing 

Service has test result figures to prove our educationalists 

are failing in their job to educate and scores are alarmingly 

going down. 

Our tax spending in New Jersey increased twenty-two 

times more than the population between 1965 and 1970. 

We want to know why? 

We, in New Jersey, are second or third in the 

nation on dollars spent per student and second only to 

New York City. 

The average .vorking man and taxpayer cannot stand 

another tax increase in any area. We must strive to cut 

State budgets and expenditures. 

We question the Botter Decision's constitutionality 

a3 we feel judges are le~islating instead of interpreting 

and we must expose the Trenton bureaucracy for what it is 

J9coming - a body unreceptive to the voice of the people. 

You men and women, our representatives, must refuse to 

support new taxes in any form! 

There is a brochure being handed out to school 

pupils this week entitled "Focus Education". It is 
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backed by the New Jersey Association of School Boards, 

the League of Women Voters, New Jersey Education Associa­

tion and the New Jersey Association of P.T.A.'s, among 

others. We believe this to be illegal as the pro's of 

the Governor's tax reform are being distributed through the 

schools and through devious wording, this brochure does 

not deny that taxation through the State Tax will give the 

State control of subject matter as well as administration 

of our schools, thereby taking real control away from 

local school toards of education. Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Thank you very much. Are 

there any questions? 

ASSEMBLYMAN MAC INNES: I just have one question. 

Mrs. Tindall- excuse my ignorance,ma'an- but can you just 

tell me what the Leadership Foundation is? I am not 

familiar with it. 

MRS. TINDALL: The Leadership Foundation is a group 

of women who are alarmed about what is happening in our 

State Government and the lack of total enlightenment of 

our Assemblymen and Legislators. 

Martha Roundtree in Washington, who is associated 

with Meet the Press,has started the Leadership Foundation 

in the United States and she is getting women together 

from states - separate states - and is trying to get 

leadership in each county. It has just been formed in 

New Jersey since February. So, we are a new organization. 

The President's name is Mrs. Susan B. Tovey and 

she resides at 655 Summit Avenue, Franklin Lakes, New Jersey. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: I think your keeping up with 

the lack of enlightenment, I think you said - the total 

enlightenment - of the members of the Senate and Assembly 

might be a rather time consuming operation. 

MRS. TINDALL: It is tedious. We realize you men 

have a big job but we also realize that the squeaky wheel 

is getting the grease, and the League of Women Voters is 

a squeaky wheel on the liberal side and we are not terribly 
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conservative but we just feel that the public and you, 

as well, are not getting the whole truth. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Well, I think in the 

interest of the edification of the members of the public 

1.1.rho are with us, it , might be very apropos at this time 

t.o introduce as .the next witness, Mary Nash who represents 

the I.eague of Women Voters. 

Mrs. Tindall, I 1m sorry, Assemblyman Brown did 

want to ask you a question. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BROWN: Madam, how many members do 

you have in your organization? 

MRS. TINDALL: That figure I am not sure of yet. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BROWN: In New Jersey? 

MRS. TINDALL: In New Jersey? I don•t even have 

that figure yet. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BROWN: And is your organization more­

or less opposed to the League of Women Voters? Did I 

understand you to say that? 

MRS. TINDALL: Only the fact that they pretend 

to be unbiased and are not. 

MARY 

ASSEMBLYMAN BROWN: Okay. Thank you very much. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Mrs. Nash? 

N A S H: I would like to respond to the previous 
witness but I won•t. 

I am Mary Nash, Fiscal Policy Chairman for the 

League of Women Voters of New Jersey, representing over 

9,000 members throughout the State. We thank you very 

much for this opportJ.nity to appear before you. 

Our June 13th letter to all members of the 

Legislature stated our position on the Governor•s 

proposals, along with some of the reasons for our sup­

~ort. There is no need to repeat that here but we would 

like to make one suggestion relating to the cap on 

municipal and county property taxes. 

We believe limits based on tax rates are inequitable 
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because: {1) poor districts cannot raise as much money 

with a 6% increase in tax rates as wealthy districts~ (2) 

in most districts property valuations are increasing rapidly 

due to inflation so the net effect is a much higher limit 

on spending~ and (3} in some districts, usually those most 

in need of local services, property valuations are declining 

so the actual limit would be less than 6%. Therefore, 

we believe any such limits should be based on spending 

rather than rates. 

We recommend that you remove school property tax rate limits from 8CR.l21 and 8.1246, 

leaving only county and municipal limits based on spending. To meet the constitu­

tional mandate, it is clear disparities in school spending must be reduced. The 

education bill, 8.1256, is designed to make a start on this by setting variable 

limits on increased spending for the next two years. Putting limitations in the 

constitution now, before the effect of these limits in reducing disparities can 

be evaluated, may prevent us from carrying out the constitutional mandate. The 

Joint Education Committne anticipates the need for future reconsideration to insure 

both educational equality and reasonable property tax limits. We recommend no 

further limits at this time beyond those in the education bill. 

Our letter commented on our opposition to a statewide property tax and our concerns 

regarding increased business taxes. We also included information on classification 

of property. An earlier letter on June 6th included other information about state 

property taxes. If you haven't had time to read these yet, we understand. However, 

we believe you will find them useful and hope you will find time to consider them. 

A proposal not covered in our letters concerns a reduction in the sales tax. The 

League would have to oppose using income taxes to replace sales taxes instead of 

replacing property taxes. However, we would support an increase in the proposed 

income tax to replace part of the sales tax as long as that is in addition to the 

proposed property tax reductions. We would prefer a further reduction in property 

taxes but a reduction in the sales tax appears more concrete and believable to most 

people. And, of course~ the income tax is preferable to the sales tax. 

We have purposely kept this short so as not to take your time unnecessarily and to 

allow time for any questions you might have. Thank you again for this opportunity 

to· present our views. (see page 76 A ) 
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ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Thank you. I would have but 

one question, at least initially, and that concerns itself 

with the 6% limitation. If we key that into actual expendi­

ture, how do we allow for the situation where a municipality, 

e :.ther by reason of expanding population or necessary 

expanded services, is going to have-- while an effective 

tax rate is going to stay relatively equal,by reason of 

expanding ratables,its actual spending is going to inc~ease 

substantially. 

MRS. NASH: Yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: The proposal is to place 

a property tax limitation based on dollar expenditure rather 

than tax rates. I wonder whether that takes into account 

the community that may have an expanding ratable base and 

thereby an expanding need for services and has an absolute 

dollar increase while, because of the ratable increase, the 

tax rate stays the same. 

MRS. NASH: I don't think we are talking about an 

absolute dollar limit, but a percentage. If your assessment 

increases-- Now, let's see-- I don't know. Maybe we need 

to put this on a per capita basis or something of that sort. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: That was a suggestion that, 

likewise, was made before the Committee and is under con­

sideration. 

Does any other member of the committee have any 

questions? 

(no questions) 

Thank you, Mr • Nash, we appreciate your forebearance 

and your testimony as well. 

Dorothy Bayless from the Lawrence Township Non­

D.J.:.c,_ ~ ."5 u r::·.:~.xpayers Association. 

._/ D R 0 T H Y B A Y L E S S: To start with, I think 

we could enjoy a little laugh here. Everything has been 

so serious. This is from an editorial. 11 A long time ago 
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France's free-spending King Louis XIV put taxation this way: 
1 The art of taxation consists in so plucking the goose as 

to obtain the largest amount of feathers with the least 

amount of squawking.'" I feel sorry for you. 

SENATOR MERLINO: If I can reply to that, the plan 

as the Governor proposed it, takes no new feathers but 

has produced a large amount of squawking. 

MS. BAYLESS: I will skip some of this. We feel 

the proposal, in its present form, is punitive to those 

communities which have struggled and sacrificed other 

communal social benefits in order to develop a thorough 

and efficient standard of education. I think everybody 

knows that Lawrence Township has a very fine educational 

system, but doesn't have a storm sewer and because of 

that flooes out Mulberry Street. 

It furt.her punishes these same communities by limiting 

their financial resources to establish those social 

services which are being enjoyed by other communities. 

The taxpayers of New Jersey who have been burdened 

with property tax since the founding of our State, who 

have been conned into a cigarette tax, liquor tax, sales 

tax and who throughout the generations have seen these 

taxes always increasing and never diminishing, and who 

today still find themselves in the same dilemma of social 

needs as generations ago, will not be talked into another 

additional form of taxation. 

There is one particular section to which I would like 

to address myself having to do with the circuit breaker. 

There is a table that is attached to it. The circuit breaker 

section is very poorly conceived. It is a sleeper 

section which fundamentally sets up a welfare property tax 

concept, helping even those with higher incomes who are 

living beyond their means at the expense of those who 

are not. Evidently it is also a form of increasing 
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welfare benefits to many welfare clients by indirection. 

I will stop here and clarify what I am saying. 

Welfare clients receive a check and out of the check 

thf~Y pay their rent. It is conceivable - and I asked 

M~:. Krammer, Mr. Leone 1 s assistant this the other night -

that they would get a rent rebate, cash, from the State. 

He says that they have not addressed themselves to this 

question yet, but this is a factor to be looked at. 

Now it would be virtually impossible to fairly administer 

the circuit breaker section as some municipalities already 

incorporate sewer services. Some have rentals that you 

pay outside of your tax rate, which Lawrence Township does. 

I believe Hamilton does, and the city incorporates in 

their tax rate. The same applies to garbage. Hopewell 

Township has to pay extra~ that is, the people do, outside 

of their tax rate. rrhis applies to a good many other 

services toe. The renter rebate section also has the 

same undesirable features. 

The circuit breaker has another bad feature, that the 

present $160 senior citizen tax deduction has, whereby you 

lose $160 because your income is $5001 instead of $4999. 

As the circuit breaker steps are in multiples of $5000, 

if by some misfortune this section should become law, it 

should carry o. base .:igure and a percent<.<ge multiplication 

on the rest of the income amount on each step, exactly as 

the income tax is computed. While this would cut down 

the State 1 s income r,=:venue, it certainly would be fairer 

to everyone concerne • 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Mrs. Bayless, on that one 

poi::1t, I would like ·.:o indicate that the Committee has 

alrco.d~' tak,=m t.h'lt into consideration. While we haven 1 t 

firme·j up exactly what our amendments to that particular 

section will be, we have already determined there will 

be some changes along that line. 

MS. BAYLESS: Thank you very much. I am glad to 
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hear it. 

Is there any other member of the Committee that has 

any questions? (No questions.) 

Thank you very much. 

Bill Be~en, League for Conservation Legislation. 

Is he here? There has been a statement submitted to 

me on behalf of the League, wh~ch apparently would have 

been the testimony to be presented. I will authorize it 

to be placed in the record. It is a somewhat lengthy 

statement, but I will read the last paragraph: 11 LCL 

supports the Governor's tax package as the only one so 

far that ~eets the needs of all the citizens. We 

recognize that details remain to be ironed out, but we 

generally give our support to the income tax as long as 

it is coupled with the circuit breaker, reduction of property 

taxes, and the business stabilization tax. 11 

I would ask the staff to have that included in 

the transcript of the proceedings this afternoon. 

{Written statement of Bill Beren can be found 
beginning on page 104 A.) 

Next will be James Hely, New Jersey Public Interest 

Research Group, otherwise known as PIRG. 

JIM HE L Y: I will abbreviate the statement a 

great deal. I would just like to say New Jersey PIRG 
supports the Governor's program. We think it is a 

great step toward improving the over-all well-being of 

New Jersey. 

I will skip what we had to say on the constitutional 

amendment which would limit the property tax increases 

and the business stabilization tax, and get specific 

a little bit on the income tax. 

Before Governor Byrne submitted his proposals on 

the income tax, we were a little wary that he would tie 

it to the Federal income tax, which he has done for 
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the sake of simplicity. He has suggested a minimum income 

t:ax to catch those who unfairly benefit from the Federal 

loopholes. I tried to get in touch with Clif. Goldman. 

! have been unsuccessful. The Legislative Services have 

been unsuccessful in answering the question of how the 

3 percent figure on the minimum income tax was reached 

for gross income. My calculations indicate that the 

3 percent tax on gross would have no effect - very rarely 

wo"'.1ld it be used. I have some calculations here, but 

I think both the Committees in the Senate and the Assembly 

should consider raising that minimum tax to around 5 

percent, if we are to stick with a minimum tax. 

I wanted to say that we felt that we would be 

amiss to not further suggest that we might get around 

some of the loopholes in the Federal tax,and that is the 

personal exemption and special treatment for income from 

capital gains. 

The purpose of the personal exemption in the Federal 

system is to give each taxpayer a special allowance for 

himself or herself and for his or her dependents. As 

is, however, this special allowance is more favorable 

to the wealthy than the middle and lower income taxpayers. 
The $750 personal exemption deductible from income means 

a great deal more when it is deductible from the income 

bracket taxed at 70 percent than when it is deductible 

at 30 or 14 percent. 

I have figures comparing the $7.50 deduction from 

income under our State income tax plan and figures with 

a $25 credit as opposed to the $7.50 deduction from income. 

I ~hink that would be worthwhile considering. 

It •: ·U'.d also not be difficult to eliminate the most 

glaring loophole of the Federal system and, that is, special 

income from capital gains. There are reasons this is 

included in the Federal system, but there is no justifiable 
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reason New Jersey should not attempt to treat all income 

alike whether it comes from wages, rents, dividends, 

or capital gains. Only one in ten taxpayers benefits 

from the capital gains loophole, but the revenue loss is 

substantial. I have some figures pertaining to how 

much revenue is lost and how we can increase our taxable 

income in tile high-income brackets if we simply include 

capital gains. 

I have also made a chart to show how easy it would 

be to do that. This is our proposed income tax form. 

This side as the Governor presents it; this side as we 

might like to see it, simply adding this line in for 

the inclusion of Line 15A on ScheduleD (indicating). 

It would increase revenues substantially because it would 

simply tax capital gains at the full rate rather than 

the half rate that it is taxed in the Federal system. 

We have these criticisms, but again I would like 

to just say that we don't mean to negate the over-all 

value and necessity of the Governor's tax package. 

After careful research, we give it wholehearted approval. 

We thank you for holding these hearings.to the extent 

that you already have done. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: One point I would like to make 

before anybody has any questions: In explanation of, if 

not defense of, the proposal that has been known as the 

minimum tax, in your analysis you have estimated it, 

based on t.he adjusted gross income tax bracket, on the bot­

torn of the page,and compared the proposed imposition with 

what might be expected to be the tax under the existing 

rate structure. 

MR. HELY: Right. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: I would point out that the 

minimum tax is designed to recapture tax liability from 

those whose deductions after adjusted gross income, that 
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is, the deductions between adjusted gross income and 

taxable income, effectively wipe out what should be tax 

liability. So to key into adjusted gross doesn't 

take into account its true effectiveness. 

MR. RELY: I should have used the gross income. 

In other words, I have on the back pages exactly how I 

came to those conclusions. So you can look them over. 

I am considering gross income because obviously there 

are loopholes in an adjusted gross income. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: I just wanted to make sure 

that you were considering it on that basis. 

ASSEMBLYMAN CONTILLO: I would just like to direct 

myself to the proposed capital gains you are speaking 

about. I agree with you that it should be included in 

the income tax. But even if it is not, there are pro­

posals in bills being drawn at the present time directing 

themselves at capital gains, dividends and interest. 

So it will all be picked up one way or another. 

MR. HELY: Is there a reason that this can't be 

included in the income tax bill? 

ASSEMBLYMAN CONTILLO: The other proposals would 

negate the need for the income tax bill. So if the income 

tax bill is not passed, then this portion - the proposed 

capital gains tax, and interest and dividend tax - would 

be incorporated in other proposals. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: If I may say something on 

that, it is not quite accurate to say that the income 

tax, that is, A 1875, the proposed income tax, doesn't tax 

capital gains. It does. However, it taxes them subject to 

bvo limitatioas: nurnber one, the same that applies to the 

Federal - that is, you have the alternative, either 

excluding half or providing the alternate tax;-and, 

number two, you have the minimum tax under all circumstances. 

MR. HELY: Yes. The income tax as proposed would not 
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allow the computation of an alternative tax, as I see it, 

because it is on Federal, taxable income. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: I am sorry. That is correct. 

MR. HEI.Y: So it does cut out a lot of the capital 

gains loopholes,but 50 percent of capital gains are 

still going to escape. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: That is correct, subject to 

the minimum tax. 

MR. HELY: Right. But along those lines, my point 

about the minimum tax, I really think it should be raised 

and I would hope you would come up with computations to 

deny it or orove what you are saying, that 3 percent is 

high enough. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Anybody else on the Committee 

have any questions. (No questions.) 

Thank you very much, Mr. Rely, and we appreciate 

the PIRG's efforts in this area. 

(Complete statement submitted by Mr. 
Hely can be found beginning on page 83 A.) 

Next is Patrick F. Cosgriff. Is Mr. Cosgriff still 

with us? (No response.) 

Richard Solyom, Federation of New Jersey Taxpayers. 

RICHARD S 0 L Y 0 M: Yrr. Chairman and members 

of the Committee, my name is Richard Solyom and I speak 

to you today as Legislative Vice President of the Federation 

of New Jersey Taxpayers. 

New ,Jersey's fiscal problem is not taxation; taxes 

are the res~lt. Crazy government spending is the cause 

and to solve ·the proble.rn we must reduce the spending. 

Goverr..ment spending can be either direct or indirect. 

Direct spending means making appropriations or passing 

bills which require expenditures. Indirect spending 

means increasing government size by creation of new 

departments and new jobs for more bureaucrats, all requiring 
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more money from the taxpayers. 
All government spending requires action by the Legis­

lature, meaning the responsibility for any increase or 

decrease in spending rests on the shoulders of all the 

legislators. The last few months have shown tremendous 

increases in both direct and indirect state spending, 

indicating a great disregard for fiscal responsibility 

by the Legislature. 

Wise legislators will keep firmly in mind the fact 

that all government expenditures are non-productive over­

head expense of the economy, from an accounting standpoint, 

and must be held within proper limits. If this overhead 

is not held in due proportion to the real product and 

income of the people, then an economy in liquidation 

results - such as we have today. The annual non-productive 

overhead expense of the State of New Jersey, that is to say, 

the Federal, State and local tax take, is now over $18 

billion. It must be reduced, not added to with a State 

income tax. 

May I have your attention, please, gentlemen. 

SENATOR MERLINO: You have our attention, sir. 

MR. SOLYOM: If legislators cannot resist the 

temptation to spend other peoples' money, then we must 

put a constitutional limitation on the amount they can 

spend. The F€deration considers this an idea whose time 

has come. We have been corresponding with state officials 
in California regarding that state's "Proposition One• and 

with an economist he~e on the East Coast in an effort to 

prepare such an amendment for New Jersey. I believe the 

deadline for legisla~ive action to place amendments on 

the ballet 5s July 12th. Therefore, I am asking this 

~omrnittee to give serious consideration to this proposal 

with a view of getting swift legislative action to place 

it on the ballot along with those proposed by the Governor. 
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In essence, our proposal will tie spending limit to 
taxing limit. Therefore, taxes will be limited also. 

The heart of the amendment will be a formula based on the 

relationship between general government expenditures and 

personal income of the people. This formula will establish 

a ratio not to be exceeded. We suggest using 1971 as the 

base year, with figures from the United States Department 

of Commerce for that year to set the limiting ratio. 

Thus: the general expenditures, divided by personal income, 

equals .07. 

The figure .07 is that obtained by using the Depart­

ment of Commerce figures for the year 1971. If the relation­

ship of .07 was good enough in 1971, then it ought to 

be good enm:tgh during "the foreseeable future" and will 

mark the limit which is not to be exceeded in future years. 

The formula accounts for inflation. If personal income 

is inflated, then general state expenditures would be 

inflated also. 

We believe the amendment should provide also that: 

1. Any single year's increase in government spending 

shall not exceed 10 percent of the previous year's 

expenditureu. 
2. The total number of persons employed by the 20 

principal departments of the state shall not exceed .7 
of 1 percent of the total population of the State. 

Attached hereto is copy of a preliminary draft made 

in April 1974. Also for your information, we submit a 

copy of an article appearing in the current (June 22, 1974) 

issue of Human Events, titled "Michigan Taxpayers Have Chance 

to Make History" by Lewis K. Uhler. This article describes 

.the drive now underway in Michigan to place on the November 

ballot a constitutional limitation on spending. 

We request members of this Conunittee take immediate 

action to have drafted a constitutional amendment along 
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the lines outlined above~ and bring it up for a vote as 

soon as possible. 

To digress for just a moment, it must be clear 

to everyone by now that the Better decision is being used as 

e.n excuse for 1 not only an income tax, but for radical, 

far-reaching changes in the Department of Education's 

Administrative Code which will weaken local control of 

schools and concentrate all power in Trenton. The Better 

d1~cision, in the opinion of many, is a judicial usurpation 

of legislative functions and should be treated as such. 

So what can the Legislature do in this situation? 

There are three courses of ~tion open to the Legislature: 

1. They can nullify the Better decision. This 

can be done by passing SCR 3 or either of the Assembly 

resolutions introduced to delete the words "thorough arrl 

efficient" from the Constitution. Such action would put 

an end to the entire controversy. 

2.• Th~y can knuckle-under to Botter, comply with 

his edict, enact a state income tax, a state property tax, 

increase sales taxes, weaken local control of schools, 

concentrate all power in Trenton and place us firmly on 

the road to socialism. 

3. They can ignore Better, tell the Judiciary to go 

mind its own business and take up, once again, their 

responsibilities as legislators and provide for a thorough 

and efficient system in their own way~ that is, they can 

enact legislation to provide a new method of funding 

which does not comply with Better. 

The Federation approves of either the first or third 

course of action, but not the second. Perhaps a combination 

oi onE: and t 1-:ree is the answer. First clear the way by 

~assing legislation to free the Legislature of hobbling 

judicial restrictions, and then proceed with its own 

alternate method oi compliance with the State Constitution, 
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whatever that may be. 

Three comments, if I may, one each on the three 

proposed constitutional amendments which we are supposed 

to be discussing here today. 

First ---

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: What three constitutional 

amendments? 

MR. SOLYOM: ACR 175, the circuit breaker so-called. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: We. are discussing before this 

Committee today ---

MR. SOLYOM: (Continuing) Assembly Concurrent Resolution 

No. 175, the so-called circuit breaker, was first proposed 

by Mr. Billy Dee Cook. I have met Mr. Cook two or three 

times at various tax symposiums throughout the country. 

He tells me that his circuit breaker was first used in 

Wisconsin and is still being worked on. I gather from 

conversations with him that it is not all that it is cracked 

up to be. So I am at somewhat of a loss to understand 

why Mr. Leone wants to bring that in and impose it on 

the citizens of this State when it is still being exper­

imented on. Perhaps he wants to do some further exper­

imentation of his own on it. 

ACR 176 which is a limit on a municipality's ability 

to tax - this, gentlemen, is the wrong approach. As I 
said in my opening statement, the problem is not taxation~ 

the problem is spending. If you will limit the spending, 

you will automatically limit the taxing. 

This proposal of Mr. Byrne is to transfer from 

the local municipalities the power to tax or part of the 

power to tax. This is a taking-away from the local mun­

icipalities the right to tax and govern themselves as they 

see fit. In other words, it is a whittling away of home 

rule. It is a transfer of taxation powers from the local 

level to the State level, where it will be exercised 
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as a State income tax over which the people will have very 

little control. As it is now with taxes being imposed at 

the local lave!, the local citizens have some degree of 

central. If you transfer this power to the State level, 

they will have less and less control. 

Assembly Concurrent Resolution No. 177. I am 67 

years old, so I think I qualify as a senior citizen. I 

am in touch with the senior citizen movement. I was here 

la8t week when there were 3,000 senior citizens down 

here to see the Governor and he refused to come over and 

talk. Herb Miller is a good friend of mine. Herb Miller 

is the man they call "the homestead kid" because he has a 

proposal which in my opinion is ever so much better than 

the proposal here in ACR No. 177. The seniors do not 

want to be treated as welfare recipients. They do not 

want to be set apart as a special class in our society. 

They do not want a means test on what they get from the 

State. Herb Miller's Homestead Security Act will do this 

for them. It will let them remain in their community 

as part of the community in which they grew up, and will 

allow them to retaiL their homes that they have worked 

for all their lives. It will not make welfare recipients 
out of them. 

When we went in to see the Governor, he was much 

surprised to learn from us that the senior citizens 

were not envious and jealous of those seniors who would 

benefit from such a plan - that anyone who got a so-called 

break under this Hor.testead Security would get it regardless 

of their income. The seniors do not want a means limit 

on anything they get from the State. 

Thank you for your attention, those of you who are 

still here. Thank you very much. (Applause.) 

(Exhibits presented by Mr. Solyom can 
be found beginning on page 89 A.} 
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ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Mr. Solyom, I would point out 

in ·response to what.you said, there are at least two mis­

statements of fact. One is that the July 12th date that 

you mentioned is not consisten~ with any facts as we know 

them. The other is that the jurisdiction of this Committee 

presently extends to a great number of constitutional 

questions. I believe that today is the record date for 

purposes of the Constitution for hearings on ACR 139, 142 

and 153. But we are also taking into account all of the 

other constitutional amendments that have been proposed 

by any sponsor with respect to the issue of tax reform. 

Is Mr. c· .• H. Englehart present? (No response.) 

Mr. John P. Kieth, Regional Plan Association. Thank 

you for waiting, Mr. Kieth. We appreciate your patience. 

JOHN P. K E I T H: Mr. Chairman and members of 

the Committee, I must say that my seat has been more 

comfortable than yours. I have been sitting over in the 

breeze and you have been under these very hot lights. 

So it wasn't as hard for me to wait as it must have been 

for you. 

The statement that I am making is on behalf of the 

Regional Plan Association, which has several thousand 

members in the States of Connecticnt, New York and New 

Jersey, and the statement was participated in by the 
Board members who come from New Jetsey. 

I have five parts to my argument. I am going to 

dispense with two of them. One of ·those is that the 

tax burden should be distributed more fairly. As you 

know, in New Jersey the low-income people really do 

pay a larger percentage of taxes of their total income. 

I will not speak to that issue, nor will I speak to the 

issue of 11 healthy youngsters start more equally, 11 which 

is the basic proposition before you, and you are hearing a 

great deal on that today. A planning agency can not 
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be as helpful on those issues as perhaps it can on the 

three that I would like to speak to, and very briefly. 

First, the question of saving the environment in 

New Jersey. 

Municipalities of this State are planning and 

zoning primarily with the aim of keeping school taxes down 

rather than creating a sound environment. Almost every 

municipality tries to capture factories, offices or shops 

to help pay the school bill. As a result, urban facilities 

scatter throughout the countryside, unrelated to housing, 

out of reach of transit, stretching the average trip length 

and assuring that every trip must be made by car,and most 

of those by oneself. 

At the same time, zoning has forced people to build 

homes on large lots in order to hold down the number of 

school children, when many would have been satisfied with 

less land. 

Altogether, many more acres of countryside have 

been invaded, many more lanes of highway built and many 

more gallons of gasoline consumed because municipalities 

have been forced to think first of their school taxes 

when zoning. 
I would like to add one footnote to that. We dis­

covered in doing a volume on energy consumption in 

the Region that this metropolitan area, including New 

Jersey, uses a third less energy per capita than does 

the United States as a whole. However, the suburbs of 

this Region use a quarter more energy per capita. The 

reason for that is simply the transportation to this 

very-spread city that we are building. 

My second point would be: build more housing. Attached 

:tousing can be built much less expensively than one-family 

houses on large lots. Despite a severe housing shortage 

extending all across the Region in Connecticut, New York 
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and New Jersey, caused by the high price of new housing, 

municipalities controlling this State's vacant land in 

northeastern New Jersey almost uniformly require one­

family homes on large lots. We discovered this in about 

1961 and we put it out in a volume called "Spread City." 

At that time Northern New Jersey was zoning its acreage 

two-thirds for a haliacre or more and 50 percent for an 

acre or more. We have not rechecked those figc.~::es, but 

I am sure they would be much higher today. 

Apartments are allowed only if they do not accommodate 

many families with school-age children. Now, almost no 

housing units are being built within the range of families 

earning under $20,000 - but with zoning changes, it is 

likely that families with incomes as low as $15,000 might 

afford a new attached horne or apartment. To the legis-

lators, this might be a matter of interest. When we checked via 

television, ·and three million people watched and forty 

thousand responded from the New York - Connecticut -

New Jersey metropolitan area, we discovered that when 

we asked this question with respect to large-lot zoning 

and what it is doing, the New Jersey participants voted 

62 to 31 for a statewide school tax to get more housing 

built. We checked that via George Gallup and it carne 

out almost exactly the same figures. So there are people 

in this State who are concerned and interested in finding 

a way to solve this problem. 

Finally, from a planning point of view, the issue 

I think most important in New Jersey is the question of 

saving its old cities, which are truly in real trouble. 

The large urban facilities that have been scattered and 

pulled by the property tax needs of the other communities 

are much more strongly needed by the old cities of the 

Region: (1) to keep opportunities centralized so they 

can be reached by persons without cars (over half the 

households of Newark, for example, do not have an automobile, 
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and about a third of the households in Paterson.) We found 

only recently in checking the 1970 census figures, for 

example, that those people who had two cars got three~ 

those people who had one car, got two, during the decade 

:.:.960-70. But those people who had none increased in 

number, believe it or not, in the State. Then we say, 

why don't you fellows go out to those far-distant jobs via 

some transportation system that does not exist. They 

don't have the car, they don't have the transportation 

system, and they turn to welfare. And we wonder why. 

We are distorting our land planning in distorting our 

property ta:{. That is the real question that planners 

would put to you, not the one that educators and tax­

payers' groups are putting to you. 

Are we going to save these cities of New Jersey to 

keep society together at least eight hours a day instead 

of further segregating it~ to provide the basis for 

attracting back to the cities householdsof all income 

levels, particularly those without children, that is, 

the older and the younger families, who need apartments, 

who want the liveliness of a functioning city. 

If the suburbs did not seek the facilities for tax 
purposes - did not have to - business would be much more 

likely to locate in city centers. 

Well, those several items are the substance of our 

statement - save the environment, build more housing, and 

save the cities. Those are the things Regional Plan would 

like to put before you for your consideration. 

(Written statement presented by Mr. Keith 
can be found beginning on page 92 A.) 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIEi Thank you very much, Mr. Keith. 

·.re there any questions? (No questions.) Thank you and 

we appreciate your patience. 

MR. KEITH: I do appreciate your inviting me. 
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• 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Al Wagner, Pastor of the 

Calvary Bible Presbyterian Church. 

A L L A N V. W A G N E R: First of all, I would 

like to exp~ess the wish that the members of the Committee 

and the Assembly and the Senate would at least believe 

in the Eighth Commandment, "Thou shalt not steal.1 For 

certainly the income tax and the property tax are thefts. 

The Word of God a~ks the lep.:islators of New Jersey, "Shall the throne 
of iniquity have fellowship with th(/e, which frameth m1schief by a law? 
They r:ather themselves to~ether ar;a1nst th~ soul of the rip.:hteous, and 
condemn the innocent blood •. But the LORD 1s my defence; and my God is 
the rock of my refup.:e. And he shall bring upon them their own iniguity, 
and shall cut them 9ff in their)own wickednes~; yea, the LORD our God · 
shall cut them off"lPs 94:20-23 • 

1'he income tax is theft! To implement his "d ictntorshi -g of the 
proletariate" Karl Marx I_)rovosed ten mensures,., the second of which is "A 
heavv pror!ressi ve or ~raduated income tax." 1'he income tax is th~ 
modfn~n day Hobin Hood\ taking from the rich and giving to the poor). But 
Rohi n Hoo11, no matter bow much ·he is glorified on T.V. and in the movies, 
iA still a thief. 

The proferty tax ts theft as well. Naboth had a vineyard that King 
Aha h wRn ted IKinp.:s 21). Ahab said, ''Give me thy vineyard· ••. and I will. 
rive thee for it a better vin~vard than it; or~ if it seem ~mod to thee, 
I will Pive theo the worth of i i; in money. 1\na. Naboth said to Ahab, The 
LOHD forhi.d i.t me, that I should rrive the inheritance of my fathers unto 
thee." And Ahab wa~ "disnleaRed hecRuse of the word which Naboth the 
JezrPe]ite had.snoken", but hifl wtfe Je~ebel devised a way for Ahab to 
pet Nnhoth' s v1nevard. She consp1red Wl th the elders and nobles of· the 
citv to frame Naboth and confiscate his property. Our nroperty is our 
oHn ~nd the governor and the lep,islature of New Jersey should not frame 
''mischief by law" to r-et it. The property tax does just this t 

GOOl) INTEN1110NS DO NOT W~~'-Tlil~Jl 

"~hall the throne of ini11uitv have fellowship with thee, which frameth 
;n1 r;_jhief by a law?" Will you steal from the people in the name of 
brin~ing a "Thorough and Efficient'' education to the children? Listen to 
the words and warning of Alexander Hamilton "a dangerous ambition more 
often lurks behind the specious mask of zeai for the rights of the I;>eople 
th[m under the forbidding appearance of zeal for the firmness and effi­
ciency of government." · 
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I do not doubt that the intentions of many of yo9 are honorable and 
that vou d~sire a ")ThorouP:h an~ Efficient" educationt tho9e:b still undefined 
bv the lARls+a~ure for the ch1ldren 9f New Jersey, but tl) it is not 
your re~no~s1b1l~ty to educate the c~1ldren, it is the paren~(only tber 

. can dec1de wh~t lS "Thorough and.Efflcient" for their children), and (2J 
YO'!}. have no r1p:ht to force one c1t1zen to pay for the education of another's 
ch1ld. 

But he vou warn~d by tlie Word of God t~at though "They gather them- • 
~ml ves tovl~the:r a~a1nst the· soul of the r1ghteous, and condemn the innocent 
hlood •.. the LORD 1a my defence; and IDf.God 1s the rock of mv refuge And 
he ~hall br}np. unon them their own in1quity, and shall cut them of(in 
the1r own w1ckedness; yea, the LOTU> our God shall cut theni off." 

.As ~n the d~ys of N~hemiah the~e is "a ~reat cry of the people and of 
the1r w1ves aga1nst th~1r brethren ••• Some there were that sa1d, We have 
mortgap.ed our lands, Vlneyards. and houses. that we mi~ht buv corn. becausA 
of the dearth. There were also that said, We have borrowed money for the­
kinp:'s tribute, and that upon our lands and vineyards.,,and, lo, we bring 
into bondap.:e our sons and our dau~hters to be servants, and some of our 
daughters are brought unto bondage already: nei~her is it in our power to 
redeem them· for other men have our lands and v1neyards. And I was very 
anr.Ty when i heard their cry and th~se words. Then I c:onsulted with rny­
E1elf ~nd I rAhuked the nobles, and the rulers, and sa1d unto them, Ye 
exacl vsurv~. every- on6 of his hrother. And I set a great assembly against • 
them. "lNeh· :>:1-? ]'. The people are becoming angry and, like Nehemiah, we 
are ansemhled here to rebuke the legislature of ~ew Jersey. The tax load 
is far too heavy alreadv and you are proposing more! 

Our forefathers declared their independel)Ce to preserve their."life, 
lirertv, 'ind property"because of the onpress1on. You now are talnn~ 
theAe awav. 

SQLUT I QN. _ _'m_r,C_lliLPROBLv;r1 

The legislature of New Jersey should: 

1. exempt any parent who sends ~is child to a private school from all 
. tnxes which finance the puhl1c school system. 

I think if this were instituted, it would put an end to the 
public school system in just a few years. The private schools 
are cheaper and more effective. The children get a better 
education as ·well as less of a chance of getting drugs in 
2 school syatsn and even in some places having bodily harm 
·::.orne upon them. 
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2. 

3. 

nropo~e a Constitutional Amendment repealing the Amendrnen~ of 1~75 
which savs that "the legislature shall prov1de for the ma1ntenance 
and surroort of a. thorouph and eff~cient ~ystem of free public schools 
f()r the instruct1on of all thf} oh~ldren 1n t~e S~ate between the age~ 
of five and eiphteen years." ~Art1cle VIII, Sect1on IV, Paragraph l.J 

ston snending in all areas ot~er than.that for defence, ~olice, 
courts, and the necessary adm1n1strat1on of these. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Does any member of the Committee 

have any questions to ask Pastor Wagner? 

SENATOR MERLINO: I just have one thing I would 

like to say. I would defy any legislator to answer this 

statement. I think we need someone a little more omnipotent 

than we are. 
ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Anybody else? 

ASSEMBLYMAN BROWN: Pastor Wagner, I would like a 

few questions answered, please. You quote part of the 

Bible that says something to the effect - and I am not 

sure exactly of the words ~ give unto Caesar that which 

is due to Caesar. Is that somewhere in the Bible? 

REV. WAGNER: "Give unto Caesar the things that are 

Caesar's and unto God, the things that are God's." 

ASSEMBLYMAN BROWN: Were they referring to taxes 

at that particular time? 

REV. WAGNER: Yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BROWN: What is your position on the 
sales tax? You mentioned the property tax and the income 

tax. I didn't hear you mention the sales tax. 

REV. WAGNER: Well, the Bible mentions one tax and 

that is a poll tax on males. And that is contained in 

Exodus, Chapter 30, verse 15 where it says, "The rich 

shall not give more ;--a-nd the-po-or- shall not give less than 

half a shekel. 11 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: What would ha:if a shekel translate 
to now, do you know? 

REV. WAGNER: Half a dollar. Here is the thing, if 

the Legislature would cut down spending and if the Legis-
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lature would legislate in the areas that they are supposed 

to be in, instead of getting into welfare and into business 

and into all these other things that they are in, then 

you wouldn't need so much money for education well, 

you wouldn't need any more for education because this is 

the parents' responsibility. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BROWN: Isn't there some place in the Bible 

where it says you should help those less fortunate than 

yourself? Isn't that in the Bible'? 

REV. WAGNER: You are talking about charity. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BROWN: Just the words, themselves, that 

you should help those less fortunate than you are. 

REV. WAGNER: I could read one passage to you in 
Ephesians,._. Chapter 4 verse 28, "Let him that stole 

steal no more, but rather let him labor, working with his 

hands the thing which is good that he may have to give 

to him that needeth." Not that he may have to give to 

the state, but that he, through the charity of his own 

heart, may have to give to he that needeth. Charity must 

come from the people. But when we are taxed to such 

a burden that we cannot afford charity, this is why there 

is no charity today. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BROWN: In the proposed income tax, aren't 

we talking about one's ability to pay. I think that is 

the concept in the proposal. It is based on one's ability 

to pay rather than one's inability to pay. So we cannot 

say people cannot afford it when it is based on a person's 

income and how fortu7"~ate he has been in reaping rewards 

from his labors as opposed to those who haven't been 

so fortunate. 

Alsn, how do you justify the missionary concept 

·nich is also in the Bible'? The missionaries assist those 

in need. 

Another question: Are you in favor of any type of 

tax at all? 

REV. WAGNER: Yes, I am in favor of the poll tax. 

But to answer your other question, that all has to come 
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through charity. When our Pilgrim fathers came over to 

this country on the Mayflower - they were all Bible 

believers and loved the Lord - they believed the Bible 

was the word of God and they tried to follow it to the 

best of their ability - but for a time there in the 

beginning they thought Plato was wiser than God. This is 

quoted by Bradford in the History of the Plymouth Plantation. 

He was the second governor. They started a community 

effort where, because there were only a few of them and 

they were Christians and loved each other, they put every­

thing into the common storehouse. And they started drawing 

out. But the women didn't want to wash clothes for the 

other women's husbands. The young men didn't want to work 

for the old and for the lame, 

reaping their own rewards. 

Many would say that this 

was no love in their hearts. 

they thought Plato was wiser 

etc., because 

was terrible, 

The one thing 

than God. 

they were not 

that there 

they forgot was, 

The Bible is founded upon a free-enterprise system 

and when after three years they went to a free-enterprise 

system -- and, by the way, even before this though they 

believed in the Bible, but took to stealing -- but after 

they instituted a free enterprise system and each of 

them had a parcel of land and worked it and the women and 

children went out in the fields and worked, they had an 

abundance. They were able to take care of the old. They 

were able to take care of the sick. They were able to 

take care of those who couldn't work. It was based on 

charity. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BROWN: I don't want to get into a debate~ 

I just wanted a few questions answered. Thank you very much. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Pastor, I am treading very 

lightly because I will freely acknowledge your superior 

position in this whole area. But I would like to ask in 
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all seriousness - and I am perfectly serious - isn't 

a measure of everything we do in government, if not 

completely, at least partly, the way we fulfill the 

mandate established, and I can't give you the citation, 

''ith reference to Cain and Abel, that each one of us 

J.s his brother' s keeper? 

REV. WAGNER: First of all, I don't think that each 

one is his brother's keeper. Cain said that~ God di&1't. 

We are only our brother's keeper insofar as the commandments 

of God. We have the Ten Commandments and we have inter­

pretations of the Ten Commandments throughout the Bible. 

Of course, the State has its area and it is in the 

area of the last five Commandments. The State is to pro­

tect a person's life- "Thou shall not kill·~ his~family­

"Thou shall not commit adultery"~ his property - "Thou 

shall not steal"~ his good name - "Thou shall not bear 

false witness~ and to protect him against any kind of 

fraud or conspiracy- "Thou shalt not covet." 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: I understand that. Part of 

what I am asking here is implicit on how one sees the 

state. It is sometimes, particularly by those in govern­

ment, seen as some sort of amorphous separation from the 

people. I view it rather as a collection of the people. 

And I wonder if in fulfilling that, we aren't talking 

about a collective responsibility - if you don't like 

"my brother's keeper" and again my citation will not 

hold, neither perhaps will the exact language because I 

have heard it many different ways - the mandate to do 

with respect. to everyone else that which we would have 

done unto ourselves. Doesn't that likewise fall into 

this category? 

REV. WAGNER: You are talking in the area of 

personal references here when you get into the area of 
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the state mandating how I am, even if I were to accept 
11 my brother's keeper 11 , and how I am to react towards my 

neighbor. When Jesus summarized the two tables of law, 

saying, 11 Thou shalt love the Lord thy God with all thy 

heart, with all thy mind, with all thy soul," and 11 Thou' 

shalt love thy neighbor as thyself," he was summarizing 

the commandments of God. Love is expressed by keeping 

the Commandments. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Thank you. I do want to emphasize 

that I am not doing this jocularly. I legitimately feel 

that there is a logical argument to be made with respect 

to the moral justification of government that sometimes 

isn't made. And, frankly, the infrequency with which it 

is made, I think, has led to some of the conditions that we 

now have both in this State and elsewhere. I think it 

is a construc·tive contribution to the dialogue and I 

appreciate your taking the time to bring it to our 

attention. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BROWN: You mentioned a couple of "Thou· 

shall nets" - doesn't the Bible also state something 

to the effect, 11 Thou shall love thy neighbor as thyself" 

and "Thou shall do unto others as we would have them do 

unto us"? 
So if you were hungry, you wouldn't want anybody to 

feed you if they had food and you did not? 

REV. WAGNER: This is a personal responsibility. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BROWN: But that is not my question. 

REV. WAGNER: When Jesus is speaking, He is speaking 

to individuals. He is not saying that to the state. · 

ASSEMBLYMAN BROWN: I am speaking to you now, your 

own conscience, as an individual. · If you were hungry and 

your neighbcr had food, would you not want him to feed you? 

That is my question, to you, not to Jesus. 

REV. WAGNER: I don't understand. 

127 



ASSEMBLYMAN BROWN: My question is: If you were 

hungry and your neighbor had food, would you want him 

to share his food with you or not? 

REV. WAGNER: This is his responsibility. This is 

~he individual's responsibility. You cannot make 

someone moral. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BROWN: I am not speaking of making 

them. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Mr. Brown, with all due respect, 

we have quite a number of people yet to be heard. I 

indicated that I think it is a constructive contribution 

to the dialogue and, Pastor, I appreciate your coming. 

next. 

REV. WAGNER: Thank you. (Applause.) 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Mr. Richard F. McCarthy is 

We have a statement from Mr. McCarthy. We would 

appreciate it if you would summarize it. 

R I C H A R D F. M c C A R T H y:- Mr. Chainnan, 

this statem~nt contains several different thoughts and, 

believe me, it is a summary of all my thoughts. I will 

proceed and if you wish to stop me at any point, let 

me know. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Do you propose to read the 

entire statement? 

MR. MC CARTHY: Yes, sir. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Inasmuch as it is somewhat 

lengthy, can you just sort of give us what it basically 

covers? 

MR. MC CARTHY: I would rather read the whole 

statement, sir, so you can get the full flavor of it. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Well, the full flavor will 

be included, I assure you, in the transcript of the 

hearing and we will certainly read it in any event. But 

in consideration of the some 20 to 25 people who remain 

to be heard, I would appreciate it if you would summarize it. 
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MR. MC CARTHY: Assemblyman Perskie, I can understand 

your problem and I have been sitting here since two o'clock. 

I have seen other people come in here 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: So have I. 

MR. MC CARTHY: I agree. But what you have done is 

schedule several public hearings instead of a whole 

series of them to give people sufficient time to come in 

and talk. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Pardon me, but this is the 

fourth such hearing, including one in Atlantic City on 

Friday. This is the fourth. 

MR. MC CARTHY: You started at two o'clock. A lot 

of people have been coming here. If you had said, this 

week there are going to be public hearings, I would have 

come at another time when you could have heard me. If 

you would rather have me wait until everybody is done, 

I will be pleased to wait. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Mr. McCarthy, I don't want to 

impose on you to that extent. I am trying to indicate, 

while I want everyone to be heard to the extent that he 

chooses to be heard - and your statement will be included 

in the transcript - I do think everyone who has come is 

entitled to some time, and I think we have been moving 

along very quickly and fairly. All I would request of 
you, in your own discretion, is that you summarize what 

is in here rather than read it verbatim because the entire 

testimony will be included in our record. 

MR. ·Me CARTHY: When you get tired of hearing me, 

interrupt me and I will stop, sir. 
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My name is Richard F. McCarthy, 140 Mt. Vernon Ave., West Berlin, 

New Jersey. I appear before this committee as a private citizen, 

but I am the tax collector for Berlin Township. I have been the 

collector for ten years. 

In spite of being a tax collector, or maybe because of it, 

I do not t:·egard myself as a tax expert, therefore this testimony 

is based on what I believe our constitution requires, coupled with 

what I believe constitutes a fair, sound and controllable system 

of taxation. 

A fair system of taxation is one that is based on "ability 

to pay" rather than on "state needs". From what I understand, the 

income tax meets this criteria better than the property tax. 

To be a fair tax, the burden must be levied equally and uni­

formly--which is also a constitutional :trequirement--upon the 

persons and/or properties selected for taxation. To be a con­

trollable tax then, the levying must proceed directly from the 

legislative body that determines the tax to the taxable subjects. 

The failure of our present system is that it is not equal, it 

is not uniform and it is not controllable. For a tax refona pro­

posal to be successful, it must answer the questions: who is 

levying the tax, how and why. My testimony is directed toward 

fj .- ~ -.:..ng an answer to these problems. 

When I took office, .. :I knew very little about taxation. All 

I really knew was that bu~gets were adopted by my county and 

municipal goveL1ing bodies and that school budgets were voted on 
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by the people. I was aware of the American principle of taxation , 

by representation and the constitution guaranteed we will pay only 

our fair share of the tax burden. Somehow, someway, it seemed to 

me that.some people ended up paying less taxes than I did, even 

though my property is not as valuable. 

I was aware of the stories of padded budgets, government waste, 

graft and corruption and at first I blamed my high taxes on these 

factors. While I never believed ~eryone in public office was 

a crook, I did believe many of them were self-serving and short-

sighted individual:~. 

I was in office about two years, when I really started to be-

come concerned about how fast the property tax burden was growing. 

I started to yell and scream about this problem. If you will look 

at the growth rate of the property tax, you will find that it really 

started to escalate in the mid-sixties. 

By this time, I had heard about the constitutional mandate that 

taxes were supposed to be levied equally and uniformly throughout 

the state when they supported state purposes, equally and uniformly 

throughout a county '\vhen they supported a county purpose, and 

equally and uniformly throughout the township when supporting 

township purposes. I did not pay too much attention to these terms 

of equality and uniformity because this was the law and I naturally 

assumed the tax burden was being levied equally and uniformly. I . 
soon found out I was wrong on this score. 

About this time, I also started to hear more and more about 

"tables of equalization" and "average ratio" of assessments and 

these terms also did not mean ~h to me in the beginning~ but it 



·wasn't long before I realized that properties were not being assessed 

uniformly. 

Equalization is the process whereby the assessed evaluation of 

property is adjusted to reflect its "true value" for the support 

of county government and for the sharing of state aid for education. 

I wish to point out, however, that if properties were assessed 

equally and uniformly as required by our constitution and statutes, 

then there would not be a need for equalization. 

In the years I have worked for tax reforms, I have learned that 

the problems we face today are due to the failures of yesterday. 

Do we really want a stable, just and sound tax policy that will 

stand the test of time? If the answer is yes then we must begin 

by finding the answer to the question: "What is wrong with the 

present system?" 

If a tax structure is to have strong public support, then the 

burden must be reasonable, just and clearly presented to the people 

so that they understand who is taxing them, why and how. Our present 

property tax structure does not meet these qualifications because 

the state is doing by indirection and subterfuge what our consti= 

tution prohibits it from doing directly and all of the proposals I 

have heard about follow this same path. 

I mentioned uniformity before and state, county and municipal 

pu'_ poses. What does uniformity mean and how are "purposes" estab-
. _:~ 

lished? The ans'".ver to the question is based on the principle of 

taxation by representation. Every system of taxation has two 

legislative and one administrative step. The person and/or 
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property to be subjected to taxation, and the ass,essment base is 

first defined. The second step is the appropriation of funds and 

the third step, the administrative step, is the levying and collecting 

of the tax. Under the principle of taxation by representation, 

therefore, the legislative body that appropriates the funds is the 

body that establishes the purpose of the tax. If the state legis-

lature ~ppropriates the funds, then the tax must be levied uniformly 

throughout the state and it must be used solely for a state purpose. 

This same principle applies as far as county and municipal governing 

bodies are aoncerned. 

In·many cases, the state legislature appropriates the funds 

for various purposes, but instead of imposing these taxes uniformly 

throughout the state, it will compel county and/or mtinicipal 

governing bodies to impose these taxes upon their tax base. The 

people do not understand who is taxing them and why because of 

this practice of "mandating costs" and this is what I meant when. I 

said the state was doing by indirection and subterfuge what it is 

prohibited from doing by our constitution. 

You will recall that I described the appropriation of funds as 

a legislative act and I am sure everyone is aware of how jealously 

each branch of government guards its own powers and responsibilities. 

The executive branch of government, for example, does not have the 

power to submit a budget.::to the legislature and then to order the 

appropriation of funds. We are also aware of the criticism the 

courts are recei,ring for seizing legislative powers. In view of 

these factors, I do not understand how or why the legislative 
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branch can delegate its power of taxation to the administrative 

branch. 

The state board of education is a part of the administrative 

branch of government. Assembly bill 1863 gives this board the 

power to determine whether or not a school district is meeting the 

thorough c1.nd efficient standard. If the standard is not being met, 

then the board can devise a remedial plan and even reallocate the 

financial resources within the district. This is the appropriation 

of funds; a legislative function. How can such power be exercised 

by the board? This delegation of the power to tax is not only 

improper, it is also taxation by indirection and subterfuge. 

Another problem area of taxation is the one regarding the 

11 accountability" of how the tax dollar is spent and in this regard 

it must be remembered thac the average person does not have the time 

or money to trace his tax dollar from the time it leaves his pocket 

until it is spent. Therefore there must not be any ambiguity re­

garding the purpose of the tax. To avoid this ambiguity, the tax 

mustbe levied after the appropriations are authorized and it must 

serve the purpose of the legislating district. 

This point becomes clearer with the following illustration: 

In 1972, Berlin Township raised $114,083.00 for its local purpose 

on a tax rate of $.79. There was also a gross receipts tax of $25,188. 

I.n 1973, Berlin Township did not have a local tax, but it did 

receive $174,617.00 from .~he gross receipts tax. It also received 

$124,041 in Federal Revenue sharing for the 1973-74 period. 
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In 1974, Berlin Township has anticipated $197,969.00 in gross 

receipts taxes and $73,974.00 in revenue sharing for the 1974-75 

period. In addition we now have a local purpose tax of $.22 and 

the tax levy amounts to $32,596. 

In two years, Berlin Township's tax spending capacity increased 

from $114,083 to $204,039. Although these figures are approximate, 

because other revenues are not included and because revenue shaing 

is on a fiscal rather than a calendar year, they do illustrate the 

point that Berlin Township is receiving tax monies without the res­

ponsibility of first appropriating the funds and without any re­

lationship to the needs of the community. The needs of Berlin 

Township are not weighed against the needs of other communities 

in the state, and the nation, although the revenues it is receiving 

are derived-from state and federal taxes. 

During the 1947 Constitutional Convention, the delegate from 

Hudson County insisted that municipalities Should have the right 

to tax railroad property on the same basis as other properties are 

taxed and the present constitutional tax clause was framed to give 

the municipalities this right. Now, however, railroad property is 

being taxed only by the state and the municiplities are receiving 

state funds-- in lieu of taxes-- in amounts based on the 1966 

municipal tax levy. The "in lieu of taxes" is being paid by all 

the tax payers of the state in spite of the fact that the railroads 

have defaulted on their tax payments and the state has exempted 

nearly all railroad property from taxation. 
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Not only are the principles of responsibility and accountability 

being abridged by the "in lieu of taxes" scheme, the people are 

forced to carry even the small burden the railroads should be pay­

ing. The failure of the railroads to meet their tax obligations 

illustratesthe fiscal weakness of the property tax. 

Assembly Bill 1876 imposes a state tax on business property 

but this tax is to be collected at the local taxing district and is 

to be paid to the State Treasurer. I assume this system will follow 

the county system whereby the money is paid to them in full whether 

or not the tax is collected. What protection does the local gov-

ernment have when it cannot collect the state tax because of busi-

ness fai.lures or damaged property? 

I have been talking about the principles of responsibility and 

accountability and much more can be said but I wish- to briefly 

address myself to the constitutional· _m~date of equality and uniformi-

ty. 

Equality is realized when all property is uniformly assessed 

"according to the same standard of value". The state statutes 

define this standard to mean the "true value" of the property. I 

do not expect 100% accuracy in the assessment of property when the 

standard is such a vague E.nd unstable standard, but I do believe 
is 

that tl1e constitutional mandate of equality/abridged when'the variation 

in a·,~'eSS-qtemt:s-exl'!eed a reas9n.ab:J.e lilpit. 

People are just becoming aware of the meaning of "equalization" 
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and how this process affects their county and school taxes. Unless 

the taxable value of property is defined by more stable and concise 

measurements then I fortell a continuing legal battle over this 

problem. I do not know of any tax reform proposal that is aimed 

at correcting the problem of inequality in the assessment process. 

Spot assessment occurs when the assessment of one or more 

properties are altered without altering the assessment of all 

property. The courts have declared spot assessing to be uncon-

stitutional. Cycle assessing occurs when a municipality reassesses 

property by sections on a rotating basis. In Virginia, counties 

assess properties and revaluations have been done on a cycle 

basis. The Virginia Supreme Court has ruled cycle assessing is 

also a violation of constitutional laws. 

New Jersey has never administered the county tax as though 

it is a tax on the individual, but a tax on the municipality. Under 

this administrative rule, individual municipalities have been forced 

to revalue without the rule being applied to other municipalities. 

This is cycle assessing as far as the county tax is concerned, and 

I do not believe a court would find this practice c onstitutional. 

If the county tax continues to be imposed upon property, we 

will see reevaluations being done on a county-wide basis. If we 

have a state-wide property tax, then we will have yearly reassess-

ments on a state-wide ha.sis and this will be done by computer. 

If you think yot•. have problems now, just let state-wide,. computerized 

yearly assessments replace the system we now have. I never thought 

our present tax structure could be replaced by one that is more 
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unjust, but this was before I heard of the state-wide 

property tax. 

Mr. Chairman, I am more than willing to meet with any 

ntember of the legislature to discuss this problem more 

fully. I am willing to debate this issue with anyone. If 

you hope to cure our tax problem ills, you cannot do so by 

n1aking the medicine worse than the illness. An uncontrollable 

tax, an inequitable tax, an oppressive tax is such medicine 

and this spells the property tax. 

Thank you very much. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Thank you, Mr. McCarthy. 

Mrs. Barbara Hansen, North Hanover Taxpayers 

Association. 

B A R B A R A H A N S E N: I am Barbara Hansen. I 

represent the North Hanover Taxpayers Association. I 

would like to thank you for this opportunity to speak 

to you. 

For those of you who are not familiar with North 

Hanover, we are in Burlington County. We are an agricultural, 

residential area with people from middle income to poverty 

levels. Many of our people are retired and on fixed 

incomes. \'le have very little source of taxation other 

than local real estate. 

If thE Governor•s plan for a State income tax goes 

through, in our township, according to the figures in 

the Trenton papers, vve will have a 76.1 percent increase 

in our tax rate. At the present time, through efficiency 

in our own community, we have managed over the past four 

years to lower our taxes by 55 cents per hundred. This 

current cc:tel if it should pass, will raise it from 

;;,2. 0~ ·co .,>3. 58 per hundred. We feel we are being penalized 

for being efficient in our own government. 

At the same time, we were also under the impression 

that things such as the sales tax, cigarette tax and 

138 



several other taxes would also go into education. In 

my experiences, I have yet to see where additional moneys 

have improved the quality of education in our schools. 

I speak from personal experience. I have been a teacher 

in the New Jersey school· system for the past 14 years. 

We are very much opposed to taking local government 

control out of our schools. We are very much in favor 

of home rule and very much would like to keep this. 

We do not see how this income tax will possibly be of 

any benefit. Income tax at this present time with the 

current rate of inflation as it exists would only add 

to the inflation that we are already suffering from. 

Rather we would like to propose to you that as the Legis­

lature you have the power to legislate to repeal the 

statement that requires "thorough and efficient 11 edu­

cation. Local schools have had their budgets turned down. 

Obviously not every taxpayer is that interested. Besides 

what is this thing that we call "thorough and efficient" 

education? 

Furthermore, we would like to see things like govern­

ment ceilings on spending, not: only in the local municipality 

but also on the State level. If I have to live within 

my budget, surely it is time that the State Legislatures 

learn to do likewise. At what point will it come to when 

we are no longer able to pay our taxes? Who then will 

you turn to? 

Thank you for your time. (Applause.) 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Thank you, Mrs. Hansen. 

Does anybody on the Committee have any questions? 

{No questions.) 

Judith Cambria will be next. Do you have a statement? 

J U D I T H C A M B R I A: No, I don' t. I am speaking 

strictly as a private citizen. I want to just tell you about 

three different families and why I feel an income tax is 
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necessary and that you should pass it. 

First my own family - my husband makes a very good 

iacome. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Where do you live, Mrs. Cambria? 

MRS. CAMBRIA: I live in Montclair, Upper Montclair • 

. Hy hnsband makes a very good income. Although he is not 

screaming to you "tax me more," he recognizes and I 

recognize that our present system is very unfair in the 

way it falls on people. And we feel we should be paying 

more for the services that are needed. I do believe that 

government plays a part in helping us be our brother's 

keeper frankly. We are willing to pay more because we 

believe that. 

I would like to contrast that with our next-door 

neighbors who are no longer our next-door neighbors. 

They were 70 years old. They were a lovely couple. They 

had lived in that town all their lives. They have now 

been forced to move out of the State of New Jersey into 

the home of their daughter in another state. Last year 

they had only social security income and their property 

tax was $1100, almost one-third of their total income. 

This is unc0nscionable. 

I would also like to tell you about a very dear 

friend of mine for 18 years who this year lost her 

husband. She is 37 ·!ears old. She has two children to 

raise, two young c..hi.dren. She is now faced with losing 

her horne. Twenty-fi1e percent of the income that she 

has left goes for $2,000 worth of property taxes on 

her horne. 

ASSEMBL\.'MAN ::ERSKIE: I'm sorry. What percentage? 

MRS. CL:.MBRIA: $2000 worth of property taxes on a 

.r:-elatively modest home in Basking Ridge, as a matter of 

fact. She can hang on for one year. I doubt if she 

can hang on any longer than that. She has a small business 
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which employs four other people. If within this year 

she doesn't lose her home, she will probably have to go 

out and take another job and drop her business, which 

means four people will be unemployed. 

My situation can be seen in many other people, many 

of whom recognize and will accept the fact that an income 

tax is necessary to help others. The experiences of 

my neighbors and my dear friend can be multiplied over 

and over and over again in New Jersey, and I urge you 

to enact an income tax to help those people. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Thank you very much, Mrs. Cambria. 

Does any member of the Committee have any questions? 

(No questions.) Thank you very much for your time and 

your patience. 

Vincent Visceglia. Sir, do you have a statement? 

MR. VISCEGLIA: No, I don't have a typewritten state­

ment, but mine is short. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Would you please summarize it. 

V I N C E N T V I S C E G L I A: My name is Vincent 

Visceglia of Federal Storage Warehouses, with buildings 

in Newark, Bloomfield and other parts of the State. 

Thank you, Mr. Chairman and gentlemen, for this 

opportunity to appear before you. 

Generally I am in favor of Governor Byrne's income 

tax package, with the exception of the statewide property 

tax, unpopular as it is, it will give relief to the home 

owners, to those with relatively low income, and also to 

the businessman, by. reduction of the unbearably high real 

estate taxes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Sir, I just want to indicate to 

you, to the best of my knowledge, there is no statewide 

property tax in the Governor's package. 

MR. VISCEGLIA: Well, the $3.00 ---

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Oh, I'm sorry, the business­

comnercial tax. 
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MR. VISCEGLIA: The $3.00 is a property tax, sir. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Yes, sir. 

1~. VISCEGLIA: If these are presently a heavy burden 

to the homeowners, they are likewise detrimental to 

business and industry, from the small family-owned candy 

store to the large manufacturers of our State. 

The every-increasing real estate taxes of industry 

and business are eventually transmitted to the tenant, 

commercial and residential, or as an added cost to the 

product and services. 

In our business we own several commercial buildings 

that we lease to others. During the last ten years 

because of the ever-increasing real estate taxes, we have 

lost many tenants, so that many of our properties are 

now semi-vacant. The losing of tenants means the loss 

of jobs. Whereas five years ago, we and our tenants employed 

over 500 employees, now that number has been reduced to 

less than 300, as a result of the high real estate taxes, 

with many tenants moving out of state or closing up. 

As the Governor has stated, we should encourage 

industry and business to remain in our State and not let 

them close the doors and abandon building after building 

with the loss of jobs. Unless real estate taxes are 

reduced, we will definitely have more ur.employrnent in 

our State. 

The ill-concei,,...,d bills of classified State property 

taxes by Senator Ru~;so and by Senator Bedell would be a 

disaster for New Je; Jey. Such a law would be one of 

the worse in the hi~tory of our State. No other industrial 

5,·tate has such a baG. tax. A classification property tax 

.~ .. s a _:::;unitjve tax. It would accentuate the moving ouf 

industry from New Jersey. Many businesses would be 

ruined and production in our State would suffer. We 

should instead help the business and industry and thus 
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enjoy more employment and more income to our citizens 

in general. 

I also recommend leaving the present 5 percent sales 

tax alone. Reducing the sales tax would increase the 

proposed income tax. That would be undesirable. Up to 

8 percent income tax is high enough. Don't make it worse. 

In conclusion, I recommend that Governor Byrne's tax 

plan, minus the state property tax, is advisable. Thank 

you, gentlemen. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Thank you very much, sir. 

I just wish to point out for purposes of the hearing 

that the proposed $3 tax does include two protections 

that would help the smaller business: one would be the 

75 percent credit against that tax for any taxes paid 

locally~ the other would be a flat $200 credit for every 

business, so that the smaller business would essentially 

be exempt from that tax. I just want to point that out 

for the purposes of the public hearing. 

Thank you very much for your testimony. 

Is Paul Schiff here? 

A£ter Mr. Schiff who is the last witness who indicated 

a desire to testify at the afternoon session, everybody 

else indicating a desire to testify at the evening 

session, we will entertain a short recess after his 
testimony and reconvene for the purpose of hearing all 

of those who desire to testify at the evening session, 

together with the five who may have returned from the 

afternoon session. After Mr. Schiff's testimony, we 

will recess until 7:30. 

Mr. Schiff, I am advised that you have presented 

a statement. I would appreciate it if you could summarize 

it. We will, of course, include the complete statement 

in the record. 

MR. SCHIFF: It is very brief. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: All right, but we are trying 

to have some pity on our stenographer here and if you 
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could summarize the contents of your statement, we would 

be very grateful. 

P A U L M. S C H I F F: Mr. Chairman and members 

of the Committee, first I want to identify myself. I am 

a candidate for the u.s. House of Representatives, in 

the 15th Congressional District, on the Communist Party 

ticket. 

I want to say that New Jersey has one of the most 

regressive tax structures of any state in the country. An 

editorial in yesterday's Home News refers to it as 11 an· 

archaic and inequitable tax structure which was not and is 

not based on the citizen's ability to pay ... What this means 

is that the poor and working people of New Jersey have 

been paying a higher percentage of their woefully inadequate 

incomes in taxes than have the well-to-do and the wealthy. 

The state legislature must now reform this backward, anti­

pppular tax structure and do so in such a way as to 

drastically reduce the tax burden on suffering lower and 

middle income groups and make pay those who can best afford 

to pay. 

I submit that the Governor and the Legislature will 

have overwhelming popular support for a tax reform package 
which includes the following progressive measures: 

1. The elimination and outlawing of all inherently 

regressive taxes - above all the sales tax and the 
cigarette, beer and gasoline taxes as well. 

2. The abolition of property taxes on all owner­

occupied one and two family dwellings valued at under 

$75,000. 

3. "The elimination of employee contributions to 

'he State Unemployment Insurance and State Disability 

Insurance Programs. 

4. ThP- establishment of a progressive state income 

tax that would exempt all incomes under $15,000 per year 
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and be sharply graduated above $30,000. 

The adoption of these four measures would grant 

enormous tax relief to the poor, to senior citizens and 

others on fixed incomes, to most home owners, to the working 

class and to the middle-income people of our state - that is, 

to the vast majority of our people - who have been sinki~g 

in the swamp of wage freezes, rampant inflation, and the 

existing regressive tax structures (federal as well as 

state and local). 

Where then would the money come from to finance 

education and other desperately needed state programs? 

From those who can afford to pay -- those who have not been 

paying: 

First, from a progressive income tax as proposed above. 

Second, from a unfmrm statewide tax on income-

producing property and on private luxury homes, with the 

guarantee that no tax increases be passed on to customers and 

apartment dwellers. 

Third, from increasing the tax on corporations from 

the present rate of 4.25 percent to at least the 19 per­

cent 

SENATOR MERLINO: You know, you asked for attention 

when you were testifying. I think you owe the Committee 

and this young man the same attention and not exhibit 

something which you have in your hand to perhaps distract 

this Committee or the television audience. Show the 

respect you demanded when you testified. 

MR. SOLYOM: I offer you my sincere apology. 

SENATOR MERLINO: Continue, please. 

~~. SCHIFF: Third, from increasing the tax on corpor­

ations from the present rate of 4.25 percent to at least 

the 19 percent which families earning a mere $3,000 a year 

currently pay in state taxes. 

Fourth, from doubling the present inheritance tax 

on estates of more than $100,000. 
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~ifth, from the ~bolition of the infamou~ corporate 
tax havens, such as Teterboro. 

Sixth, from t~xes on foundations and b~nks, on fort 
Authority facilities, and on church properties (exembting schools 
and ch~rch buildings). 

Seventh, from absolute --or confiscatory-- taxes on 
businesses which desert their employees and the state and are re­
sponsible for the run-Away pl~nts that eliminate jobs. 

Moreover, I call upon the Governor, the members of the State 
Legislature and the <ti ti zer:s uf New Jersey to demand that our Con­
gressional repreaentativesin Nashington fight for the enactment of 
a progressive federal tax structure; for the passage of an f~xceae 
Profits Tax on corporations; and for the drastic reduction of the 
inflated-and unnecessary •~r budget now approaching $100 billion. 
Moriies raised from these sources must be returned to the st~tea to 
provide jobs and to build homes, hos~itals, schools, dHy-care facili­
ties, recre~tional facilities, public transportation syste~s and other 
greatly needed services~ 

You may question: c~n the monopoly corporations, banks, in­
surance companies, lbrge re~l estate interests and the rich in gen­
eral afford such a dramatic increase ip their taxes? You may protest. 
bnd SbYI the rich must hbve incdntive -- tne incentive to get still 
richer; corporations must be given tax bre~ks, t~x exemptions, t~x 

concessions, tax loop-holes, t~x rebates -- and even subsidies out 
of the pockets of working people; such is the price'we the vast majori~ 
ty of the people must pay to maintain our so-c~lled "free enterprise" 
system. · 

If such thinking persists in Trenton (and in Washington), more 
and more people are going to perceive that "free enterprise" sy~tem is 
aothing but a euphemism for "rip-off-the-people" system, a ayst•m of, 
by, and for the large propertied interests and especially the profit­
hungry monopoly corporations. The people of our atute are going to 
wonder if perh~ps the salaries of our elected represebt~tives aren't 
sb high as to isolate and insulate them from the problems confronting 
the rest of us. and they will begin to wonder, too, if those repre­
sentbtives aren't too closely tied to the monopoly power structure 
responsible for the perpetuation of gross inequities in the t~x 
structure. They will begin to think in terms of putting up and sup~ 
porting independent candidaten for all local, st~tP- and fe~erai offices 
who offer them clebr pro-l~bor, anti-racist, anti-monopoly programs, 
candidatos who rHveal the commitment and determination to fight for 
dem<:Gratic reforms in the social and economic as well as political 
realms., 

The time to act on behalf of the overwhelming majority of 
your constituents and institute the above tax reform program is NOWt 

Thank you. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Thank you, Mr. Schiff. I would 

point out to you as we did to your colleague from one 

of the other Congressional Districts the other day 

that the present corporate tax rate is in fact, 5.25 

percent, having been raised two years ago. 

MR. SCHIFF: I am sorry. And is the 19 percent 

correct on people earning $3,000? 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: That figure, as I understand 

it, either still obtains or is close enough to represent 

an adequate approximation. 

Does any member of the Committee have any questions 

for Mr. Schiff? (No questions.) 

Thank you very much for your testimony, sir. 

As I indicated, we have a number of pepple who 

indicated a desire to testify at the evening session. They 

will all be heard. In addition, we have some five or 

six people whose names we called for the afternoon session. 

They will be called again at the start of the evening 

session, which will commence promptly at 7:30. To those 

who have already testified, thank you very much; to those 

who are here, we appreciate your patience; and to the 

media, we appreciate your concern as well. 

We stand recessed until 7:30. 

(Half-Hour Recess) 
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Evening Session 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: 

order. 

May we call the session to 

Ladies and gentlemen, may we reconvene, please. 

Anyone who is here for the evening session who was not 

here for this afternoon's session who hasn't otherwise 

indicated a desire to appear should please come forward and 

sign in with the Committee staff member who is seated 

immediately in front of me to my right, with the two 

gentlemen standing here who are presumably signing in. 

I want to indicate that anyone who chooses to be heard 

will be heard. I will take the names in the order that I 

receive them and for the moment we will not be involved 

with any time limitations. However, I intend to adjourn 

the proceedings by ten inasmuch as I am advised if I don't, 

I will be the only one here at that time. Therefore, if 

I get the sense from the length of the testimony that we 

are running short of time, I will be forced to impose 

some time imposition. 

I would reqtiest that anyone who has a prepared state­

ment advise us at the outset of his testimony and then 

be prepared to give us the written statement, which will 

be included verbatim in the record and be prepared orally 

to summarize the contents of the written statement. 

I would first like to call out the names of five 

individuals who were scheduled to appear this afternoon, 

whose names were called and did not appear. I would ask 

if they are present this evening. If so, they will be 

permitted to testify: c. H. Englehart (Present); Mr·s. 

Evelyn Wachter of the Conservation Action Club of Union 

County (Not Present)~ Patrick F. Cosgriff of Pennington 

(Not Present)~ Milliard Starling of Mount Holly (Present)~ 

Dra Symth Freeman (Present). Very fine. We will 

proceed on that basis. Mr. Englehart will be firste 
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MF..MBER OF AUDIENCE: Mr. Chairman, I have one thing 

to say. I have to go to work at 8:00 o'clock. I am just 

an ordinary guy. I don't belong to any official party. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: You don't have to belong to 

anything, sir. 

MEMBER OF AUDIENCE: All I can say is this --­

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Sir, if you are interested in 

testifying, if you will advise the staff of your desirt 

to testify, you will be permitted to testify in due course 

and we will make every effort to see to it that you are 

reached. 

MEMBER: 'OF AUDIENCE: I am against the income tax and 

against it in every way. 

I am sorry but I can't hang around because I have to 

go to work. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: If you will leave a statement, 

we will be glad to include it in the record. 

Mr. Englehart. 

CHARLES H. E N G L E H A R T: Mr. Chairman 

and members of the Committee, my name is Charles Englehart. 

I am the co-owner of a retail business in the City of 

Trenton. I am not speaking on behalf of any group or 

oJ::·ganization, but as an independent, small businessman, 

one of the many who will be adversely affected if the 

proposed personal income tax or related tax measures are 

forced upon the peopJe of this State. 

The programs you have been considering have been 

falsely labelled by your public relations people as tax 

reforma This is not tax reform, this is another means 

of confiscating more money from those whom I call producers, 

the workers, who provide meaningful goods and services, who 

contribute greatly by their productivity to a sound 

economic cyclea 

I ask you to consider the present economic condition 
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of the State and to further consider how this tax 

proposal would bring financial disaster. 

We are relatively prosperous in New Jersey largely 

because we have attracted industry through a favorable 

tax situation. Now we are about to destroy that favor­

able situation with the introduction of these new taxes. 

It can be reasonably predicted we will no lange.·-::· attract 

new industry, business and may, in fact, lose many we 

now have. 

Wasteful government spending, inflation, excessive 

taxation have toppled world governments. I also point out 

the present plight of Italy and England. Both are literally 

bankrupt as a result of their socialistic programs. These 

countries now are unable to pay their bills and cannot, 

in fact, pay their public employees. Massive strikes have 

become a way of life for them and economic chaos will soon 

prevail. 

Closer to home,we have seen what happened in Michigan 

when Soapy Williams went on a wild spending tax spree. 

He bankrupted the state and tried to pay his employees 

in scrip before being thrown out of office by the taxpayers. 

Is that where we are headed in New Jersey? I hope 

not. 

You will further increase inflation by imposing the 

proposed property taxes on commercial property at a higher 

rate and implementing the new business taxes suggested 

by the Gove~nor. Common sense should tell us the business 

men will not be the ones who will really pay these taxes. 

They will, of course, be passed on to the consumer in the 

form of increased prices. Once again, it will be the 

p::··oducers, the workers, who will be hit hardest by the 

tax proposal, both by an income tax or being forced to 

pay the business tax indirectly through high prices. 

The justification of this new tax proposal is 
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supposedly to fulfill the State•s obligation to provide 

a "thorough and efficient" education for all. The Governor, 

when asked, could not define "thorough and efficient" 

Education. The .new Commissioner of Education, Dr. Fred 

Eurke, was equally at a loss to come up with a definition. 

With all due respect, I doubt anyone on this Committee or 

anyone in this room, for that matter, can define a 

"thorough and efficient" education. Yet here we are, 

thinking of spending almost a billion dollars on something 

we can•t even define. 

I can, however, tell you what "thorough and efficient" 

is not. It is not spending millions in tax dollars to 

permit the new breed of educators to experiment further 

with the children in our schools. It is not the expenditures 

of tax dollars for programs which are completely unrelated 

to basic eduation. It is not the construction of palatial 

schools and even more palatial administration buildings. 

It is not handing millions of dollars to the local school 

boards to be wasted. 

I have a clear example of the last situation.. Recently 

the Trenton School Board received a five-million-dollar 

windfall of State funds under the Bateman formula. Immediately 

the School Board increased their budget from 20 to 25 million. 

Not one cent was used to bring at least partial relief 

to the local property owners. 

This is precisc~ly what will happen with the money 

the State now inten<u to dispense under the new tax program. 

As in all areas of government, educators must be 

taught to economize, If we do not supply them with the 

·:ill ions which they say they need, they will, of course, 

be fcr'":ed t.) become more thorough and efficient. We 

would,therefore, be meeting the court•s mandate, not by 

spending more mo"ney but by spending less. 

Finally, Mr. Chairman, I would like to relay to 
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this Committee the mood of the people as I see it in 

my every-day dealings with the public in my business. 

The people are angry~ they are very angry about this 

income tax. They do not want it or any other form of 

new taxation. So far you have given them only two alternatives, 

an income tax or a State property tax. There is a third 

alternative - no new taxes at all, but restructure the 

State's spending to finance the schools from existing 

revenues. That is the only alternative that will appeal 

to the people. 

I strongly suggest that this Committee put the question 

of the income tax or the State property tax on the ballot 

in November to allow the taxpayers to express their 

views. I believe the overwhelming opposition you will 

see will amaze you, perhaps even frighten you; you their 

elected officials will soon be running for re-election. 

Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: My own capacity for amazement 

will probably, at least I hope so, never cease. But I 

assure you from my judgment of my fellow legislators 

that we have a very limited capacity for fright. 

Does anybody on the Committe8 have any questions? 

(No questions.) 

Thank you very much. We appreciate your time. 

Milliard Starling. 

M I L L I A R D S T A R L I N G: My name is Milliard 

Starling. I am located in Mount Holly, New Jersey. I 

am a pensioner. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Excuse me. What, sir? 

MR. STARLING: A pensioner. I am on pension. 

For better than 30 years I worked for one firm 

and at this time I have seen fit to retire of my own 

choosing. 

I am deeply concerned about taxes. I am a dual, so 
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to speak, resident, having worked in New Jersey and 

Pennsylvania for the last 30 years. I have a keen interest 

now, as I am a resident of New Jersey. 

At this particular time I would like to thank the 

Governor for having responded to two of my three letters 

to him. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: That is not a bad batting average. 

MR. STARLING: At the time the Governor stated he 

would run, I told my wife when I read about it in the paper 

in the afternoon, "This is going to be the next Governor 

of New Jersey," and I passed that comment on to him, to 

which he responded. 

Having been a resident of Pennsylvania as well, I 

sent Governor Byrne and Governor Shapp the same message, 

that the little people are losing faith in our government. 

I was surprised more so in the last election than ever· before 

in the history of my life to find so many people who have 

refused or declined to go to the polls to vote. A lot of 

them are leaning that way. 

I take this manner of introducing this because of 

the fact that it is a far-reaching subject.as far as I 

am concerned. I have been taxed all my life. 

The papers state that the Governor hasn't done a 

very good selling job on this tax program. I have to agree 

wit..h that to a varic:l extent. But there are certain facets 

of it that I am prinarily interested in, welfare and education. 

particularly welfarE. B~om the days of Governor Duff 

until now, I have bEen a bitter opponent of welfare in 

suc'b. cases as we see today. I would take nothing away 

from a child ..... n need. But being who I am and having worked 

t.he way I have, working my way up from a laborer to manage­

ment and then electing to retire on my own, I have seen 

some things that most of you will never see in the lower 

bracket of people who are very deserving but never get 
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the funds that are allotted to and for them. This is 

a matter of proof that can be stated and checked. This 

matter was also brought to the attention of Governor Byrne. 

I won't go into details on that. 

The other one is education. It was my belief several 

years ago that there was a lottery instituted for the 

purpose of assisting the educational program in this State. 

Along with this program today, I began.to wonder if it 

is necessary for the lottery moneys and the additional 

moneys that are earmarked as anticipated in this budget here. 

Is this a requirement that the present status of the 

government is such that each year we are going to need 

such vast funds as we say for education? Now this is 

where the job of selling to the little man - and there 

are so many of us - comes into focus. 

I would like to have someone, a legislator or whoever 

it might be, and I would welcome the invitation from 

any legislator or any public official to explain to me 

after the meeting, sometime before next week or whenever, 

and show me why I, as an individual, should continue to 

vote to support the present regime as it is when we look 

at it from a national level, from a state level and from 

a local level. 

I know a lot of people refuse or decline to speak 

out, but I am here to speak for some of those. They 

are reluctant. They will say nothing and they will do 

nothing. I am afraid if this continues, somewhere down 

the line we will lose our right to vote. And this is 

what disturbs me. 

So I would appreciate anyone -- I would like to talk 

to someone really to convince me that there is a reason 

whywe should continue to pursue this avenue that we 

have. Thank you very much. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Mr. Starling, there is a song 
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that comes to my mind, something about 11 Walk a Mile in 

my Shoes. 11 

MR. STARLING: Yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: I would certainly :say to 

you personally and to anyone who may be listening who 

feela as you do, quite understandably, that this Com­

mittee would certainly invite and encourage you to walk 

two weeks in our shoes. You can start tomorrow morning 

at 9:30 when we are going to meet in Committee session 

downstairs in the Lounge in this building, and sit with 

us and observe us as we wrestle with these questions. 

A.fter the Committee meeting is over, perhaps at the 

lunch break or whatever, we would be glad to sit down 

with you individually and answer any questions you may have. 

We also have staff here that can answer any specific 

questions you may have. 

I think maybe if you take advantage of that, you 

may not have all your problems solved or all your questions 

answered, but you may have a somewhat larger view on 
c 

what the problems are and how we should be going about approach-

ing them. You and everybody else are certainly cordially 

invited and encouraged to take advantage of that. I don•t 

profess to say that that is going to solve all the problems, 

but it might give you some of the insight that you are 

looking for and might give you some answer to that question, 

which is a good one. 

MR. STARLING: Right. I would like to say this 

question is a distu:t:·bing one because my experience 

has shown it to 1::e one of far-reaching, national importance. 

It is something that concerns all small people. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: There are no small people. 

MR. STARLING: In one sense, there are. I think you 

get what I mean. My position is this, that taxation goes 

back to the beginning of all of this. It is all a form 
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of taxation, if not in finance, in something else. But we 

are talking today about taxation in the State of New Jersey. 

I realize that. This is what has brought me here for the 

first time in my life to step before a microphone to make 

a remark like this. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Welcome. It is good to have 

you. 

MR. STARLING: And I would like to be here tomorrow 

morning. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: You can certainly do that. 

If the members of the Committee see fit, we will start 

at 9:30 and we will be downstairs in the Assembly Lounge, 

which is located immediately downstairs. 

Do any members of the Committee have questions for 

Mr. Starling? (No response.) Thank you very much, sir. 

We would like to see you at our Committee meeting. 

MR. STARLING: I will be there. Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Dr. Snu tb Freeman of the 

Sierra Club. Doctor, thank you very much for your patience. 

I understand you have a prepared statement. We would 

be grateful if you would summarize it for us. 

S Y IT H F R E E M A N: Thank you. 

I am here on behalf of the New Jersey Sierra Club. 

I am a member of the Executive Committee and Chairman of 

their Land Use Committee. 

I was the one who largely drafted the Sierra Club's 

policy statement, which is the content of the statement 

I have given you. I was in a fortunate position to do that 

because I have been engaged professionally for the last 

six months in the study of the land-use effects of the 

property tax in particular. 

The Sierra Club is a conservation organization. We 

are interested in the environment. We conceive that the 

property tax has a very. significant effect on the environment, 
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and, in particular, on land use. We see that it has two 

reasonably clear-cut adverse effects. One is the state 

of mind that it induces in municipal officials throughout 

t~he State. They hustle for rateables. They are obsessed 

l•y obtaining taxable property. And in this very natural 

I,~eoccupation, they lose sight of some factors which we 

think in the long run to be more important. We are anxious 

to permit them to take a longer view. We think that 

un~ying them from this too-close concern with property 

tax rateables will permit them to investigate some initiatives 

in land-use planning and control. 

Secondly, we feel that the present way we are going 

in the State of spreading people out uniformly in a sort of 

a grey, formless mass throughout the State is not the best 

way for a highly-urban state to develop. We think instead 

viable cities and countryside which really is countryside 

will provide us in the long run with a far more desirable 

environment, So we are anxious to see cities survive and 

we are anxious to see them remain viable economic entities, 

which is what they have traditionally been. 

We believe that the property tax does provide a burden 

on the economic life of cities. It makes them as a human 

environment, as an economic environment, less vigorous. 

And we are anxious to see that barrier lowered. 

Both these effects result primarily from property 

tax differentials, the big differences between one munici­

pality and another, especially the center cities and the 

suburbs. 

We support the Byrne proposals. We feel, in general, 

·they are responsive to these needs. Our only critic ism 

v,rould be thz~t we feel that they don't really go far enough. 

They will permit substantial differentials in property 

tax rates to persist. These result from the need, especially, 

of the older center cities to spend heavily on municipal 
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services. We would like to see eventually this question 

also addressed by the Legislature, some attempt to mitigate 

these very high tax rates for the municipal services budget. 

I would mention in particular that the comments that Brian 

Baxter made this afternoon seemed to me very much to the 

point. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: I'm sorry. Comments by whom? 

BR. FREEMAN: Comments by Brian Baxter, the repre­

sentative of the City of Trenton. They seemed very cogent 

to me. 

(The written statement of the Sierra Club 
submitted by Dr. Freeman can be found 
beginning on page 95 A.) 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Thank you, sir. 

Mr. Mac Innes has a question. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MAC INNES: Dr. Freeman, have you had 

a chance or has the Sierra Club had a chance to evaluate 

the effect of the adoption of a statewide property tax on 

the same land-use considerations which you think would be 

assisted or aided by the adoption of an income tax? 

DR. FREEMAN: We have given a good deal of thought 

to this. From a land-use point of view, there are advantages 

to the income tax and advantages to the statewide uniform 

property tax. 

As I mentioned, most of the land-use effects of the 

property tax arise from the fact that it has been admin­

istered by individual municipalities and that it differs 

from one jurisdiction to the next. From that point of 

view, there would be no problem with a uniform statewide 

property tax. 

On the other hand, there are some members of the 

Club who have been concerned with the attempt to preserve 

rural open space, who point out that there are many people 

who hold land because they enjoy it, because they have a 

variety of non-economic motives for holding it. The 
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property tax tends to force these people to convert the 

land -to its highest economic use, which usually means 

development. So from the point of view of buying time 

for the preservation of open space, an income tax has some 

significant advantages. 

On the other hand, one notes that a property tax is 

in its effect an excise tax on housing and it compels people 

to be economical in their use of housing and all things being 

equal, which they assuredly are not in the real world, it 

would make people economize on housing,which means contracting 

the scale of cities. But I think this is a higher order 

of fact and is not as important as these other things I 

mentioned - the big differences from one municipality to 

another. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Any other questions from the 

Committee. (No questions.) 

Doctor, thank you very much. We appreciate your time 

and your efforts in this regard. 

Did Mayor Englander from Hillsdale return? (Not present.) 

Moving now to basically the evening list, Salvatore 

A. De Sapio. 

S A L V A T 0 R E Ao D E S A P I 0: My name is 

Salvatore A. DeSapic. I am Chairman of the Hunterdon County 

Young Republicans and State Platform Chairman of the New 

Jersey Young Repu1 '_icans. 

In May of this year, the New Jersey Young Republicans 

passed in its platfo.nn a resolution which says, "We oppose 

the onact.rnent of a State income tax because it would add 

significantly to the total tax burden of this State's 

citizE~,S,. '1 

Jne of the major reasons behind the Byrne proposal 

of a State ic1come tax is to comply with the Batter decision• 

in which it was held that our present system of financing 
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public education is unconstitutional. 

There are many ways to comply with the Botter decision 

without accepting the State income tax plan of Governor 

Byrne. But I am not here to speak on these. It is my 

belief that there is a higher authority than that of the 

Constimtion as interpreted by the courts and that is the 

will of the people. 

Gentle~en, I will quote from the document which 

gave this great nation of ours its birth, the Declaration 

of Independence: "We hold these truths to be self-evident, 

that all men are created equal, that they are endowed by 

their creator with certain unalienable rights, that among 

these are life, Liberty and the pursuit of happiness - That to 

secure these rights, governments are instituted among men, 

deriving their just powers from the consent of the governed ••• " 

The consent of the governed - that is government of the 

people, by the people and for the people. 

We, the Young Republicans of New Jersey, believe 

that the issue of a State income tax, an issue of such 

great importance, should be decided by the people of 

this State by referendum, not by legislation from our 

courts. 

The Botter decision can be nullified by passing 

Senate Concurrent Resolution Number 3, which would permit 

the people of this State to amend the New Jersey Consti­

tution to allow the support of public schools through local 

property taxes, augmented by State aid. 

I read every day and hear from educators, co-workers, 

associates and friends of the growing opposition to the 

State income tax. A poll conducted by the Herald News 

of Passaic in May of 1974, found that 98 percent were 

opposed. Today at lunchtime, where I work, I asked many, 

many people and every one was opposed to the State income 

tax. Even Governor Byrne admitted thatms mail was running 

six to one against a State income tax. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: I think he said seven. 

MR. DE SAPIO: Excuse me? 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: I think he said seven. 

MR. DE SAPIO: Thank you. 

If you as legislators are forced to pass the State 

income tax of Governor Byrne because of a court ruling and 

pass it in spite of such overwhelming opposition, you will 

be destroying the concept upon which this count~y was 

founded, that is, government which derives its just powers 

from the consent of the governed. 

The Declaration of Independence goes on to say that 

whenever any form of government becomes destructive to these 

ends, it is the right of the people to alter or abolish it 

and institute new government. 

If you are interested in being re-elected, don't ignore 

the overwhelming opposition to this plan. I am very sure that 

if you were to ask the people of this State it they wanted 

an income tax, they would almost unanimously tell you, no. 

There are two major reasons behind their answers: one, 

other taxes withheld from their pay are already too high; 

and, two, is that when another source of income is added 

to the State government, new ways will be found to spend it 

und it will raise taxes in years to come. 

If the income ·tax plan of Governor Byrne is accepted, 

it will already be generating income to be used for other 

purposes besides edt,cation, such as welfare, the court 

system and tax overburden. 

I operate a bulldozer for a living and I am a 

ruember of Local 825, Operating Engineers. As of June 19th 

of this yea::-, my total earnings were $9, 720. 

ASSEl'illi..YMAN PERSKIE: Where do you live, sir? 

MR. DE SAPIO: Baptistown, New Jersey. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: What county? 

MR. DE SAPIO: In Hunterdon County. 
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After deducting federal income tax, social security 

and unemployment which were withheld from my pay, I brought 

home only $6,704.48. This means that $3,015.52 was with­

held from my pay. By the end of the year, assuming that 

I work at the same rate, $5,597.32 will have been withheld 

from my paycheck and I will have brought home only $14,522.68 

out of my total earnings of over $20,000. 

If a State income tax is added next year 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: I am sorry, sir, but before 

you go on, did you say you had earnings of $9,000 or $20,000? 

MR. DE SAPIO: $9,000 as of June 19th. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: I'm sorry. Go ahead. 

MR. DE SAPIO: If the State income tax is added next 

year and my income is the same as this year, I will pay 

$2,042.80 in State income tax, bringing·the total amount 

withheld from my pay to $7,640.12. 

In 1850, a man only had to work one of every twenty 

days to pay his taxes. Today he works two out of every five. 

There are other proposals, such as socialized medicine, in 

Congress, which will take an even bigger bite out of our 

taxes. Where will it all end? Perhaps some day we won't 

even get a paycheck and the government will provide every­

thing. That can be found in Russia. 

Mr. Chairman, earlier you mentioned the song, "Walk 

a Mile in my Shoes." I invite any one of you to come some 

day and work on a construction job and see how it is, see 

how tough it is to earn a living. It is not easy. Sure, 

I get paid pretty well. I am not married; I have no 

dependents. It is easy for me, but what about the family 

man? 

I ask you to please strike a blow for freedom and 

defeat the State income tax. Thank you, sir. (Applause.) 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Thank you. I have a few 

questions. In the first instance, you indicated that 

you had asked a number of people whether or not -- well, 
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you just said you had asked a number of people and none 

was for it. What did you ask them, whether they were for 

or against the income tax? 

MR. DE SAPIO: Right. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Are you aware of the public 

opini:.m surveys, for whatever validity they have - and I 

am not conceding anything by way of relevance to any of 

this, except for the purposes of discussion - which have 

consistently shown as late as last week that the majority 

of the citizens of the State of New Jersey prefer the 

in~osition of a State income tax to increased property 

taxes, and that when asked the question about an income 

tax, not in the context of being for or against it, but 

rather in the context, 11 WOuld you·prefer an income tax or 

increased property taxes," a significant majority of the 

people opted for the enactment of an income tax? 

MR. DE SAPIO: Well, sir, that poll may hold validity, 

depending on how you look at it. But I believe if this 

question were put to the people in the form of a referendum, 

they would turn it cown,just as they opted for a sales tax 

rather than an incorr2 tax years ago. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: The second point I want to make 

is that I don't know where you go·t your figures from, but 

according to the information that I have been given here 

that categorizes the plan by particular income category 

and what not, on a :t.)ugh basis from what you have indicated 

and making allowances, as I would have to approximate beca.u.se 

my schedule is based on a family of four with average 

deductions and,. as you have indicated, you are a family 

of one, I would guesstimate that your income tax burden 

would fall somewhere in the neighborhood of five or six 

hundred dollars as opposed to the $2,000 figure you mentioned. 

Admittedly, my figure is not exact, but it falls somewhere 

between $335 and $742. I figure it closer to five or six 
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hundred. 

MR. DE SAPIO: Perhaps my arithmetic is wrong, but I 

took it from a chart published in the Hunterdon County 

Democrat and I claim no dependents. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: I understand that. Without 

reflecting certainly on that paper, what I would suggest 

that you do-- I understand you are somewhat pe:·,Jonally 

familiar with Mr. Foran, who is apparently somewhat well­

known up in that area. I suggest that he has the same 

figures that I have and I think if you will sit down with 

him for ten minutes, he will be able to give you a very 

good insight into what your burden would be. The consequence 

of that, of course, would be up to you and him, but I think 

that he would certainly have access to the correct figures. 

Mr. Foran, do you have any questions? Does any 

member of the Committee have any questions? (No response.) 

Thank you very much, sir. We appreciate your time 

and your efforts. 

George Mo Gottuso, Manager of Lawrence Township, will 

be next. Is he present? (No response.) 

Kathy Greene. Is she present? (No response.) 

Harold Shamyer, from Princeton. 

HAROLD S H A M Y E R: My name is Harold Shamyer. 

I am a resident of Princeton, New Jersey, and a property 

owner and small business man. I have no prepared statement. 

I don't even know what I am going to say. I have given 

this very little preparation. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIES: That puts you just about at 

the same level as most members of the Legislature when 

they get up. 

MR. SHAMYER: I agree with you. (Applause.) 

Two hundred years ago, a new philosophy in government 

was born. The founders of our country decided that they · 

were going to throw off the yoke of tyrannical governments. 

Taxation without representation was the battle cry. 
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Taxation without representation is a hell of a lot better 

than taxation with the representation we are getting. 

It seems to me with the philosophy that was created 

i.tt that time, probably the most revolutionary idea in the 

annals of government in its relationship with individuals, 

the founders of our country gave us a new system in which 

they stated, don't trust any politician. These are the 

words of Jefferson: Never trust any'politicians~ they 

must be chained to the Constitution. The philosophy was 

to protect the individual from the tyranny of his own 

government. That is what the Constitution is all about. 

The Constitution is a negative document. It protected 

the individual from his government. We must have govern­

ment, but government is like fire; when properly harnessed 

in a stove, it can be beneficial to mankind, but if the 

fire gets on the draperies, it can cause havoc and tyranny 

and destruc~ion. That is why the Constitution protected 

the individual from his own government. 

What has been happening over the past 50 or 60 years 

in this country has been taxation from a local municipal 

level, to a state level, to the federal level, of all of 

the earnings of the individual. It is getting to a point 

today where the more a man works and is productive in society, 

the more he is taxed. 

In 1913 when the income tax amendment was passed -

and prior to 1913, ~e didn't have an income tax at a 

federal level - they said the tax would never be more than 

one percent and only the rich would be taxed - it would 

never be the middle-class people. Today the middle-class 

are being squeezed out of everything. They are being 

:.::queezed by taxation on every level. They are being 

squeezed by inflation. This is not the fault of an individual. 

It is not the fault of a wage-price spiral. It is the 

fault of government. Because inflation is an excess of 

money and credit in circulation and that is not created 
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by a wage-price spiral. It is not created by the working 

man or the small businessman. It is created by he who 

controls the money supply and that is government. The 

enemy of people is the size of government. We are moving 

towards more government and more government and more 

government until one day we are going to end up with total 

government. 

Our legislators have the attitude that they know what 

is right for the people. Well, the American people have 

always been able to take care of themselves when properly 

left alone. That is what our whole system of government 

was about, to leave us alone from our own government. We 

will take care of ourselves. We recognize that with 

freedom comes responsibility. We want to be able to take 

care of ourselves. But the way the inflation squeeze is 

on and the way the government is taxing us, there is nothing 

left for anybody to be able to do anything except become 

wards of the State, regardless of what the level is. 

I would challenge the Committee, if you are really 

sincere in trying to solve the problems of New Jersey, to 

put it on the ballot and let the people vote. 

You mentioned, Mr. Chairman, that when people are given 

the choice between whether they would like to have raised 

property taxes or whether they would rather have an income 

tax, people would invariably say the income tax. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: I didn't say invariably. I 

said a majority. 

MR. SHAMYER: The majority? 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: The latest poll was 53 to 41. 

That is not invariably. 

MRQ SHAMYER: But the way you are presenting it is 

like saying, "What would you rather do, spit on the flag 

or spit on the Bible? 11 Why not give them an alternative 

of no taxation. Why can't we get the government to do 

exactly what the individual has to do and that is to live 
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within his budget. I would like a Cadillac, but I can't 

afford one. We can't afford an income tax. We can't 

afford any more excessive taxation because you are strangling 

everybody in this country. We are being strangled. If 

you don't believe me, then put it on the ballot and 

allo~ the people to vote. 

Coufud I ask the board a question? . Could I ask you 

for your opinion as to whether we could have this on a 

referendum and allow the people to decide what they would 

rather have? 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: No. The Cornmi ttee is not 

going to respond to that particular question. I didn't 

really intend with the last speaker, as I indicated, to 

get into a dialogue because I am not really convinced 

of the relevance of it at all, but you may certainly express 

your opinion that it should be on the ballot. That is 

well within your prerogative. However, it is not our 

function here to make that determination. 

MR. SHAMYER: The last thing I would like to say is 

that I lost my train of thought. I lost the point I was 

getting at. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Take your time. So far the 

Committee thinks it should tell you that you are doing, 

as I indicated, at least as well as the average legislator. 

MR. SHAMYER: Well, two times nothing is still nothing. 

I know what the point was. I've got it. In today's 

paper, Governor Byrne expressed the opinion -- and I am 

sure that the average person when he picks up the news­

paper an~ he reads it will get frightened by the way 

the Gover::-.or expressed himself, "Boy, if we don't get this 

income tax, c..ll of our education is going to go down the 

drain," which I think is more or less scaring the public 

and I doubt very much that our educational system will 

go down the drain. I am not saying that is very bad anyway. 

Our budget for education throughout the country has gone 
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up seven times faster than the population. I hire college 

students and I am telling you they can't add, they can't 

subtract, they can't make change. So I don't know what 

has happened to the educational system and I don't think 

more money means better education. I think our teachers 

do a very, very fine job and I don't think we have to have 

the most beautiful, lush buildings. 

The point I am trying to make is that it looks to 

me as though we are becoming a province of the federal 

government because I think that most of the direction 

is coming from the federal government and all the pressures 

are being put on in just about every area. You have the 

Occupational Safety and Health Act, which is designed to 

put out of business small independent businessmen. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Can we stay within tax reform, 

sir? 

MR. SHAMYER: This is all part of it. It is all part 

of the federal intrusion into the state. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: We are not here dealing with 
federal intrusion. We are not here dealing with that. 

That is a very substantial area. I may happen to agree 

with you in some parts of that, but that could take us 

weeks if we got into that and that is not our jurisdiction. 

We are only concerned with proposals to amend the tax 
structure of New Jersey. The questions about the federal 

government will have to be discussed in another forum. 
MR. SHAMYER: Well, I think we can live within the 

budget. I think we have enough money. After a 3 percent 

sales tax and then a 5 percent sales tax and a lottery, 

~ don't know where all the money is going. I don't think 

anybody else knows where the money is going. But the 

taxpayers deserve a fair shake. 

All .I am saying is that I think this insane, wild 

profligate spending has got to stop. (Applause.) 

21 A 



ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Thank you, sir. Does any member 

of the Committee have any questions? 

ASSEMBLYMAN CHINNICI: Mr. Shamyer, I would just 

like to tell you that there have been some resolutions 

tc put the referendum on the ballot. Assemblyman Orechio 

has iLtroduced ACR 11, and I am co-sponsor of it, to put 

it on the ballot, and it never has come out of Committee. 

I would like to ask you a question, sir. Have you 

ever been involved in government at all? You say you have 

been in business for many, many years. Have you ever held 

public office? 

MR. SHAMYER: No. 

ASSEMBLYMAN CHINNICI: I would like to ask you one 

question - and I mean this in all sincerity - why haven't 

you tried to get into government to see what you could doZ 

This is why I am here. 

MR. SHAMYER: I may have to. 

ASSEMBLYMAN CHINNICI: I didn't like what was doing 

on and I tried to come here to see if I could help. I 

think people like you are really obligated- and I am 

not saying this sarcastically - I mean this in all sincerity 

if you think you have something to offer, either your 

local, state or federal government, you ought to make 

yourself available, especially if you have experience in 

business. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PER[KIE: Mr. Shamyer, in order to follow 

that up, I wonder if you are aware as to the identity of 

your representative down here. 

MR. SHANYER: Yes, I am. Mr. Weidel and Mr. Foran. 

have called 1•1r. Foran, but I didn't get through. I 

. lled .iYL:. v,..:.:idel and didn't get through. I didn't send 

.·lr. Foran a· letter because I understoo-d he was against 

the income tax, so I felt he was the only one in the 

State of New Jersey that was any good. (Applause.) 
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ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: We appreciate your time. 

Thank you very much. 

Roger Blease~ 

R 0 G E R B L E A S E: My name is Roger Blease. I 

am a resident of Ewing Township. I would like to oppose 

the income tax on a few grounds. 

First of all, it seems to me that it is a Jiscriminatory 

tax. Under all the beautiful rhetoric and what not, it 

comes out that we are asking the suburbs to subsidize the 

city schools. Of course, this is discrimination in the 

name of anti-discrimination, which seems to be peculiar. 

They are telling us that the local tax laws are 

illegal under the Better Decision. To say the local ·tax­

ation won't work is ridiculous because obviously it has 

worked for hundreds of years. We are arguing on the Better 

aecision and that is opposed diametrically by the Rodriques 

decision in the Supreme Court. But the Better decision 

is given to us as an accomplished fact and is on a situation 

that is still in dispute. But we know local taxation 

will work because it has worked. 

Now the premise that the income tax will lower property 

taxes is bRsed upon a fraud. We have had two examples 

of it. The lottery and the sales tax were promulgated 

on exactly the same thing and each time the thing went up. 

But we have reached such a state of low morality that we 

no longer call people liars and hypocrites in view of 

their past statements. 

Under the conditions today, it is very difficult for 

politicians to think in terms of their constituents and 

what they \'/ant and what is best for them. You can see 

in the background a very great,centralized power that 

dictates to them. I have been able to find no groundswell 

at all indicating the people want an income tax. It is 
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being forced upon us by a concentrated effort. I wouldn't 

want to identify the source right now, but you can see 

the broad power of it. Politicians suffer under one great 

jisadvantage. If you wnat to be a politician, you have 

to get re-elected. If you oppose the great powers that be, 

your chances of being re-elected are greatly diminished 

because the name of the game is money. This, of course, 

increases the power of government. There is only one 

source of income that the government has. It has to 

extort it from the producers of the country. 

As we surrender more and more power and there is no 

limit to what taxation can be, pretty soon we will be 

at the same place the Russians are. They have no income 

tax. The government pays them and takes the income tax 

out first. So the power of government is being increased 

and, if you carry out the progression, you can easily 

determine where it is going to come out, namely, that 

we will be slaves. 

To extort money from people, you have to have an 

altruistic means. ~ducation, of course, is something 

no one disputes. We have to have education of one kind 

or another. When you take a look at the education we 

are getting today, it stinks. 

I have a grandson. He goes to a Christian school. 

It costs $2 a day, $360 a year. At the age of six, he 

can read Readers Diqest, four syllable wprds and all. 

I would challenge quite a few high school students to 

be able to do the same thing. This is for $360. We are 

paying $1200 a year for students and, if you have ever 

corrected any of their papers, if you have ever edited 

their ar~)lications to college, you will find we are pro­

ducing functional illiterates. 

To say if we spend more money, we produce better 

education, is not true. It is exactly opposite to the 
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facts. We have an inverse relationship. The more money 

we spend on it, the poorer quality of education we get. 

There is a very simple solution to it. The problem 

that faces the government is exactly the same thing that 

faces people, namely, before a family man spends a dollar, 

he has to determine whether he can afford it or whether 

he cannot. I would highly recommend the same t1:lng to 

the government. No one asks can we afford it? They say, 

we have this proposal - now what is the most painless way 

of extracting the money from the people. As I see it, 

the proposed income tax is somebody's idea of the most 

painless way of extracting the money. I think we should 

live within our budget the same as a family does. We 

should consider what expenditures are necessary and not 

just take the word of a commission, which again goes back 

to the highly centralized force. Commissions are controlled 

by these - your presidential commission and what not. 

These are not the real factors. We have to get down to 

what we can afford and how to pay for it. If you do 

not propose things that we cannot afford, you will not 

have all the friction over a tax, as you do today. 

SENATOR MERLINO: Thank you. Are there any questions? 

ASSEMBLYMAN MAC INNES: I don't mean this to rebut 

you at all. I would just like to clarify something that 

you said and the previous speaker also said. You sug­

gested that the State of New Jersey spends more than it 

receives in the form of revenues. The fact is that the 

State of New Jersey is constitutionally unable to spend 

more than it receives in revenues and does not, has not, 

and presumably will not. 

The second thing I would like to say, which is a 

very common both question and misunderstanding, is that 

the revenues from the lottery which equal about 2 percent 
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of the State budget, were not intended for property 

tax relief. They were intended instead for support of 

institutions and agencies and of higher education. The 

lottery this year is expected to generate about $54 million 

against a budget which incorporates revenues of about 

$2.5 billion. Neither in the statute nor in the regulations 

devised for the lottery was it intended to be used for 

tr1e support of local educational costs. I just wanted 

to clarify that for you. 

MR. BLEASE: In the first part, you contradicted 

yourself when you said the State of New Jersey stays 

within its budget. If it merely did that, we would not 

have this d1spute on the proposed income tax in the first 

place. We would be spending as much as we are taking in 

and we would stay in the black. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MAC INNES: The State of New Jersey could 

live within its budget without an income tax. $750 million 

of the $940 million that would be raised by the income 

tax by the Governor's proposal will go to local school 

districts and to municipalities and to counties. It will 

not be spent here in Trenton. It will not support the 

growth of bureaucrac~es in Trenton. Instead it will be 

used to support ---

MR. BLEASE: You mean they wouldn't set up a commission 

to collect the income tax. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MAC INNES: Excuse me. 

MR. BLEASE: They could collect the income tax without 

setting up a bureau to do it? 

ASSEMBLYMAN MAC INNES: No, they will have a bureau 

to do it. 

MR. BLEASE: Then it would increase the bureaucracy. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MAC INNES: I said $750 of the $940 million 

would be going to local governments, either school boards, 

municipalities or to counties, or would represent replacing 
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those functions now performed by counties, such as support 

of the county courts, by direct State operation. 

MR. BLEASE: This is very much in line with the 

powers I was speaking of when I spoke about this huge 

power behind it. Did you ever hear of 1313 Metro Government? 

This is a board that wishes to tear down local lines. It 

has been in Chicago since 1958 that I know of. It wants 

to tear down township lines, city lines, state lines, and 

bring us under a ten-regional government thing. This 

would be exactly in the planning of that socialistic concept. 

SENATOR MERLINO: Any other questions? (No questions.) 

Thank you. (Applause.) 

Rev. Louis DeBarer. 

L 0 U I S D e B A R E R: Before I get into the 

material in my statement, I would like to mention that 

there was a time almost 2000 years ago when the Lord 

Jesus Christ who was king of kings and lord of lords 

stood before the judgment seat of Pilot, who was a repre­

sentative of Caesar. When the Lord Jesus Christ didn't 

seek to defend himself at that unjust trial, Pilot asked 

him, why don't you speak - don't you know that I have power 

to release you or power to crucity you? And Jesus reminded 

Pilot that he had no power except that given him from above. 

Throughout the ages, we have had a conflict between 

Christ and Caesar and tonight I would like to remind the 

government of the State of New Jersey that what power 

government does have, it has from above and is responsible 

to God. 

I have here a statement I prepared about God, the 

Bible and taxes. 

The power to tax is the power to destroy. In the 

aftermath of the Civil War in the reconstruction period, 

most property in the south changed hands several times. 

It was simply taxed away from its owners, sold, then 

taxed away and sold again. The power of unlimited taxation 
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is a very destructive power, and history bears this out. 

That is why the scriptures say, "Put not your trust in 

princes." Our forefathers established the Nation in 

liberty because they put their trust in God and the 

scriptures say, "Where the spirit of the Lord is, there 

is liberty." As was mentioned before tonight, Jefferson 

said, "Bind them down from mischief with the chains of 

the Constitution." 

Scripture testifies that "The earth is the Lord's and 

the fullness thereof ... That means God created all things, 

as outlined in Genesis l, and therefore, the things we make 

we own. The creation is God's by right of private property. 

So, therefore, in the scriptures God has imposed his own 

income tax, not graduated. It is a straight income tax 

of 10 percent and it is called the tithe. Since God created 

all things - he created the earth - since we, his creatures, 

receive the fruit of the earth and the increase of this 

earth, therefore, we owe it to Him to give Him His tax on 

his own creation. 

God is quite modest in his tax. It is only 10 percent 

and it is a straight tax. Now today we have a federal 

government which has a graduated tax and which has a tax 

which is much greater than God ever souqht to impose on 

his own creation. In fact, I looked it up last night in 

the tax forms I picked up at the Post Office and it only 

went to $180,000 gross income for one year, and I am 

sure people make more than that, and there was a 70 percent 

rate, which is seven times God's tax on income. 

Now when people are faced with that kind of a tax 

from Caesar, I would like to ask: How can they possibly 

give God his just and rffighteous due, especially since 

the federal government already takes out a payroll deduction 

and the state makes sure it gets its money before God can 

r)ossibly get His share. I am quite concerned that the 

28 A 



state of New Jersey is going to get into the same business 

of plundering the people and of robbing God. 

Our Christian forefathers, by force of arms, over• 

threw a tyrannical and despotical government and established 

a limited government with limited taxation. Today we are 

again ruled by a government that is unlimited in its 

activities and its scope, that is putting a great burden 

of taxation on the people, and is ruling over them with 

an oppressive bureaucracy. Scripture tells us only God 

is sovereign, God only is almighty, eternal and unlimited. 

Those prerogatives belong to God. They do not belong to 

the state. When the state assumes those prerogatives unto 

itself, it is usurping the very prerogatives of God. When 

the state is not willing to limit its activities.and its 

appetite for the property of its citizens, it is in defiance 

of God's word and clearly usurping the prerogatives of God. 

In the Old Testament, the Israelites rebelled against 

the God-appointed judges ruling over them, demanding they 

have kings like the nations around them, the pagan and 

heathen nations. They thought they would like to be ruled 

by a king. It appealed to them. So they went to Samuel 

and said they wanted a king. Samuel, as God's spokesman, 

warned the people, if you get a king, he is going to tax 

you to death, he is going to draft your young men for 

his service, and he is going to rule over you and oppress 

you. And it certainly came to pass. Just four generations 

later, the Israelites rebelled and they overthrew Rehoboam, 

the son of Solomon, and they overthrew the Davidic dynasty 

because they would no longer pay those taxes. And the 

Bible lays the blame on Rehoboam who insisted on taxing 

his people to death. 

The Americans, like the Israelites, had a heritage 

of limited government and limited taxation and of liberty. 

Like the ten tribes in the days of Rehoboam, they fought 
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in 1776 to obtain those liberties, God blessed them, God 

qave them the victory over the mighty British Empire and 

God gave them the liberty. Now again we have sold our 

birthright and we have lost it. Now it appears we may 

have to fight those battles all over again if we are 

going to have the liberty that was our birthright. 

Even under the worst of the kings of Israel, such as 

Ahab, government was severely limited. Ahab had a 

vineyard next to him that belonged to a man by the name of 

Naboth. Ahab wanted that vineyard. He was king. He 

was ruler over Israel and he wondered how he could get the 

vineyarrl:. He went to see Naboth and said, 11Will you sell 

it'? 11 And Naboth said, 11 n0. 11 Although he was king, Ahab 

realized he had no right or power to extract that person•s 

property from him. Today•s government doesn't even have 

the scruples of the worst king of Israel. Because today 

they just exercise the so-called right, and it is an un­

scriptural right, of eminent domain or theyconfiscate it 

by excessive property taxes and people have to sell their 

property because it is being taxed away from them since 

they can no longer afford to pay the taxes. 

The Bible says, 11 Give unto Caesar the things which are 

Caesar•s~ and unto God, the things that are God's. 11 Today•s 

rapacious governments are not content with Caesar's share, 

and lust after God's share too. 

At present, just the budget of the federal government 

is $300 billion, which is 30 percent of our Gross National 

Product of this natl..on. That means that 30 percent of what 

the people produce is being taken at just one level of 

government. When you include the state and the local govern­

raent, all the direct and indirect taxes, hidden and not­

so-hidden taxes, you will find the American people, accord­

ing to estimates in the 1 60 1 s, are being.taxed totaily 

at a level between 60 and 70 percent. That is quite a bit. 

When peop:.e are taxed to that extent, they can • t even pay 
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God His just and righteous share. And I would like to ask 

tonight, who is greater, god or Caesar? It is time to 

acknowledge God and God's claims and to overthrown the 

claims of Caesar. It is time to obey God rather than 

men. 

Christ had a lot to say about tax gatherers in his 

earthly ministry. In Luke 3, Christ counsels th -,m to 

"exact no more than that which is appointed you. 11 That 

is good advice for today's politicians too. Government 

is exacting more than Caesar's share and is robbing God. 

In Matthew 23, Christ said, "For they bind heavy burdens 

and grievous to be borne, and lay them on men's shoulders~ 

but they themselves will not move them with one of their 

fingers. 11 After repeatedly denouncing them as hypocrites, 

Christ concluded with, "Ye serpents, ye generation of vipers, 

how can ye escape the damnation of hell? 11 

Today's demagogues aren't much better. They continue 

to exalt themselves as the representatives of the people and 

uplifters of the poor and downtrodden. But they, themselves, 

don't lift a finger to remove the tax burden that they 

impose on the people, fattening themselves on expense 

accounts, exorbitant pay raises and tax exemptions for 

legislators only, as has been prop0sed for the gasoline 

tax. (Applause.) But we do have to pay when the tax 

has been doubled. 

F~nally in Matthew 18, speaking of those who refuse 

to listen to the counsel of his church, Christ says, "Let 

him be unto you as a heathen man and a publican." In 

the words of Christ, the publican, an unjust tax gatherer, 

was equivalent to a heathen. According to Christ's words, 

if you vote for this unjust tax and you belong to any 

Christian church, you ought to be excommunicated. 

God is not robbed and God is not mocked. Our forefatherw 

were men of God. They cherished the liberty wherewith 

Christ has set them free. With Patrick Henry, they echoed, 
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"Liberty or death." King George III had to learn 

1~ehoboam's lesson all over again, that when you overtax 

the people, they overthrow you. As Washington's ragged 

,irmy was sustained by God's providence, they overthrew 

:3ritish rule in America. If this government continues on 

its ungodly path, it too must be dealt with. God is 

not mocked. If this government does not repent of the 

course it is charting, it only remains for it to suffer 

tLe judgments of God. 

It is high time that this government be called to account 

to the standards of scripture. It is high time for this 

government to be rebuked from the Word of God. It is high 

time for this government to repent of its usurptions of 

the prerogatives of God and let God be God. Amen. 

(Applause.) 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Thank you very much. 

Does any member of the Committee have any questions of 

the witness? (No questions.) Thank you very much. 

We appreciate your time and your effort. 

Frank Kiernan. 

FRANK K I E R N A N: My name is Frank Kiernan. 

I live in New Egypt, New Jersey. I am a Section Leader 

with the John Birch Society. I am not speaking here 

for the John Birch Society, but as a member and a Section 

Leader of the Society. 

In recent year.:;, we have seen loss of control at the 

local level, higher taxes from Trenton, and Trenton over­

ruling local taxpayers. I am referring to the Commissioner 

)f Education. We have the fear of loss of State money 

b8ing iLfli~ted upon local boards. 

A fellow employee where I work is a school board 

director in Hunterdon County. He tells me that some 

80 percent of his budget is controlled by the State, 

not at the local level, not by the people who were 

elected, but by people who were appointed by one man 
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basically setting dictates and policies fbr the State. 

When these things go to referendum, the people of the 

school district can vote and then they can be overruled 

by one man. This is far too much power to be put in 

the hands of one man, who is not even responsible to 

the people of New Jersey, who is not even elected but who 

is simply an appointed official. 

You know this whole mess of Watergate and executive 

privilege - I think this is what we are making for 

ourselves. The Legislature has divested itself of its 

prerogative. It shouldn't give this much power to an 

appointed official because somebody has got to be your 

boss. Somebody has got to be responsible and responsive 

to the people. 

If we have a State tax, whether it be an income 

tax - and I am not really going to quibble whether we 

are going to increase the corporation tax or going to pay 

an income tax or whether this is going to be more equitable 

or that is going to be more equitable - you and I both 

know that the money is going to come from the same people, 

the same John Doe who pays all the taxes. It is not going 

to be put on the poor because many of the poor pay no 

taxes at all. It is not going to be put on the rich 

because they have made their tax loopholes. Nelson 
Aldridge, who is the maternal grandfather of Nelson 

Rockefeller, drafted the income tax •. Does it seem logical 

that he would draft a tax to soak the rich? This is 

a con game. 
Basically the same people -are going to be paying 

the tax whether we have an increased sales tax, corporation 

tax or an income tax or property tax. What I am con­

cerned about is not taxes, but loss of control. If 

you establish a State tax, then Trenton is going to dole 

out a higher percentage of the school budget, which could 
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be extended to the police budget, which could be extended 

to the fire budget, which could be extended to almost 

c:,aything. Once you start on this thing, there is really 

no letting go of it. Once you break the ice and establish 

t.he preceden't of having a statewide tax - and you probably 

already have established that precedent, unfortunately 

then the temptation is to increase it for this group, 

that group, and another group, until finally the taxes 

spiral higher and higher until the system collapses. 

We are facing this real possibility right now with inflation. 

The Secretary of the Treasury is saying that our inflation 

right now is unbearable. 

I submit if you had a State tax, the local board~the 

local government, whatever system you might set up to 

administer these funds, is going to feel like it is spending 

the other guy's money, and this is the problem right now. 

People feel like they are spending the other guy's money. 

It is a matter of who can get to the trough first, who can 

beat the other guy, to get there and get what is his. 

We have the claim, this is federal money or this is state 

money, so it doesn't cost the taxpayers anything. I have 

had politicians, elected representatives, tell me, this 

is free because it comes from somebody else. Who do they 

think pays these taxes? The same people are paying the 

taxes, whether it is federal taxes or whether it is state 

taxes or county or l~cal taxes. It is still basically 

the same middle-class, the people who make between $8,000 

or $17,000 or $18,00J or$2D,OOO or $22,000. It is not 

the people who make millions and it is not the people who 

are in the poverty level. It is basically the same people. 

So the question really is how to limit taxes. We 

nave seen spending in this State. Between 1965 and 1970, 

when we had a population increase of a little over 6, 

almost 7 pE=~:rcent, less than 7 percent, we saw a spending 

increase of $47 per cent. Gentlemen, that is 25 times 
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faster than the growth of population. That is going to 

eat us alive if it continues unabated. I am talking 

now not about the federal government - I am talking about 

the State. If we keep having this loss of control, what 

we are going to have is more and more sociological exper­

imentation. You and I know what that means. It means 

more bussing. It means more so-called unpopular programs, 

controversial programs, such as sex education, because now 

it is not going to be controlled at the local level, and 

we have lost too much control already by the way. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Mr. Kiernan, I hesitate very 

much to interrupt you. But we have a number of people who 

wish to testify and be heard on the question of tax reform, 

which is the stated purpose of the hearing. I would 

appreciate it if you would confine yourself to the area 

of tax reform. I appreciate that you are making a very 

cogent argument about loss of control. But we would be 

much appreciative if you would limit that argument to 

its impact on the tax structure rather than into the 

other areas. 

MR. KIERNAN: Well, Mr. Chairman, ---

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: We are not here to inquire 

into everything that is wrong with State government. 

That would take us years and years to do. We are here 

only to_consider the variety of programs and suggestions 

for tax reform. 

MR. KIERNAN: I can well appreciate your statement, 

Mr. Chairman. What I am saying here is that through 

taxation, we are losing our control. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: I appreciate that. I recognize 

the cogency of that argument. But I want it limited to 

the issue of tax reform, if you will. 

MR. KIERNAN: All right. I will wind up as best I 

can. 
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If we have a statewide tax, what we are going to 

do is divert more and more money away fran the private 

sector, which is basically the producing sector, and 

'Ne are going to decrease over-all productivity. This 

is definitely going to affect inflation within the 

3tat~. If it does not drive out business, it is going 

to maybe decrease the amount of real taxes that you are 

going to get. 

So I submit that the answer is to reduce taxes 

through efficiency, to cut out some of these programs 

vv-e already have. Really what I am saying is that we 

need no new taxes. (Applause.) 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Thank you very much, sir. 

Does any member of the Committee have any questions? 

(No questions.) Thank you so much for your time and 

effort. We appreciate your coming before us. 

By the official clock, it is almost ten minutes 

before nine. I think we will have enough time to hear 

from everybody before our stated adjournment of ten 

o'clock. If we don't, I will try to allow time to get 

everybody in. But ii: we can aim at ten o'clock, I think 

it would be a nice target. We do have another eight or 

nine witnesses who wish to be heard. I would ask every­

body to sort of divide the 70 minutes by the number of 

witnesses and be guided accordingly, so that I don't have 

tv do it from here. 

Our next two witnesses, I understand, are coming 

in as one entry, Professor Harbison and Robert Lyke, from 

Princeton University. 

F R E D E R I C K H. H A R B I S 0 N: 

My name is Frederick H. Harbison, I have been a resident of New 

Jersey for nineteen years. I own my home and pay real estate taxes in 

Princeton Township in Mercer County. My occupation is Professor of 

Economics, Woodrow V'ilson School of Public and International Affairs, 
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Princeton University. During the past six months I have been co.-director 

of a faculty-student workshop at Princeton on financing education in New 

Jersey. This workshop has attempted to make an objective and nonpartisan 

assessment of the issues in school finance in New Jersey. Our interim re­

port, along with nine supporting working papers was issued last week. 

The New Jersey Supreme Court has ruled that our present system of 

financing schools is unconstitutional. It has ordered the Le~~Jlature tocome 

forward with a plan to provide for the maintenance and support of a thorough 

and efficient system of free public schools by the end of this year. Our 

present system of financing schools, let me say, is one of the most ineffi­

cient, regressive, inequitable, and unfair in the nation. Yet, while deplor­

ing this fact, I feel that the citizens of New Jersey have a unique opportun­

ity to adopt a plan for a thorough system which will be efficient, progress­

ive, equitable, and fair. I also think that this can be accomplished without 

very substantial increases in real levels of expenditure for schooling. 

I favor, first, a reduction in local real estate taxes by having the 

State assume approximately half of the aggregate costs of providing ele­

mentary and secondary education. The high levels of local property taxes 

in this State are well known, and the fact that they place proportionately 

greater burdens on those least able to pay is recognized by all. I need not 

dwell further on the unfairness of this means .Jf raising funds for schooling. 

A graduated income tax, in my judgment as an economist, is the best 

possible means of providing some relief from high and inequitable local real 

estate taxes. I favor a plan similar to that suggested by Governor Byrne 

with graduated rates of from 1-1/2 to 8 percent of taxable income, which 

would be about half of the rates in New York State. I would not advocate a 

piggy-back system geared to the Federal income tax. New Jersey should 

develop its own income tax in order to keep free of the inequities and deduc­

tion problems of the Federal tax. 

The income tax, used as a substitute for part of local property taxes, 

has these advantages: 
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1. It is progressive rather than regressive. The tax burden is relatively 

light on lower income families and greater on higher income families, thus 

providing greater vertical taxpayer equity. The tax burden falls equitably 

on ea<:h taxpayer in accordance with ability to pay. The introduction of a 

graduated income tax as a substitute for part of the regressive local prop­

erty tax is a much needed and long overdue reform. 

2. The income tax is tlexihle. As aggregate personal income increases 

by one percent, the yield from a graduated income tax would increase by 

nearly one and one-half percent. The ratio of increase in personal income 

to increase in property taxes is only one to one. Thus, to meet added money 

costs caused by inflation and other factors, income tax rates -- in contrast 

to thos•e of most other taxes -- probably would not have to be raised in the 

future. The income tax, in other words, would introduce an element of 

tlexibility into our present highly inflexible tax structure in New Jersey. 

3. The income tax would be relatively easy to administer. It avoids the 

problems and pitfalls of property assessments. ·with appropriate deductions 

or tax reductions for the aged as well as those facing excessively high prop­

erty taxes, provision can be made for persons and families faced with unusual 

hardship. 

The state-wide property tax is a poor substitute for the income tax as 

a means for financing schoo:s. While it is true that a state-wide tax would 

provide some relief for most taxpayers in those communities now faced with 

relatively high local real estate tax rates, a state-wide property tax would 

fail to provide taxpayer equ} ty. There are both low and high income families 

in practically all school districts. Under a state-wide property tax system, 

high income and commercial taxpayers in low income communities such as 

Ne·.vark, Camden, and Atlantic City would receive windfall benefits from a 

.1)\~ tion in local property taxes. Low income families in communities 

w, .• ~re there may be no local tax relief (and particularly in cases where there 

may be an increase) would be shouldered with even greater burdens to sup­

port schools. In contrast, an income tax would give more equitable treat-
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ment to individuals and families in accordance with the principle of ability 

to pay. A state-wide property tax, while an improvement over local prop­

erty taxation, would simply perpetuate an inequitable and inefficient system 

for raising revenues for schooling. 

My final plea is for legislators and citizens of New Jersey to examine 

the facts. Ignorance is perhaps the worst enemy of the public interest in New 

Jersey today. Let us evaluate the impact of different tax pa :kages on income 

groups in a 'few New Jersey communities. ' 

I have a table here, which I will submit. There are 

several towns on it, but I will just take one, Trenton. Of 

the income group which makes between $3 and $5 thousand 

a year, which constitutes about 9 percent of the population, 

they have a very high tax burden under the existing system; 

22.4 percent of their income goes for state and local taxes. 

Under the Byrne proposal, with an income tax, this would 

drop to 12.8 percent of their total income. Under the 

Russo proposal, it would drop to about 21.2. 

Now let's take the group from $10 to $15 thousand 

a year. They constitute over 25 percent of the population 

in Trenton. Under the existing system, they are paying 

about 11.2 percent of their total income in State and 

local taxes. Under the Byrne proposal, this would drop 

to 10.3; under the Russo proposal, it would drop to 

11.0. 

Those persons with over $25 thousand annual income, 

constituting only 2.7 percent of the population, under the 

existing system pay only 6.8 percent of their total 

income on State and local taxes. Under the Byrne proposal, 

their burden would be raised to 9.7 percent; and under 

the Russo proposal, it would be raised to 7 percent. 

It is now possible, as a result of the tax model 

developed by the Woodrow Wilson School, for any legislator 

or interested person to take any given tax package that 
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is proposed and cost it out with respect to its impact on 

i1.d.ividual income groups in virtually every community in 

tt.e State of New Jersey. 

I say, gentlemen, and I say to the citizens of this 

State, let us not have ignorance reign, let us look at the 

facts and the facts will show that the income tax is a 

measure which will bring tax relief to the lower-income 

g~oups in this State and provide, in general, a more 

e~~itable system for the citizens of the State as a whole. 

Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman. 

(Table submitted by Professor Harbison 
can be found on page 99 A. ) 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Professor, we are very grateful 

for your time and your obvious careful effort, also we 

are very grateful to the research people at Princeton. We 

have a number of research people from Princeton here on 

the staff. We don't usually brag about it, but under the 

circumstances, I thought I would mention it. 

Does anybody on the Committee have any questions? 

ASSEMBLYMAN CHil~ICI: Professor, I would like to 

ask you a question. The State of New York has an income 

tax, it has a sales tax and today has among the highest 

real estate property tax in the nation. How could an income 

tax be so equitable for New Jersey if it isn't doing the 

job in a sta.te like New Yo::::·k? It really isn • t. 

PROFESSOR HARBISON: Sir, I don't think I am familiar 

w.ith the facts and f.~gures of New York State. Its property 

taxes, I don't belie· e, are as high as they are in our 

State. 

On the other ha:1d -- w.=ll, I will be frank ~:lith you. 

I can 1 T. ans·wer a comparative question of that kind. I 

·an certainly find somebody who will answer it though. 

ASSEMBLYMAN CHINNICI: Thank you. 

ASSEMB .... JYMAN PERSKIS: Does anybody else on the 

Committee have any questions of the Professor? 
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ASSEMBLYMAN CONTILLO: To continue along the line 
that Mr. Chinnici brought up, I called my brother who 

lives in Nassau County and who has a comparable home to 

mine and comparable income, and after inquiring of him 

came up with the same set of facts, which was quite disturb­

ing, that he paid a very high New York State income tax, 

in addition to paying twice the real estate tax that I 

pay on the same size house. It is a disturbing fact. 

PROFESSOR HARBISON: I take it that was an observation 

rather than a question. I would say, however, that one 

cannot take a house in Nassau County the same size and 

compare it with a house in New Jersey of the same size 

and draw from that an objective conclusion on the basis 

of tax equity. 

I would suggest that this matter be explored further 

by the Committee, the matter of comparison of total tax 

burdens in our State and in New York State, and I think 

it might be a very good thing to use the New Jersey tax 

model that has been developed here and see how it works 

out in New York State. 

I am one who believes in objective inquiry. 

I think you have suggested a very good point for further 

research. 
ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Professor, do you think that 

that further research might indicate a correlation between 

the level of services provided by the government of 

New York and that provided by the government of New Jersey? 

PROFESSOR HARBISON: I should think it would, but I 

would not like to hypothesize on it without having looked 

into it further myself. It would be my hunch that it would. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Thank you very much. We 

appreciate your statement, and again thank the University. 

Mr. Lyke - is it Professor Lyke - is also here from 

the University. I see you have a prepared statement. 
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I would request that you summarize and give us the high­

l.i.ghts of your statement, sir. 

F·. 0 B E R T L Y K E: I shall, Mr. Chairman. 

(Following is the complete written statement of Mr. Lyke.) 

My namt is Robert Lyke ar1d I am a resident of Princeton Township in Mercer 

County. Like Professor Harbison who testified earlier this evening I ;, we helped 

direct the Workshop on Financing Education in New Jersey this- pas-t saaester at 

the Woodrow Wilson School of Princeton 'University. I too, however, am speaking 

tonight not on behalf of the Workshop or the University but only for myself. 

I bave two poiats I would like to make about the plan for funding public 

education proposed by Assemblymen Van Wagner and others and Senator Bedell. 

First, I am skeptical that the state-wide property tax they advocate will raise 

sufficient revenue to maintain and support "a thorough and efficient system of 

free public schools.' It seemr· to be accepted by virtually everyone that the 

greater equality in school expenditures required by the Robinson ~· Cahill 

decision should be brought about by "leveling up," not "leveling down." Local 

school districts that C'lrrently spend relatively little per pupil should be 

brought up to some specified level but districts that currently spend relativelr 

~ch should not be forced to ; ·::du1-:e .:heir spending. Leveling up low-spending 

di~~ricts, however, even just to the level of the average district, will take 

much more money than the Van l<tagner-Bedell proposal suggests. Their plan calls 

fo:- tax rat~s of $1.75 per $100 of true value on residential property and $2.25 

pc~r $100 of true 7ah~e -.m (.:ommercial property, which they predict will produce 

e1< .)' money to r;rovide school districts with expenditures of $1,000 per pupil 

in grades K-8 and ·. -~,5::0 p1::.r pupil in grades 9-12. Based upon projected enroll-

ment :..:igures, the average expenditure per pupil in grades K-12 inclusive would 
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be approximately $1,150 for the 1974·75 academic year. But $1,150 per student 

is very low: in the 1974-75 academic year averase expenditures will actually 

be close to $1,450 per student, and if there are normal budset increases by 

1975-76 they will be at least $1,550. Expenditures at this level would require 

significantly hisher tax rates than those indicated • 

There is another reason why I am skeptical that the Van Waper•Bedell plan 

will raise sufficient revenue. 'ftle New Jersey Supreme Court cHd not decree that 

all school districts must spend the same IIIIIOUilt of money on each student. On 

the contrary, it said at one point that there may be "a need for additional 

dollar input to equip classes of disadvantased children for the educational 

opportunity." How much additional money will have to be spent to provide sood 

education for stude~ts with special needs is presently unknown. Effective 

programs for some students might turn out to cost little or no additional money, 

while effective prosrams for others misht cost two or three times what is spent 

on the averase student. The Van Waper-Bedell plan does not deal with this 

problem other than by stipulatins that each vocational student would entitle a 

district to get $1,850 and each atypical pupil (that is, students with severe 

handicaps or mental retardation) $2,500. No cost data have been·provided to 

justify these particular figures, and no estimate is given for the total sum the 

State might have to spend. MOre important, no money is expressly provided for 

compensatory education which the Supreme Court suggested is necessary. In this 

respect as well, then, the Van Wagner-Bedell program would require higher tax 

rates than those indicated. 

The second point I would like to make about the Van Wagner-Bedell program 

concerns local leeway, or the right of local school districts to spend more money 

per student than the State-mandated min~. Whether there ought to be local 
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leeway, and how much, of course are matters of education policy, not tax policy. 

But if there is local leeway, I believe that all school districts should have 

equal fiscal capacity for raising additional money. The Van Wagner-Bedell plan 

does net provide this. It simply permits districts to spend whatever extra 

money they '"'ant as long as they raise all of it themselves. If the plan were 

enacted, the same sort of inequality that characterizes school finance today 

would be perpetuated. Districts with high equalized assessed valuations per 

pupil would find it easy to go beyond the State-mandated mintmum, while those 

with low valuations per pupil would find it difficult. The resulting disparities 

could be so great that the new system of financing would violate the Court's 

requirement for equality of educational opportunity. I believe it is necessary 

that the Van Wagner-Bedell plan, if it is enacted, be amended to include power­

equalization for local leeway, so that any given local tax rate will raise an 

equal amount of revenue per pupil throughout the state. The plan might even be 

modified further to take into consideration varying municipal expenditure burdens. 

In either case, it would be necessary for the Stat:~ to provide additional money 

to those districts that have lo,, equalized assessed valuations, and this in turn, 

once aguin, will require higher property tax rates than the sponsors have 

indicated. 

Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERS 1\IE: Thank you, Professor. You 

have indicated that your testimony has been prepared on a 

work shop for financi1g education and, therefore, I assume 

comes at -..:his from more or less the educational point of 

LCW as opposed perhaps strictly to tax theory. 

Accordingly, I wonder whether you would have any 

specific co~ent about either statewide property tax 

proposal, either the Bedell Plan or the so-called Russo Plan, 

on both the tax burden and the ability to provide educational 
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quality in a city, for example, like Newark. 

MR. LYKE: I can speak much more directly about the 

impact upon the educational quality. Under the Van Wagner­

Bedell Plan, they would propose that the City of Newark 

in the academic year 19~5-76 receive approximately $1150 

per student. There would be some exceptions to this, 

of course. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: That would be exclusive of debt 

service? 

MR. LYKE: That's correct. And there would be further 

exceptions for atypical pupils and vocational students, etc. 

But for the students attending average schools, they 

propose that the City of Newark spend $1150 per pupil. At 

the present time, however, that is, in the 1973-74 academic 

year, the fiscal year of which we are just ending, the 

City of Newark now receives from the State at least $1150 

per pupil already. To this amount of money, they must add 

an additional $350 oz locally raised revenue. So, in effect, 

what would happen under the Van Wagner-BedellProgram would 

be that the City of Newark would be forced to cut back 

expenditures sharply by an amount of approximately 20 

percent, either do that or else maintain the present rate 

of local taxation, which, as you all know, is one of the 

most excessive in the State. 
ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: I don't know how familiar 

you are with the court decision which, among other things, 

has brought us here. But do you have any opinion as to 

the validity of such a system, consistent with that decision? 
MR. LYKE: To my knowledge, the court will look 

upon a State income tax and a statewide property tax with 

equal favor. The only question that the court will 

consider is: Is this money being spent in accordance with 

the State Constitution? As I read it and read the court 

opinion, there are two rough guidelines on this. First 

of all, there must be approximate equality of expenditures 
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among all the school districts in the State. And, secondly, 

if students do have special educational needs, such as 

need for compensatory education, need because the students 

J1appen to be handicapped or retarded, the State must 

compel local school districts to spend additional money 

to m~et these students' needs. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Do you read the decision as 

~equiring equalization of expenditures? 

MR. LYKE: Approximate equalization of expenditures. 

You recall at one point in Chief Justice Weintraub's opinion, 

he asked: What does the phrase a "thorough and efficient" 

system of public schools mean? He.immediately answered that 

by saying, it can have no other import - I believe that 

was his actual phrase -- it can have no other import than 

equality of educational opportunity. I understand that 

phrase then to mean that there must be rough equality 

of expenditures among local school districts in the State -

not identical expenditures, but rough equality. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: That appears to present the 

issue rather clearly in any event. 

Do any members of the Committee have any questions 

for Professor Lyke? (No questions.) 
Thank you very much, sir, and again, through you, 

our appreciation to the staff at the University. 

Mr. Pavlides from the NRTA. Is he here? 
also Mr. Gould from ·the NRTA. Is that better? 

here in addition or in place of Mr.· Pavlides? 

going to be here too? 

MR. GOULB: No. 

I have 

Are you 

Is he 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Do you have a prepared 

statement, sir? (Mr. Gould has no statement.) 

WILLIAM E. G 0 U L D: Gentlemen, my name 

is William E. Goule. I live in Mount Laurel, New Jersey. 
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I am President of the_Non-Residents Taxpayers Association 

of Pennsylvania and New Jersey. OUr organization repre­

sents approximately 20,000 contributing members in the 

Delaware Valley. We have approximately eight chapters 

throughout the South Jersey communities, principally in 

the Counties of Camden, Burlington and Gloucester. 

Non-resident taxation affects approximatel~' 400,000 

New Jersey citizens who work outside of New Jersey and 

are subject to wage and income taxes imposed by the states 

of Pennsylvania, New York and Delaware~ additionally, 

wage taxes imposed by Philadelphia and the City of New York. 

This form of multiple taxation applies to approximately 

20 percent of our State's work force. 

The Non-Resident Taxpayers .~ssociation is neither for 

nor against income tax, per se. However, the presently 

proposed New Jersey income tax would perpetuate this evil 

of non-resident taxation. 

Much of the discussion this evening deals with 

whether New Jersey should have an income tax. However, 

to the New Jersey's 400,000 non-resident taxpayers that 

is not the question. The question is not whether New 

Jersey residents should pay an income tax, but how many 

can they afford to pay. All of these 400,000 non-residents 

are subject to at least one or two or possibly more non­
resident income taxation. I am personally subject to the 

Philadelphia wage tax and the Pennsylvania income tax, 

which together amount to approximately 5 1/2 percent of 

my gross salary. And with the present New Jersey tax 
proposal, I would be subject to yet another tax on my 

income. 

Gentlemen, I ask you, how many income taxes can 

an individual afford? I ask you to look at this from 

the non-resident taxpayer's point of view. Unless meaning­

ful reform is included in any income tax program, the 

non-resident taxpayer will vigorously oppose this form 
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of tax. If reform is included, we recommend that it 

,:~mbrace the following: 

Elimination of non-resident income taxation by 

reciprocal agreement with neighboring states. 

Paragraph 54A:2-6 of the proposed legislation be 

amended to provide full tax credit for taxes on income 

paid by New Jersey residents to other states or taxing 

JUrisdictions thereof. 

The third point - establishment of a full commission 

with adequate administrative and financial resources and 

charged with the responsibility to eliminate non-resident 

income taxation of New Jersey residents; and, further, 

that such commission include direct representation from 

the Non-Resident Taxpayers Association. 

If these items are incorporated in the tax package, 

then the non-resident taxpayer might well support the 

current proposal under consideration. 

These recommendations should be considered as 

interim measures only. The only real and equitable solution 

to the problem of muLtiple taxation is the establishment 

of residency as a requisite for all personal income tax­

ation. 

The Non-Resident Taxpayers Associat~on would support 

responsible tax programs required by our state or community 

of residence to provide for the needs of its citizens. 

However, in concluding, let me say the non-resident taxpayer 

is fed up with promi; es. He has been burned all too 

often. Don • t make h.:i_m promises for future relief. If 

you want his support, put it in the tax package now. 

'I'hank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Mr. Gould, we have some good 

news for you. 

MR. GOULD: I should rejoice. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: It is not often that we can 

indicate to a witness that we have already taken some 
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action or at least planned some definitive action in line 

with your testimony. In the first place, with respect 

to section 2-6, the Committee has already considered the 

question of amending the word 11 State 11 to read the word 
11 jurisdiction 11 to cover with specific reference in most 

instances the wage taxes in Philadelphia and New York City. 

Although we haven't yet taken any formal vote, inasmuch as, 

with one exception, we haven't formally voted on anyt'fu.ing, 

it is the sense of this Committee to make that change as 

well. 

With respect to the compact, we are advised that this 

administration has been in contact with the administration 

of Pennsylvania, at least, and that such a compact would 

be forthcoming in the event of the enactment of a New Jersey 

personal income tax. It is likewise the sense of this 

Committee that such a compact is very definitely in the 

best interest of both of the states and should be forth­

coming as soon as possible, if, as and when, the income 

tax would be enacted. 

Thirdly, with respect to New York, we are advised 

that the provisions,with the amendment of the word 11 state 11 

to read the word 11 jurisdiction 11 , far those taxpayers who 

are involved in the problem at that end of the state -- we 

are advised that the provisions of the bill providing for 

a full credit for taxes paid to the other jurisdiction 

would ameliorate any hardships that would be incurred at 

that end. 

So I think, although we certainly welcome your testimony -

we are very glad to have it - I think that we have anticipated 

you a little bit. 

~~- GOULD: I am grateful for that anticipated 

action. However, I would ask you not to avoid the third 

point that I have made here. I believe that if the admin­

istration is truly desirous of eliminating non-resident 

taxation, and I certainly believe it has made its case on 

49 A 



that point, then I would respectfully request that due 

consideration be given to the establishment of a commission 

whereby we can end this form of taxation. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: I didn't mean by not stating it to 

indicate that we intend to ignore that. We do not. That 

is obviously a much more comprehensive and second-level 

solution to the problem, to which we will certainly give 

very careful consideration. It is just that we haven't 

reached any consensus of the Committee on that as yet. 

Does anybody else on the Committee have any questions? 

SENATOR MERLINO: It is generally felt and accepted 

that non-resident taxpayers will not suffer any penalty -

t~ey will pay no more than they would pay if they were 

paying just here in the State of New Jersey. 

MR. GOULD: The non-resident taxpayer certainly has 

evidenced his commitment to his home community. What we 

are desirous of is correcting the inequity as it now 

exists where we support often not only our own community, 

but several others as well. Those of us who experience 

it directly know what it is like. We would hope you would 

share that understanding with us and now is the opportunity 

to deal with this issue. 

OUr organization has endeavored to bring the message 
to this body as well as to the administr~tion. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERCKIE: We got it and so did they. 

MR. GOULD: You got the message. 
ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: We got it. 

MR. GOULD: I am very glad, sir. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Thank you. By the way, I got 

a let:ter from the-As.:;ociation the other day with reference 

'~z.; the opportunity to appear. I haven' t yet had a chance 

co answl.!:t: it because I haven't been in the office. But 

I assume that this covers your request. If it doesn't, 

let us know and we will be glad to sit down with you 

at any time at your convenience. 
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MR. GOULD: Thank you, sir. I may take you up on 

that offer. 

Mrs. R. A. Van Sweringen. Do you have a prepared state­

ment, ma'am? 

M R S. R. A. VAN S W E R I N G E N: No. I 

have a few xeroxed copies of records. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: If you will, please, summarize 

whatever you intended to present. 

MRS. VAN SWERINGEN: These are all xeroxed copies 

of official documents. I am here as a citizen and that 

is all I have to draw on. 

I do have this page from the New.York State Statistical 

Year Book, showing that they are first in local property 

tax. New York is first and we are third. 

The question came up with a previous speaker as to 

where New York stood in local property taxes and this is 

from the New York Statistical Year Book. It shows they 

are first~ New Jersey is third. 

I agree with most people here who have spoken that 

what is wrong - and I don't see how it can be explained 

away - with both the Byrne Plan andthe State property 

tax is the transfer of power from the people to the 

State level. We have heard a lot of words about rendering 

unto Caesar what is Caesar's. I want to make the point 
that if it is collected as a local property tax, it is 

rendered unto the little Caesars from the people level 

to the mayors, and the Governor doesn't touch it. If it 

is changed ·- if what we collect for local education and 

what we collect for welfare is changed from local property 

tax, you immediately change the power and transfer it 

from the people level to the State. level. 

I see many things that are good about New Jersey's 

school fl.unding and tax structure now and I don't want 

to see it ruined. I agree with the groups who are 
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against this plan as far as the transfer of power. But 

t think that we have a very good situation as far as 

school funding and distribution of money. A point I 

-~anted to make was said this afternoon, that we are second 

from the top of the 48 states~ third from the top if you 

~ount Alaska. So our school funding is good so far as 

what we have been raising. I have a quote here from 

President Goheen of Princeton made in 1965 before the 

sales tax, and he was criticizing colleges at the time. 

He says that New Jersey has a commendable record for public 

and elementary school education. So we have always been 

good in raising money for school funding. 

I think the two philosophies that are represented in 

our school funding are excellent. I think New Jersey 

should be proud of both what we raise and our philosophies. 

In other words, what the Republicans tend to emphasize is 

self-reliance and making people depend on themselves, 

the old American virtues, comes through on the reliance 

on the property tax among the communities who have the 

ability to raise their own money for schools. But then 

we have the other element of compassionate socialism in 

the Bateman Act. Sc many people today asked what happened 

to the sales tax. I don't think the Legislature has been 

praised half enough for the fact they have taken the 

sales tax and sent it to the big cities, so now the big 

cities are equal wi·.h top-level communities. 

I like the schc")l funding because of what it raises. 

It combines compass:,_onate socialism in the Bateman Act 

with self -reliance <~tinony the people who can raise the 

money. 

I thin.~ our tax structure is excellent. Why do 

we have this talk about tax reform? 

First of all, take the distribution of power. Most 

people do not know there has been more power on the 

people level - I call that the local community, county 
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level - than the State level. I am using '72 figures. 

In that year, the budget was $2 billion in Trenton, but 

the amount collected locally was $2.2 billion. Before 

then, there used to be three times as much collected 

locally because of this reliance/en property tax for 

schools. It is now evenly distributed. You have a 

tax pot really of $4 billion. Two billion is local and 

two hillmen is at the State level. So we have now a 

very good distribution. 

The present tax structure is good for distribution 

of power. It is also excellent, I think, in terms of 

good management. For instance, take these results. I 

have already mentioned we are close to the top with 

New York only ahead of us in payments for local education. 

We are fourth or higher in welfare; that is, we pay well. 

We have fewest State employees at State level; and when 

we combine State and local, we are fourth highest. 

I have charts here showing our debt service. In 

three or four categories, we are below other states in 

what we owe. 

At this point, I would say New Jersey is very well 

run. We pay well for education and welfare. We are 

low ~n employees and we are low in debt service. I 

think it is because this $2 billion that is collected 

as local property tax in the 567 different communities is 

in separate amounts and there are so many people watching 

it. I am sure that has helped with the extension of 

the good management of money. 
I want to make the point, before I go any further, 

why we don' t need these plans and then, if I have·· time, why we 

don't want them. 

Why we don't need it. - I have checked and double 

checked over at the State Law Library. 
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The Supreme Court, specifically limits, itself, really 

on page 297, where it dealt with the constitutional problem, 

in terms of dollar input per pupil. Page 295 goes a little 

more into it. 11 The.Trial court found the constitutional demand 

had not been met and did so on the basis of discrepancies in 

dollar input per pupil. We agree. We deal with the problem 

in those terms because dollar input is plainly relevant and 

because we have been shown no other viafule criterion for measur­

ing compliance with the constitutional mandate. 11 So I am 

making that point, that what the Supreme Court ordered 

was specifically about dollar input per pupil. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: I don't want you to think the 

silence of the Committee on that point implies any agreement. 

Go ahead. 

MRS. VAN SWERINGEN: Oh, you don't. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Go ahead. 

MRS. VAN SWERLINGEN: It ruled against discrepancies 

in dollar input. 

You do know those page numbers I mentioned. 

The cities have already been brought up~ that is, 

they ruled against the areas being behind. Most persons 

think - and one person mentioned it today - that it was the 

cities who were behind. Well, the ~ities have been brought 

up. I took this quote from a New Jersey Taxpayers Association 

book and the latest figures I got by calling up the school 

boards of Camden, East Orange, Jersey City, Newark, Paterson 

and Plainfield. Then I just called Westfield to make a 

comparison and it showed in '72 Newark had even passed 

Westfield in its per pupil standing. It was about $1300 

to $1200 in '73-'74 and then $1626 to $1456 for 1974-75. 

I might add what I think is commendable and something 

that New Jersey people should be very grateful for about 

the School Aid Act is that it channels so much to people 

in cities who really need help. I have a couple of budgets 
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here. One is Scotch Plains and one Newark for 1972, which 

showed Scotch Plains with about one million something and 

Newark getting twenty-six million. But when I called on 

the phone, they said next year they would get seventy-five 

or eighty million. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Mrs. Van Sweringen, could we 

ask you to sum up now generally? 

MRS. VAN SWERINGEN: Okay. What I am trying to 

say is that what the Supreme Court said was that there 

should be discrepancies among pupils removed. I am saying 

that the cities, which cost the most, have been brought up. 

For instance, 77,000 pupils times $500 is $40 million. 

Five hundred pupils times $500, to help them, would be 

a few thousand, in places such as Glen Gardner, say. So 

the big expensive areas that were to be brought up to 

meet the Supreme Court order have been brought up. That 

leaves a few suburhnand some rural areas left. 

I hope after you knock around all these plans, 

when the Legislature stops, that you give an order to 

revise the Bateman Formula. It is good for getting at 

the big areas of need, but it will be difficult to rewrite to 

get at the hard-to-get-at communities. I think that is 

the term Bateman used. 

As to the money for this, in the last two years $600 to 

$700 million has come in. If you remember, Governor 

Cahill had a fex excise taxes to bring it up to $2 billion~ 

that was two years ago. The next year, the budget went 

from two billion something to two billion four, something 

like that. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Mrs. Van Sweringen, I 

hesitate to interrupt, but 

MRS. VAN SWERINGEN: All right. I will just sum up. 

There was $600 million that has come in in the last two 

years. Three hundred million of it people aren't used 

to getting it yet since it won't go out until June 30th. 
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In there is $150 million that was the surplus that Cahill 

promised in letters to the boards. That can't be used 

this year, but since this act doesn't have to be effective 

until '75, that can be recovered~ that is, that $150 million 

can be used in the redistribution formula. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Fine. Thank you very much. We 

very much appreciate your analysis. 

Louis Slee. 

L 0 U I S S L E E: Thank you, gentlemen. My name is 

Louis Slee. I live in the City of Trenton. I am here 

not because I am against an income tax to replace property 

taxes, but because I don't like the Governor's proposal 

for tax reform. 

The revenue raised by Governor Byrne's tax would not 

be dedicated to meeting the needs of education, as I have 

been able to find out by reading the press. If the new tax 

was to be solely used for funding school districts, replac­

ing property taxes, the administration would not need the 

more than $1 billion it seeks. Was the one-billion-dollar 

figure set up as a target and the tax plan devised to 

meet it? Or was the plan designed first to meet the 

court mandate and then the additional features added to 

it to increase the take? These are hard questions to 

answer and I hope the Legislature will address them. 

One way. to evaluate the Governor's tax plan is to 

look at it from another point in time. I am talking about 

the future. Let us assume that the plan is in effect and 

that the citizens of New Jersey are paying the new tax. 

According to the press report, a couple earning $11,000 

a year and paying $190 a month for an apartment, will 

end up paying $179 in income tax. I submit that that 

is an example which hits the middle class and I conclude 

that the tax will raise the greatest havoc and the greatest 

amount of revenue from the middle class. If that is so, 
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then the ~yrne tax is an incentive for the middle class 

to move out of New Jersey. Those that cannot move may 

drop in economic status. Ten years from now New Jersey 

could become a much poorer state. How will taxes be 

raised then? 

Assume the tax is in effect. What happens to the 

value of homes where the property tax on them has dropped 

an average of 25 percent? The administration propaganda 

machine points out that this is a benefit under the plan. 

But in reality it is not. A reduction in tax on property 

increases its market value and therefore the base for 

determining the tax rate. Imagine, if you will, the effect 

of a 10 percent increase in valuation on homes in Hamilton 

Township and Trenton. You know well that the remaining 

part of the property tax will go up and in a few years 

reach the level that existed before the income tax. If 

you accept any restriction on property tax, let it be at 

the three percent maximum rate. 

Since I am looking at the plan from the viewpoint of 

its future impact, I think it is also fair to take into 

account the impact of inflation. There is no doubt the 

State government like every New Jersey family feels the 

bite of inflation. But the State has increased its budget 

to meet the cost push of inflation. The trend - at 

federal, state and municipal levels - is to increase bud­

gets and then to increase taxes to fund the budgets. 

In the meantime the purchasing power of the family declines. 

Yet government claims it is concerned about inflation and 

urges restraint. What an irony! The government does 

not practice what it preaches. If there is anything the 

people of this nation and the citizens aE New Jersey are 

concerned about most, it is inflation and the economy. 

I am sure you all agree and know that. One effect of 

that concern is the decline of public confidence in 
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government. Gentlemen, the message is clear - the people 

want limits on spending and, therefore, limits on taxes. 

There is yet another effect the Byrne tax plan will 

have and that is on charitable institutions. Institutions 

such as the United Way, Boy Sco~ts, Red Cross, colleges, 

and, most important, the churches, all depend upon the 

good will of the public for donations. Families and 

individuals that set aside a portion of their incvme for 

charitable donations may very well limit those donations 

severely to compensate for loss of income due to the new 

taxes. 

In conclusion, I would like to point out what I 

perceive to be the fundamental issue that we face - and 

by "we," I mean the Legislature, the institutions and 

the people that make up New Jersey. The 1972 New Jersey 

Tax Policy Committee report states that by 1980, state 

and local governments will have to enact new taxes or 

rate increases totalling $1 billion to $1.8 billion a 

year to close the recurrent revenue gaps. It is in 

the word "increases" and "revenue gaps" that we have the 

clue to the basic issue, the problem of our times. The 

issue is the growth of state government and the cost 

associated with such growth. Governor Byrne recently was 

quoted as saying four out of every five new jobs created 

in New Jersey are created by government. If that is true, 
then taxpayers are in trouble. Sometime in the future 

we are going to become subject to the law of diminishing 

returns. If that happens by chance, if we do not 

exercise control now, we are in for a very bad future. 

The issue is plain. Tax reform should be enacted, but not 

without budget reform that clearly and cleanly places 

limits on taxes and on how the revenue is used. The 

first place to start is with a strong limit on the Governor's 

plan. There is no doubt in my mind that you can do it. 

And when you consider the proposal, all that I ask is that 
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you think of yourselves in relation to the future, the 

economic future, and that present acts have future 

consequences. 
Gentlemen, in summary, what I object to is that 

from all the press reports that I have read, the Governor 

requires something like $558 million fzom an income tax 

to replace a like amount from the property tax. But he 

is asking in one report for $950 million and in another 

report for $1 billion and,in another newspaper, I read 

$1.4 billion. I don't really understand why he should 

ask for a billion dollars when he needs $558 million. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Mr. Slee, part of your confusion, 

which is certainly understandable, emanates from the variety 

of misinformation that has been accidentally or otherwise 

distributed. 

The proposal before us by the administration contem­

plates the shift of not $550 million, but something like 

$750 million of local property taxes to the State budget 

via the State income tax, $550 million of which would be 

used to fund the new education formula, $200 million of 

which would be used to fund the State takeover of what 

is called a municipal-overburden program. The balance 

of the money will be used partly to provide the program 

known as the property tax limitation, which has a fiscal 
note of approximately $200 million G that is in the form 

of the individual guarantees on property taxes, the so­
called circuit-breaker approach - and the rest of the 

package that is included. But the major portion contemplated 

is the $750 million shift from the property tax to the 

State budget. 
MR. SLEE: My other question concerns whether or 

not this Committee and the Legislature has access to any 

forecasts on future expenditures expected in state govern­

ment over five- or ten-year periods and whether or not 

they are taking into account other forecasts for gross 
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national product for incomes in the State of New Jersey 

and for expenditures? 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Among the statistics which this 

Committee has and is considering are the kinds of pro­

jections you mentioned, together with the elasticity of 

the various existing and proposed State revenue sources 

that will enable us to meet those needs in the future. 

I don't want to make an argument for or aga.J..1.st any­

thing. But among the features which we are considering 

are the abilities of the present State tax structure 

and the proposed structure to meet what we anticipate will 

be the tax need in the future without the necessity of 

coming back for additional taxes. 

MR. SLEE: May I ask, sir, over what period of time 

in the future? 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Some of the projections we 

have depend on the kinds of programs and taxes. Some of 

them are short term, two or three years; some of them are 

somewhat longer. 

MR. SLEE: Is that information available to the public? 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Some of it may be. That which 

we receive, we would make available in terms of our Com­

mittee meetings to the extent that we have it and the 

Committee meetings, of course, are open to the observation 

of the public. 

MR. SLEE: Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MAC INNES: Excuse the term,.but Lou 

and I are frien~s. I think the question you raised about 

how far down the road this Committee or the Legislature 

has looked in t~rms of State expenditures is certainly a 

fair one. There are a lot of problems with that. At the 

federal level, for example, we don't have agreement 

between the major cabinet officers responsible for control 

of the economy at the federal level as to exactly what 

is going to happen this year, let alone what is going 
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to happen in two or five years. 

The other side of the problem is that the needs of 

the State change sometimes rather quickly. Ten years ago, 

we didn't have a Medical School in the State. Ten years 

ago, we had six State Colleges and no community colleges 

and we had an enrollment at Rutgers of about 12,000. 

That has been increased about five fold in that ryeriod. 

I am sure that there are needs that should be looked at. 

I think the point that Steve makes is an important one, 

that the tax structure we have now does not respond as 

efficiently as it could to changes in the economy, and 

the property tax response least efficiently. 

MR. SLEE: That's quite plain. Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Any other members of the 

Committee have any other comments? 

Mr. Slee, we thank you very much for your patience 

and also your testimony. 

Mr. William Kanninen. 

WILLIAM K A N N I N E N: I want, of course, to 

thank you for the opportunity to appear before you gentlemen. 

I am a former State Chairman of Young Americans for 

Freedom and the present Chairman of the Middlesex-Monmouth 

Chapter. I am a resident of Lam:-ence Harbor. 

I don't have a prepared statement, unfortunately. 

I'm sorry. 

First, I would like to dispose of what I consider to 

be a false issue; that is, to give a good example of it, 

last Friday when the WNBC Television Station in New York 

endorsed the State income tax, they said essentially the 

Legislature and the people of New Jersey have no choice 

at all about the matter - in fact, you are just going 

through the motions - because either you will do it or 

the courts will do one of several ridiculous things, such 

as passing its own taxes or maybe putting the full burden 
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of education on the property tax and nullifying any support 

from the State. 

I believe this is a false issue because the Legisla-ture 

and the people have the power through constitutional amend­

ment to nullify the so-called Better Decision and affirm 

the legality of the last 198 years of educational financing 

in New Jersey. If the Legislature passes an income tax 

on the excuse that the Better Decision left them no alter­

native, there will be those who will remind them that 

there was an alternative ~n the resolution proposed 

in the Senate, I believe, by Senator Davenport, and in 

the Assembly by Assemblyman Orechio. I was sitting in 

his seat while I was waiting to go on here. It is the 

people of New Jersey who have the sovereign power in 

this State, not a member or members of the Judiciary. We 

have heard enough of court mandates. Mandates come from 

the people. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: Mr. Kanninen, let me hasten 

to assure you that as far as this Committee is concerned -

and I would include in this instance this Committee in 

its jurisdictior1 as it sits in both Houses because in this 

instance I think I can speak for Chairman Merlino - that 

any action that we take and any proposals that we come 

forward with will be as a result of the will of the 

Legislative Branch of this government as it determines 

what it thinks is appropriate and not that of the dictates 

of either of the other two branches of government. 

MR. KANNINEN: I am glad to hear that because some 

of the arguments you hear one way or another - for example, 

the editorial on NBC - sometimes leave the impression 

that the Legislature will be acting as somebody's rubber­

stamp. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: We do not consider ourselves 

bound by the NBC editorial. 

MR. KANNINEN: In that, we agree. 
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I oppose the plan to reform the New Jersey tax 

system because a plan to reform the tax system is a plan 

to make a larger tax burden easier to bear, which is to 

say, to use a phrase that has been used here today, more 

efficient. This way,in future years, members of the Legis­

lature will find it easier to increase future spending 

and taxes. 

The gentlemen who were here earlier from Princeton, 

who are unquestionably intelligent and humane, missed 

the main point. They are people who have put a lot of 

study into this question, but they are clearly people from 

the academic environment. I have spent some time taking 

partin public affairs. From my experience, it appears 

that our representatives will raise our taxes until the 

tax burden is intolerable. The property tax has now 

reached that point. So now we must have an income tax. 

Presumably when the property tax and the income tax are 

both intolerable, we will get a value added tax or some 

other new tax. The fact is, expenditures will rise to 

meet the revenue-producing potential of the taxes in force 

at that time. 

I believe in the people's ability to run their own 

lives; especially after some of th~ events that have taken 

place on the national scene in the last few years, it is 

obvious that they do not want the government to provide 

for their every need. In general, they want the government 

to get off their backs. 

The second point is that there seems strong evidence 

that the income tax is not really needed; that is, we 

do not need another tax to provide sufficient money to 

educate our children. Because of various social acts 

of the past few years, including abortion and birth control 

methods, the birth rate in this countpy has been declining. 

The present junior or senior class in high school is 

considered nationally the largest class in the foreseeable 

63 A 



future. Each class after that will be smaller. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: I wish you wouldn't use that 

phrase. 

MR. KANNINEN: Which one? 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: "Foreseeable future." 

.MR. KANNINEN: That killed my punch line too, but 

I will use it anyway. 

In the next 17 years, in any case, each class will 

be smaller than the one before, which is the reverse of 

the experience up to now. The fact is with an equal amount 

of money going into the educational system in a decade or 

so, there will be half as much money provided per pupil. 

I believe, therefore, there is not a real need for additional 

expenditures. The only question is one of relieving the 

tax burden so that the Legislature at some future time 

will find it easier to have greater expenditures and, 

therefore, propose higher taxes. 

Gentlemen, I have to say that I believe Governor 

Byrne and the members of the State Legislature can live 

up to their campaign pledges and we will all see no need 

for a State income tax in the foreseeable future. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PERSKIE: That doesn't apply, I assume, 

to those who campaigned on a pledge to reform the tax 

structure by means of a State income tax. 

MR. KANNINEN: Obviously not. I am of the impression 

that that was a minority, but I am not certain. 

SENATOR .MEF..JINO: There were quite a few. 

MR. KANNINEN: I know there were. 

ASSEMBLY~ PERSKIE: Does any member of the Committee 

have any questions for Mr. Kanninen? (No response.) 

We thank you very much, sir. 

Ladies and gentlemen, that concludes this session 

of this hearing. There is one comment I would like to 

make. By the way, as I indicated, the Taxation Committee 
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of the Assembly will be starting its regular Committee 

meeting tomorrow morning at 9:30 in the Assembly Lounge. 

The meetings are not open for public participation, but 

they are, as all meetings of Assembly Committees are, open 

to observation by the general public. 

I want to re-emphasize that with the exception of 

the bills voted out this :roorning on the constitutional 

amendments, no binding decisions have been made on any 

questions. 

I want to point out that we have been fortunate 

all through the day since two o'clock this afternoon 

and continuously to have had the benefit of having these 

proceedings telecast on the Public Television Network of 

the State of New Jersey. I want to express the feeling 

of both Committees that this constitutes a genuine public 

service in the highest interest of all of the people of 

the State of New Jersey, on the ground that a thorough 

and adequate airing of all of the issues to be raised on 

these questions is very much in the best interest of not 

only the people, but also in the interest of the passage 

of the kind of legislation, in which, notwithstanding 

our differences, we can all take some satisfaction. So 

I believe the gratitude not only of this Committee but also 

of all of the witnesses and all of the people of the 

State should go to the Public Television Network of the 

State and, also, of course, to the staff who have been 

here all day. 

We will stand in recess. The Committee meeting 

willconvene at 9:30 tomorrow morning, members of the 

Committee and the good Lord willing • 

(Hearing Concluded) 

65 A 



SUBMITTED BY ASSEMBLYMAN WILLIAM P, FITZPATRICK 

§CONOHIC IMPACT 'lO MUNICIPALITIES 

1 have made a study of the effect of my school funding program on the 

~unicipalities in my asS"embly district. It. indicates a local tax impact 

as follows: 

:t,Junicipality; 

Asbury Park City 

Boxoof Avon•By•The.-Sea 

Belmar Borough 

Bradley Beach Borough 

Borough of Brielle 
(Estimate as we don't have 
complete figures) 

Interlakes Borough 

Borough of Masesquan 

Point Pleasant Besch Borough 

Borough of Spring Lake 

tiTall Township 

Neptune Tu.mship 
(Estimate as we don't have 
complete figures) 

% Decrense 
in Taxes 

28.2 

31.8 

27.4 

33.0 

39.7 

15.4 

26.7 

41.1 

22 .. 2 

41 .. 2 

31.8 

In addition I analyzed the impact on two (2) Middlesex County 

Communities, it being: 

Mun~cipality: 

City of New Brunswick 

T«Rinship of South Brunswick 

66 A 

% Decrease 
in Tazea 

35.3 

39.1 
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SCHOOL TAX PINANCING 

SOURCE OF FINaNCING 

FUNDS UTILIZED AS MUNICIPAL REVENUE 

AN! O'l.'BER FUNDS 

11!11 
Motor Fuel Tax Refut'ld 

Business Fiooncia1 Tax 

Inhe~itanee Tax (To Counties) 

Insu~ance Tax (To Counties) 

Sales Tax Aid (P.L. 1968 - CR-302) 

Pe~sonQl Property Tax Replacement (A) 

Railroad Replacement State Aid 

Public Utility - Gross Receipts 

Publ:ic Utility ... Franchise 

Bank Si.:ock Tax 

lNCRF..ASE lli .. REVEI:>.TOE BASIS 

Personal Property Tax Replacement (A) 

Inc-rease Rate of Respective 
Taxes involved by a Factor 
4lf 1 . 

5 X 160s200:.000o = 801,000,000. 
Less Item (A) 
Above 1602?001000. 

Additional ItvJome 

TP~!o 

School Dobt Service~ D;.lilding Operation 
aad Maint~nauce Estimated to Relieve 
School Reatd.rements as Follous: ·-- ""* ____ ._..., ... _ 

Estimated Average Cost for Above= 
$400,000o X v585 = 
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ES'llMt\TED 
YEAR 1975 

6.ooo~ooo.oo 

U,900,000.00 

4,100,000.00 

11,600,000.00 

37,500,000.00 

160,200,000.00 

12,900,000.00 

132,700,000.00 

96,5001'000.00 

8,100,000.00 

9,800,000.00 

64o,soo,ooo,oo 
1.133~100,000.00 

234,000,000 .. 00 

1,367 ,100.,000 .. 00 
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SCHOOL TAX PINAICIIG 

SOUBCB OF PJNAICntG 

FUNDS U'!!LJ:ZID AS MURICIPAL R!VEBUE 

AND gtBBJ FQ1!DS 
(CntiDued) 

!m! 
State Road Aid Funds - Formula 

State ItGad Aid Funds .. Construction 

}.NCRBASE IN IEVENU£ MSIS (1.5%). 

Public Uttlity - Gross Receipts 

Public Utility - Franchise Tax 

Establish a School Support Levy to 
be L@vied Against: 

Municipal Ut!.lities 
~nicipal Authorities 
County Authorities 
State Authorities 

Tax to be Baaed on 5% of Levy for 

Services Rendered 

Estimate 
.585 x 50,000. (Municipal) 29,250,000. 

Other Estimate -
County, State, Etc. 

Industrial, Co~rcial and Apartment 
• Stabilization Le~ 

Tax reduction limited to 10% • 
if lovrer rate - difference 
goes. into a fund t~nwn ag. 
Reserve for School Purposes 

Levy estimated at 15% 
Estimated Levy - 1974 

__ s,ooo,ooo. 

72.111,000,000. 
(Billion) 
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ESTiaTED 
DAR 1975 

33.100,.000,00 

24~ too.ooo.oo 
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SCHOOL TAX PINAJCDG 

SOURCE OF P'f!I.R::JRG 

FUNDS UTILIZED AS MUBICIPAL REVENUE 

(Billion) (Billion) 
15% of 72~171~000,000. = 10,825,625.000. 

EstiOlated 10% to be transferrecl 
to Reserve for School Parposea 

lot of 10,825,625~000. = 
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SCHCOL FINANCING PI.J\N 

MUNJ.:C'IPALITr 
--~----~------

~·~.,. ~f~~: ..§ ;~l_~!_S!c~;;~_~:. ~i7:.{:.\ ;~t!:J,~! .... c~ 
t,) lH" PJ,cked .. u:e ... 2~ 
MUll.iCiJ.:!li~ 

Operation of Plant 
( Bu1.J.dLng S«M":icee :r 

'I'ot ;:l = r tem 4 

~~~d.. Tax Rate anJ. Amoul1.t 
{Item ~_El~ Item 4.2 

5" Add: !~':!;!.~~of M~S~l!ll 
R·~Nenues fi'cm _Eudg;et t~ 
b<: Appl118d to Scho:.ll Coste. 

Sta·te F;oad A:ld FuMe -~ I:'ormuls 

Gross Receipt;a '.I'axEt& 

Rail:road ~~:-~ 

Re;j·laC<:'ffiU; 0
.; Rerv·t:Jnue ;, Business 

Rei~---·!:1 ·;:;·J:~ ·r~-~~>e 

Replac~ment Ri!Venue ,_. Business 
Personal P.roprerty 

State Sa). u: 'I&x Aid Per Cspi te 

Stetr:t M.d. C.' Higb'way Lighting 

AMOUNT 

:J:a: ti i I 8 QIIOR 

~~·===-==·-

( +) $===== 

-----·;..._. 
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(Continued) 

SCHOOL FINANCING P'~'.AN 

MUNICIPALITY ---· --- ---------· -----··-
ASSES VALUATION $ ___ ----

TAX 
AMOUNT _ __;;RA:.;: 'IE __ _ PE.T:\ CENrl' 

5" Ccntinuoo 

o·cher Re"'enues Fran State: 

:Y .. XX 

XX ... 'X --------------
YJX _V" __ _______ 

Total •• Item 5 (+)~ • 
~ ========== 

!r~t Re,du.ction (It~ 1 lE:ss ____ __, •t: c~~__.,....., ...... 

rtem.Il 
-~--------- $=== 

----·_...-~ ... --__....,_,------·--------.. -~.~- ......... :,;:,."- -------------....,....; 
·~· ... -- ... -........... , ________ ..._..,__ .. _ ...... ,_. __ ...,..._ ---~~,...--

Es t:··.c~:..ut~ Ta.."t sa-rl.nglii 
-·---"'····----"'·"" 

-······--· ... ·----.. ··--·"-·---------·-···--·--------.. ·-··-·-··--··~----··----·-------· 
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SUBMITTED BY MAYOR MAR'NN VACCARD, ALLENHURST • 

DATA SOORCES 

Population: 

Number of Families in Community: 

Average Family Income: 

u.s. Census of Population, 1970 

u.s. Census of Population 1970 

u.s. Census of Population, 1970 

Assessed and Equalized Valuations of Property: 

"Equalization table for County of Monmouth for the Year 
1974" dated January 22, 1974 prepared by Monmout"1 
County Board of Taxation. 

Percentages residential, commercial/industrial etc.: 

N.J. Tax Policy Committee Report, Volume 2 
dated February 23, 1972, Table A-2 

Number of Public School Pupils by Community, 1974: 

Monmouth county Superintendent of Schools 

1974 Property tax rates based on current school aid: 

Asbury Park Press - June 12, 1974 

1974 Property tax rates based on Gov. Byrne Tax Plan: 

Asbury Park Press - June 12, 1974 
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SUBMITTED BY MRS. MARY NASH: 

LEAGUE OF WOMEN VOTERS OF NEW JERSEY 
460 BLOOMFIELD AVENUE, MONTCLAIR, NEW JERSEY 07042 TELEPHONE 746-1465 AREA CODE 201 

June 6, 1974 
TO: Members of the New Jersey Legislature 
FRCM: Dorothy Powers, President 

Mary Nash, Fiscal Policy Chairman 

As you are aware, there have been no specific proposals for the revenue 
raising measures which will be required if we are to provide increased 
and equalized state school aid and to pay for court, welfare and other 
costs as proposed by Governor Byrne. Since the proposal was made public, 
the League has heard or read statements by various legislators that we 
do not need an income tax. We are well aware that there are methods 
other than the income tax which could accomplish a shift from the local 
property tax, including a statewide property tax, increased sales tax, 
removing exemptions from clothing, food and taxing services, etc. In 
light of these alternatives, the League would like to review some of 
the major reasons why we believe that an income tax would be the best 
source of tax revenue to replace local property taxes, as well as why 
a progressive tax would be the best type of income tax. 

1. It would reduce the regressive nature of the present New Jersey tax 
structure so that the tax burden falls more evenly on all our citizens. 

2. It would provide a more balanced tax structure which would be more 
capable of providing adequate revenues to meet future needs. 

3. It would reduce the overreliance on the property tax which has had 
serious side effects on housing, land use, zoning and transportation 
as well as education. 

Regressive Tax Structure 

Numerous studies both by the state and other groups have shown that our 
present state and local tax structure is one of the most regressive 
in the country. The cax burden on New Jersey citizens varies from as 
little as 7% for thos~ making over $25,000 to 20% or more for those with 
incomes of only a fet.: thousand dollars. Many of our senior citizens are 
among those particulirly burdened by this structure. This great dis­
parity is caused by the heavy reliance on the local property tax. New 
Jersey is 49th among the states in its reliance on the property tax. 
The result is that the effective property tax rate per $100 is one of the 
highest in the United States. 

(more) 
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Letter to Legislators, June 6, 1974 Page 2. 

The only way to shift the tax burden so that all citizens pay a more 
equal percent of income in taxes is through a progressive ~ncorne tax. 
A statewide property tax would not reduce the differences 1n tax bur­
den on various income levels, but would continue the present regres­
sive impact. 

Elastic Tax Structure 

The income tax responds more quickly to changes in our economy than 
any other state tax. Our present overall sources of state revenues 
do not grow at as fast a rate as costs. Its elasticity rate is next 
to lowest of all states. Adding an income tax would balance our 
revenue structure so that it would grow at a rate that would meet 
future as well as current needs. And it would do this without adding 
to the already staggering tax burden imposed on low and moderate 
income families which would result from dependence on a statewide 
property tax for increased revenues. 

Side Effects of Property Tax 

As serious as the above problems are, perhaps even more disturbing are 
the side effects of our present overreliance on the property tax. 
Municipalities are forced into defensive zoning which leads to over­
zoning for business and industry. Towns zone in large lot, large size 
houses and zone out small horne tracts and apartments. The resultant 
high costs for housing coupled with high property taxes mean that the 
income of over two thirds of the families are too low to afford any 
new horne in New Jersey. And these same people have great difficulty 
in finding an apartment. That New Jersey has one of the severest 
housing shortages in the country can in part be traced to our tax 
policies. 

The resultant urban sprawl also greatly complicates our attempts to 
provide mass transportation, makes the provision of utilities more 
costly, and reduces the amount of open space. The dispersion of business 
and industry from high tax urban areas to low tax suburban or rural 
tax areas which limit homes means that many potential workers cannot 
get to available jobs. Our present high unemployment rate, particularly 
in some of our cities, is partly due to our tax policies. 

(more) 
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Defensive zoning also forces municipalities to use our land in ways 
which are destructive. Ecological considerations are ignored in the 
race for ratables. 

We do not contend that passage of an income tax will solve any or all 
of these problems instantly. We do believe that continuation of the 
present overuse of the property tax, local or statewide, will mean a 
continuation of the battle for ratables, the misuse of land, and the 
zoning out of varied types and sizes of housing. An income tax should, 
at the least, lessen these pressures and give hope of moving towards 
solutions. 

Progressive Income Tax 

We also urge you to enact an income tax with a progressive rate struc­
ture. Not only will this reduce regressiveness and provide a more 
elastic system which will grow to meet future needs, but it will also 
cost the taxpayers of New Jersey less money. With a graduated state 
income tax, those taxpayers with high incomes deduct a larger amount 
from their federal income tax. Since these people are in higher tax 
brackets they receive a larger reduction in their federal taxes. The 
following table shmvs the actual cost to New Jersey taxpayers of the 
various income tax proposals. (figures in millions) 

Tax Policy Committee 

2 l/2%of Adj. Gross (A.l666) 

12 l/2%of Federal 

2% of Gross 

1/2 New York rates 

Yield 

675 

550 

625 

750 

650 

Cost* 

450 

400 

400 

550 

425 

*After c.;.llowL-..g for the deductability of a state income tax 
when computing the federal income tax. 

(more) 
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You will note that both the piggyback on the federal income tax and 
the flat rate as proposed by Assemblyman Hamilton would cost taxpayers 
the same amount of money, about $400 million. But the state would 
have $75 million more in revenue with the progressive percentage of 
federal. This is a feature you surely cannot afford to overlook in 
determining the type of income tax. 

Included with this letter is a graph showing the impact of several 
possible income tax proposals on different income levels. You will 
note that taxpayers making less than $11,000 would pay less with the 
Tax Policy Committee income tax proposal than any other shown. Since 
the median income is about $11,000, about one half of New Jersey tax­
payers would fall in this category. 

Also included are two tables showing tax burdens under the present 
system and under other possible new taxes. Table I assumes no pro­
perty tax reduction. Table II assumes the total yield of any new or 
increased state tax would be used for property tax reduction. In 
actuality, the effect of the proposed program would probably fall 
somewhere between the two. 

The LWV is not alone in recognizing the problems of our present tax 
structure. Thirteen state tax studies as well as a 1971 study by 
the New Jersey Taxpayers Association have singled out the overuse 
of the property tax as a causal factor in some of our most serious 
problems. It seems that the necessity of acting to do something 
about our unconstitutional school funding system provides us with 
a great opportunity to also attack other serious problems of tax 
structure. The adoption of a progressive income tax is the only tax 
which will help overcome these deficiencies. We urge you to take 
a broad view and to enact measures which will attack other problems 
at the same time we are s9lving our school funding situation. 
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LEGISLATIVE MEMO 
LE.-'..GUE OF WOMEN VOTERS OF NEW JERSEY • 460 BLOOMFIELD A VENUE. MONTCLAIR, N. J. 070+2 

.June 13, 1974 

TO: Hembers of the New Jersey Legislature 
FROM: Dorothy Powers, President, League of Women Voters of New Jersey 

Mary Nash, Fiscal Policy Chairman, League of Women Voters of N.J. 

After careful review of Governor Byrne's proposals, the League of Women Voters is 
suppporting his suggestions. The League has developed positions on education and 
tax reform by which we judged these proposals. We found the program would contribl!L 
substantially to meeting the following League goals: 

Education: * provide increased state aid to equalize opportunity and improve 
quality. 

Taxatior1: * reduce dependence on the property tax; 

* reduce disparities in tax rates and services among communities; 

* encourage land ~ae decisions based on human and environmental needs 
rather than fiscal needs; 

* raise state revenue with a graduated personal net income tax; and 

* increase the progressivity and equity of the tax structure. 

The League recognizes the prog~~am will not solve all New Jersey's problems but it b 
a necessary first step which will make solutions possible. 

Education 

We support: a shared-cost plan 0£ school funding with at least 50% state support; 
state sharing to the 65th perc.:~ntile; full state funding of excess costs for high­
cost students such as handicap •e,~, vocational, bilingual, and those needing compen 
satory education; state shar·:i..r (!)3 :~ebt service costs and adequate funding for 
emE:rgenc.y building a::..1. We a1 JO support full state funding of school transportation 
costs which are not included :1 .. 1 the Governor's proposals. 

This program identifie~ neecu. ,lnci din:cts state school aid where needs are greatest. 
The guaranteed valuation per I lpil ar-l. the limit of state sharing should be written so 

ad~ust to cuanging valuat ~ons .llr:r1 expenditures. This is necessary to keep st ..• t.c 
aid at 50% and preve~t re-escaLat~on of property taxes. 

' 1 ~ve t·l,e ,::xce, .. a costs prcgram, if categories are prt:perly defined to in;.: luJ1 . 
. · . .;..dten needing '' more costly education, is the best way to provide a thorout;! . 

•. ~ · dicient edt;cai.:ion for these students. It would encourage identification sine c 
districts doing so ·.rould not be financially penalized. It would insure that tl.c 
money goes for spe · ific prc3rams designed to meet students' needs, which may ot· may 

Jt ., ·:: using a system of weightings. Weightings reflect average costs but not 
L<i:Cto>sear :Uy actual costs in individual school districts. 
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We believe the sharing of debt service costs will meet the needs of most districts 
but is insufficient for fast-growing districts or those with severe replacement 
problems. Unless the emergency buildi.ng program is expanded considerably, it seems 
unlikely it will be able to meet these speci.al needs, 

Assessments must b~ truly equalized over the state to insure that a valuation of 
$106,000 per pupil means the same in every district. 

Municipal Overburden 

The League supports state financing of county and municipal welfare ~osts, court 
costs, payments in lieu of taxes on state-owned property, and tax make-up on sub­
sidized housing. All these measures would reduce differences in tax rates among 
municipalities and would equalize the tax burden on individuals for providing the 
same services, making it fairer. They would also limit re-escalation of local pro­
perty taxes since increased costs for court and welfare services, new state buildings, 
or tax-abated housing would not be added to the local tax burden. Making up the tax 
loss on subsidized housing will remove the penalty suffered by municipalities accept­
ing suchhouaingand may help relieve the housing shortage for senior citizens and 
low and moderate income families. 

Taxation 

The League supports the proposed graduated personal net income tax and the minimum 
3% gross income tax for those with incomes over $50,000. See our letter of June 6, 
1974 for the reasons the League supports a graduated personal net income tax. We 
believe the inclusion of a minimum 3% tax makes the system more progressive than 
the federal tax and answers the legitimate complaint that those with high incomes 
can escape taxation. 

Although we believe that business should pay a fair share of taxes, we are unable 
to determine the effects of the business real estate tax. We certainly agree that 
those businesses located in tax havens should pay more, but we do not want to dis­
courage new or expanded businesses needed for increased job opportunities. The 
proposed tax clearly will affect businesses in low-tax areas while excluding those 
in high-tax areas. Two questions we have are whether or not it will raise the pro­
jected amount of revenue and whether or not it will discourage industries which 
require large installations. 

Tax Limits 

The League supports limits on local property taxes for individual taxpayers and on 
annual budget increases. Limiting the amount of property tax paid by any taxpayer 
based on his income is the best method of insuring no citizen pays an undue amount 
to keep a roof over his head. Even if the local property tax rate increases, no 
taxpayer must pay above his limit. State funding of the cost in excess of the tax­
payer's limit insures the municipality of adequate revenue to provide services 
without overburdening any of its residents. It will reduce our dependence on the 
property tax and help to limit the total amount of revenue raised from that source. 
It will help senior citizens and those with low incomes, even if they live in a 
wealthy community which receives little or no property tax reduction from other 
parts of the program. Tenants will benefit from this limit in the same manner as 
homewoners. Everyone in the state will be treated equally. 

{more) 
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Une of the C•dJCr tears of mo.st cl.tizens and legislaters has h.:en th<H, e"en Wltb 

a1: inc,•E<e tax, the amount of property taxes would not be reduced or ¥/Ould B.llnply 
re-·esc<:llate in the future. This program. however, will reduce property taxes and 
any escalatlon will be severely limited by a number of features in the proposed pro­
gram. A fle.xible guaranteed base for school aid will insure state aid will. increase 
with codts and not fall below SO%. State funding of courts and welfare mean that 
increase.d costs for these services will not fall on local property taxes, The 
"circu: t breaker1' protects individuals by placing a ceiling on the amount they must 
pay. i.nd the 6% limit on annual increases will act to hold down increases. These 
deterrents will keep increases low, while not putting a strait jacket on local 
governments 

The League opposes use of a statewide property tax by itself to fund ,;e proposed 
changes. Although we recognize it would even out property tax rates to some extent, 
it would increase our overreliance on property taxation. It would continue the 
regressivity of our present tax structure which places an undue burden on low and 
moderate income taxpayers. 

The feeling that New Jerseyans are excessively taxed comes from the fact we do over­
tax those with less income and fail to proportionately tax the wealthy. Adoption of 
a progressive income tax is the only way we can raise enough money for services with­
out overburdening anyone. According to the 1970 census, half of the families in New 
Jersey have incomes less than $11,400. The combination of benefits in this program 
would very likely provide some tax relief for every one of these families. 

We expect the Legislature will act to meet the court requirement to restructure our 
school finance system. We urge you to enact this program to provide tax reform and 
tax equjty a~ well. 

Enclosures: Classification of Property 
Dedication of Taxes 
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SUBMITTED BY JIM HELY 

NEW JERSEY PUBLIC IN'rEllBST RESBAllCH GROUP (NJPIRG) 
32 Weat Lafayette .Street, Trenton, New Jer~ey 08608 (609) 393·7474 

, ; I t ! · .' . • I 'I , : .' · ~ ~ ' , · · , ' • . 

Teetimony of Jim Hely 1 NJPIRG Tax Researcher, before Aaa•bly Taxation 
· comttpe md tmr l•n• ..,._, l'lDric! .,.·AMcFtatoaa Commttstie.; 

,, t '' 
Good aftemoon. I am Jim, Hely '· tax reaearcher for th.e New Jersey ~b lie Interest 

Research Group (N.J.PIRG). The New Jersey Public Interest Research Group is a non· 

partisan, non·profit, atudent•funded and atu~~t-dtrected research organization sup­

ported by college students on eight New JerseY. campuses. 
.. ' r.: ; ~. ' 

N.J. PIRG views the tax reform measures presented ~o' the Legislature by the 
' , , ' ,'; '( ,I ' 

Gove~or ~· a giant step toward improving the overall· well-being of New Jersey. Much 
. ; . . . ' ; : ~ : ; . : ' 

has been made of the positive effects the proposal .will have on our system of public 
.. , ; ,· ' ~ ~ ~ I ' 

education and the shift in the tax· burden. We f~l .the non·quantifiable outgrowths 

on our environment, our urban ce,ntera, and our econOII;'Y are also impOrtant. If these 

propose la wet:e to be made law,· we could begin to have more meaningful land use planning .. ' 

due to .dec~,eaaed pressure for pro~ert~. tax ratablea, and we _coul~ .once again have 

cities that ~an attract and hold commerce and industry. We hope the assembly and 
r · i 

' ' . 

Senate will take action to sh~rpan some of the legislation, but the proposals put 

forth represent an excellent outline from which to work." 

The Constitutional Amendment Limiting the Rates 
of Pr<merty Tax Iiicteasg (SC1l'121 I ACll 176) 

It is doubtful that many people truly undet'.timd 'what this addition to the.1Cori• 

atitution will do. If passed this reaolutiorf wOuld ;not limit th~ yearly increase&. in 

property tax billa; it would only l~it increases to municipal tax rates. If we were 

to set s limit on property tax bill increases, as many believe this resolution does, 

the result Would be disastrous~ How could 'we eet a limit: of. 61 ot ~ on tax increases 

when the current annual inflation rat·e ia 10 to'l27., ·with no one in the White House or 

on Ca.pitol Hill in sight with a aol'ution? Flatly 1imi:d.ng property taxes would leave 

policemen and firemen without even a chanc~ of' rec:ei~g a coat of living increaare. . ' 

However, even a limit on tax rate increases is untenable, unless the mechani~ma for --- ... 
annual propercy appraisals updates are put in motion. 

~. c 

I· have been informed by the Local Proper#, Tax Branch of the Division of ~axa-
·. ·:; . 
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• '. '· •' • • ' 't. 

tion that they will be capable withtn eight months of pr~iding the means for all 
. . , . • ·' . " ~ 'I. 

taxing dia,~.icts. to.~~~~ ,app~taa.~ ;th:t:~~ uae ~:·~le"roni~ d~~ .p~oeessing. 

The Division needs an appropriation from the Legislature to do this. Only after prop-

erty ev~luations can be kept up to date can we set a reasonable ltmit on tax rate 

increarJes. 

The Busineaa Stabil1zation Tax (A.l876) 
'i j • ,.,.;.' ' •• 

The innovative Business StabiU.action Tax appears to be a most appropriate 

method of handling the windfall incurred' from.reductions realized from local ·property 
.. .., . ' .. ,. I 

tax cuts. Here it would seem the State should shoulder a little more responaibllity 
t 

in making certain our business and industry are assessed property. We all probably 

' ' 
are aware of some large property owners who appear to have ·receivecJ favorable treat-

., ' 
ment in the assessment pTocess. Though the local assessors desire autonomy from the 

.. ·: 
State, the assessors are often not responsible for appraising the large properties. 

The Division of Taxation can offer assistance and a ch~k an local assess~t. 

The Income Tax (A.l875) 

Before Governor BYrne made his proposals specific~ N.J. PIRG,urged him to con­

sider an income tax not directly tied to the Federal Income Tax. We felt New Jersey 

should not suffer fD)~ th' loopholes .in the InteTnal Rev~~e Code. For simplicity's 

sake the .Governor opted for a graduated tax on fed.~r:al taxable income and crest~ a 

minimum ta~ on gross incO'IDe t• • .: catch tPose who Ul_l~~ir~)' .benefit from the federal lq~P·": 

holes. 

I have been unable to ascertain how ~~e 3% figure for th~ tax.on gr~ss income 

.,,as reached, but my f?alculatirms indicate that at this rate. the minimum tax wo.uld 

C'n.ly ·r. ·~ '""l~' be used. If the point of this tax is, to i,nsure us that all taxpey~e p~y 

· ·. t fair shtu:·~:) raising .the r~te should be serio~aly considered. 

l'\t~ JUS ted. Gress 
Income Bracket 

30,000-50,000 
50,000-100,000 

1 0,000-500,000 
soo,ooo-1,oqo,ooo 
1,000,000 I 

Average Tax to be 
paid under ~ of Gross 

$ 1,120 
,2,040 
5,320 

28,800 
99,000 84 A 

Average Tax under propos~ 
. • J 

--.:::r=ate structure 

$ i,soo 
2,72P 
7,320 

38,400 
133,000 

. 
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In_ an attempt to furt!hereltain faimeas ·in the proposed income tax w!thout5·negat-
' ) . :! 

ing the simplicity of it, we would.like to suggest two changes, which could ,be easily 

implemented, that would serve to circumvent two loopholes in the federal system; the 

personal exemption and special treatmeftt-for income from capital gains. 

The purpose of the personal exemption in the federal system is to give each tax-

payer a special allowance for himself or herself and for his or her dependents. As is, 

· however, this special allowance is more favorable to the wealthy than the middle and 

• 

lower income taxpayers. 'lbe $750 personal exemption deductible from income, means _a 

great deal more when it is deductible from the income bracket taxed at 7at, than when 
'· 

it is deductible from incomes taxed at 31~ or 14~. 

The personal exemption should be in the form of a tax credit rather than deduc• 

tion, in order to give the same special allowance to everyone. The change required in. 
' ' ' f ' ' -~ ' .t . 

the Income Tax Bill, aa now stated, would be only to define New Jersey Taxable Income 

as line 46 on the Federal Income Tax Return instead of 'ttne 48. Theri a $25 tax credit 
.. ) 

for each personal exemption claimed rather than the $JSO deduction could be added to 

the bill. The effect of this change is in the table below. (Table is for a family of 

four with an average lSI. deduction from adjusted gross 'incOme.) 

Adjusted 
Groaa lnCOIDe 

5,000 
7,500 

10,000 
12,500 
15,000 
25,000 
50,000 

100,000 

'j;' 

State Tax to be paid with 
··. $7.SO- ded®t:i09 'from· incQ111f 

>;, 7~o50 

55.00 
120.00 
186.88 
2.65,00 
690.00 
970.00 

5,715.00 

State Tax to be paid with 
!25 credit··tO the ta! 

0! 
35.00 

117.50 
200.00 
294.00 
782.00 

1~095.00 
6,255.00 

It would also not be difficult to eliminate the moat glaring loophole of the In-

ternal Revenue Code, that is special treatment for income received through c_apital 

gains. There are reasons this is included in the federal system, but there is no just-

ifiable reason New Jersey shouldn'·t attempt to treat all income alike whether it comes 

from wages, rents, dividends, or capital gains. Onty one in ten taxpayers benefits 

from the capital gains loophole, but the revenue loss is substantial. 
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Adjusted Grqss. 
Income Bracket 

SO,OOD-100.,000 
100,000-200,000 
2 oo, o,Jo-5 oo, ooo· 
500' 0:)0-1 '000' 000 

1,000,000 

i ' 

- 4 -

Increase in·Taxeble income tf 
~Capit~l Gains are included 

81. 
l.n. •. 
36t 
·~ 
7(]'/., 

Tne adjustment in the New Jersey Incofile Tax in order to trellt capital gains as 

' ordinary income would be quite easy. Simply require all those having income from 

capital gains, to add line 15(a) of Schedule D from their federal retu~ to their New 
. . 

Jersey taxable' income~ While not negating simplicity, fairness and revenue are added 

to the tax. 

As the income tax stands now, with an ineffective minimum tax and the loopholes 

of the federal system, the proposed tax bears disproportionately hard on those in the 

$25-SO,OOO'range. Thus, many people earning their income from salaries or fees bear 

the load, while the super rich obtaining their income mostly from unearned income 

receive favorable treatment. l'his situation should be rectified, particularly if 
'' ., 

raisi.ng the income tax rates to lower the sales tax is considered. 

·' 
One other comment concerns the 2~ rentar1 s deduction which may not be suffici-

ent. The tenant will probabl:y not realize any dec:cease in rent as property taxes de-

~~line. Yet homeounli'lrS benefit from deductions. of property tax payments from the in-

~ • .Jro(~ tax, the circuit breaker) and a property tax redu~tion, while the renter orily 

enjoys the benefits of the circuit breaker and the deduction. Raising the renter's 

(j,..,i' .ctic is worthy of c:·nsideration. ' . 

These criticisms are not meant to ~egate the overall value and necessity of the' 

\.:c•:ernor' s tax c ~form package. After careful· research and evaluation, N.J. PIRG con-

-~ n4et .',~ t.. e Governor's proposals deserve approval, though they might be improved 

I appreci.ete your holding these hearings, and thank you for the opportunity to 

testify. 

Jim Hely 
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JUDGING THE IMPACT OF THE MINIMUM TAX 

By comparing the amount of adjusted gross incomJ in each of the 

high income brackets with the amount of tax preference income2, it ia 

possible to get a percentage of adjusted gross that tax preference 

income is. By taking New Jersey adjusted gross income by bracket and 

adding the percentage of adjusted groaa income which can be estimated 

to be tax preference income, groaa income for each bracket is tabulated. 

Because New Jersey taxable income figures are available and we've ascer-

tained figures for gross income, it is possible to calculate and average 

gross income and an average taxable income. From these figures the tax 

from the ~ tax on gross and the tax under the rate schedule have been 

compiled. 

1 Statistics of Income, Internal Revenue Service, 1971 (these figures are 
three years old, but because they are being compared to each other, the 
relative effort should be the same). 

2 Tax preference income is only recorded by I.R.S. if it exceeds $15,000. 
Therefore the figures for the lower income groups must be considP.red rough • 
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SUBMITTED BY RICHARD SOL~UM 
Prelim. Draft No. 1 The S11endi~ L1m1 t A"'1endncnt 

t~ tho St.'ltn <!onot1 tution, A,prll 1914 1 ' 

Scotton 1. ~e tollO\~ definitions n~p17 tn thio nrt1olo1 
- (a) " :-norr1oncy" rleana a sudden and un~rcdictublo 

event which ro<tuiroe imr.todinte notion. 
. (b) "~u.'"ld1 ture" oeo.na 01J.7 d1...-oct or 1nd1rtlot 

pa:rmer1t to ~o ~or o ~ood or oervice. 
(c) •e-cneral exnendi turo• nonno the totol ot all 

expendituroo b7 all state a;~oncioe durinc: 1 yonr. 
(d) " crnoual 1nco~e" oocrm tho total of o.ll 

incCGe to the peoplo of th13 otate duri.."l(J l. year no dotc%tlincd by 
the Uni tod Utnteo Govcmnont. 

(o) "~.tnta ~eney• nenna eny otote do'r'nrtr.tcnt, 
otttJDcy, cotr"'..io010Zl, nnd eornoration, if' the ctuto r.,\·Jr~ :r.oro t..'lnn 
20:~ or the outotnnd:L~t'l! ~toclt or controlo more th.on 20;: of tho votes 
ot the boru:d of directoro o.f the corporation. 

~oot1.on £.• Tho stnte ~ovc1'!1:'1ent shnll dctcmnno tho eoneml 
expendilUrcD tor each year nccrocli.ne 'to tho i'ollovr.Lng fo1'f.lul.Bt 

Gcncl."'r".l :.::x,..,cndi ture • ,07, 
i·C4--aoiiiii ~cme 

~ectinn 2• :.1oforo .JElDWl...7 15 of each yoo.r, tha <'~vcl,'nor nhnll 
aubr::i t tn t'l.w' ·r,mrlnlnturo n bud{~ct which oat1nfieo tha 'fo1n:ln of 
section 2. \'ho buut~ot o!mll t•c d1 Vidod into r~oncrnl cxncndi turas 
for each qUOI""tor. . ,crore April 15 of ~nch yeo.r, tho T.~cr~iuln.ture 
Shall ecnoi.der tho bud:~et, CJld noke tmtllOr.i.Z.'ltiOM nnu .UTmro~riatiOt'lB 
from the trcu-..sury tJhi.c1l na.tioJ."y the tor...luln ol: ~;ccti.on 2; ' en tho 
firt~t dey of cac.h. qlll.ll."tcr, tho (i-ovcrnor ellllll oub::Y.i t to tho 
T...ogiolnture a -..-ritten report or tho 60Deml. EJ%l)enditul:eo tor tho 
laat quarter. 

~r.etinn 4. Tho Governor ohnll include in hta hudr~ut, nne! the 
... r..cg1slaturc or~ ".Q!:o nutho~=ationo and appro-prln1iiono ror a 
epecial i'U!ld to be uood in eJe...-genciea. 

Section .2.• If tho r"~vemor subtli ts t,-, tho T .or.1olature a 
bude&t \";hich <.boo not oo.tin:f'IJ t..~o i'omula of fBti..on 2 or cubni to 
to the Jlchioln tu.ro a rc~~ of 1.~eneml. cxnendi tureo \7hiC11 do not 
antiofy the :ro::mln o:t ~;ection 2, then the stnto ~"rtmfJ\lrer ohall. 
SWJl)CDd ooyi.l'lP. o....-,y onlar-J t;J tho Governor a.."ld tho ; .cGtnln ture ~ 
re:10vo tho Govemor l.'r.J:l o:t:tico. If tho T.er;iclntu..~ nnkco 

• aut.ltorizn.tionn end nn,roprin.tions mich do not D!ltio:t"y t:m fnrmala 
Of ~cction 2, then tho Sto.to ~Tensurcr Bhall. GllS~>cnd ooyil'13 8ll7 
ealo.r:r to t..lto lectcl.ntoro vmo vo'tftd ~or tbe nu-;bori.Bation md 
approprint1on. 

Section ..fi• Cbc Lcr~lature Bball. have the nowe.r to lft7 
--. to 'PC:/ ~or tho eeneml aoead1 turea for onJ.;v the next ,.ear. 

Scet1 on l• ~e Judicin1'7 nh-n]) h..'!W DO 'DOWer to C'htlngo the 
f'o!mllri of ~,;ecuon 2 or to cha:Jr,e en::f ()nrticulnr nntborization or 
appronrJ.ntion. If mv court renders any jude:::;lcnt ''hich ci"'.,nnr:ca the 
1'omuln ot ~;ection 2 or c::a...YJr,co any :iicular nntllor.i:s::rt:lon or 
eppTOr>r1at1<>n. then the Letiiolature · ra:;;ovo tho court b'OI!1 
o1t.lco. · 
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VOLUME IV, Number 2 June 14, 1974 

FOR STATE-EQUALIZED SCHOOL TAXES AND AN INCOME TAX FOR NEW JERSEY 

In New Jersey's debate on school finance 
and an income tax, five goals might be kept 
in mind: 

• 1. Save the Environment 

Municipalities are planning and zoning 
New Jersey primarily with the aim of keeping 

• school taxes down rather than creating a 
sound environment. Almost every municipali­
ty tries to capture factories, offices or 
shops to help pay the school bill. As a re­
sult, urban facilities scatter through the 
countryside, unrelated to housing, out of 
reach of transit, stretching the average trip 
length and assuring that every trip must be 
by car and most by oneself. 

At the same time, zoning has forced peo­
ple to build homes on large lots (in order to 
hold down the number of school children), when 
many would have been satisfied with less land. 

Altogether, many more acres of country­
side have been invaded, many more lanes of 
highway built and many more gallons of gaso­
line consumed because municipalities have 
been forced to think first of their school 
taxes when zoning. 

2. Save the Cities 

The large urban facilities that have 
been scattering are needed by the old cities 
of the Region: (1) to keep opportunities 
centralized so they can be reached by persons 
without cars (over half the households of 
Newark, about a third of the households in 

-Paterson); (2) to keep society together at 
least eight hours a day instead of further 
segregating it; (3) to provide the basis for 

• attracting back to the cities households of 
all :Lncome levels (particularly the increas­
ing nu~:;er of households without children). 
If tht suburbs did not seek the facilities 
for tax purposes, business would be much more 
likely to locate in city centers. 

Also, the cities' extra financial bur­
dens due to the concentration of poverty 
there would be greatly relieved by more State 
financing of poverty-related services and more 

school tax aid. Better schools and lower 
city taxes would help the cities become more 
attractive to business and residents. 

3. Distribute Tax Burdens More Fairly 

In New Jersey, the lower one's income, 
the greater the share must go to State and 
local taxes, ranging from 19 percent of in­
comes under $3,000 to only 5~ percent of in­
comes above $25,000, according to the 1972 
report of the New Jersey Tax Policy Commission. 
Even a flat rate income tax in which everyone 
paid the same percentage of his income would 
reduce taxes for 80 percent of New Jersey re­
sidents if it replaced present property and 
sales taxes. 

However, many lower-income households 
rent their housing and fear that the income 
tax will simply be added to their burden 
without any benefit from the real estate tax 
relief the apartment owner will be getting. 
The income tax law could provide tax credits 
to renters to take care of this. 

In Regional Plan Association's CHOICES 
FOR '76 town meetings last spring, New Jersey 
participants voted 56 to 30 in'favor of 
"relying less on sales and property taxes and 
more on income taxes." Even the Region's re­
sidents earning over $35,000 favored this 
57-32. 

The real estate tax for non-school local 
government purposes could remain local. There 
appears to be little "profit" in real estate 
taxes for local services because each facility 
roughly requires as much in local services 
as it pays in local taxes. This is not true 
of school taxes, of course • 

4. Build More Housing 

Attached housing can be built much less 
expensively than one-family homes on large 
lots. Despite a severe housing shortage caused 
by the high price of new housing, municipali­
ties controlling the State's vacant land in 
northeastern New Jersey almost uniformly re­
quire one-family homes on large lots. (Apart­
ments are allowed only if they do not accom-

lC\ Regional Plan Association, Inc., 1974 
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modate many families with school-age chil­
dren.) Now, almost no housing units are 
being built within the range of families 
earning under $20,000--but with zoning 
changes, it is likely that families with in­
comes as :.ow as $15,000 might afford a new 
attached home cr apartment. 

In CHOICES FOR '76, Regional Plan 
pointed out that skyrocketing school taxes 
had encoun11ed large-lot zoning which, in 
turn, had eut the housing supply. New 
Jersey participants voted 62 to 31 for a 
statewide school tax to get more housing 
built. 

5. Helping Youngsters Start More Equally 

The main reason for shifting toward a 
State-equalized tax is to assure that young­
sters who have the greatest educational needs 
get the greatest educational funds. Now the 
situation is reversed: most children lagging 
academically are concentrated in schools with 
the least amount of money per pupil. When 
New Jersey CHOICES FOR 1 76 voters were con­
fronted with this fact, 63 percent voted to 
give schools wh~re pupils are lagging acad­
emically ~money than other schools get. 
Only 1 percent said to give those schools 
less money (the present situation) and 30 
percent said the same amount. Suburbanites 
and city residents agreed. 

To Change New Jersey Taxes 

With the great majority of residents 
likely to pay lower taxes if there is an 
ir.come tax than they would with a continua-

~ THE 
;",'A.' REGION'S 
\...,, 'A ~.· ..• f:.. N· .. ~r-\A 

. j.··~ 1.11-\ 

• REGIONAL PLAN ASSOCI.ATION 
235 East 45th Street 
New York, New York 10017 

A periodiC report on progress and problems m lmplement­
mg The Second R8gional Plan, 1dent1fying obstacles ~hat 
rra'ders m1ght help to overcome. 

tion of primary reliance on property and 
sales taxes, and with great environmental 
and housing advantages in State-equalized 
school taxes, why has the Legislature turned 
down an income .tax twice in the past? 

It appears to be mainly a fear that an 
income tax will only add to the total tax 
bill rather than shifting the burden. But, 
New Jersey taxpayers pay the third-highest 
real estate taxes in the country and the . 
tenth-lowest (41st highest) level of other 
taxes, according to the New Jersey Taxpayers 
Association. So, some relief for property 
tax payers seems possible without overburden­
ing other tax sources. Only eight of the 50 
states have no income tax. 

Also, some opponents fear State dicta­
tion of how much a school district can spend-­
but the·courts will set this limit. 

To pass an income tax and begin shift­
ing the school tax burden from localities to 
the State for reasons of equity (as required 
by the courts), good planning, more oppor­
tunity for city people and more housing·for 
middle-income families, the majority who will 
benefit will have to form a strong coalition. 
Such a coalition is forming. For further 
information: Mrs. Betty Evans, League of 
Women Voters, 460 Bloomfield Avenue, 
Montclair, N. J. 07042. All organizations 
concerned about conservation, rejuvenation 
of older cities, overcoming poverty, and 
getting more good housing (including builders 
and building trades as well as those needing 
better housing) might wish to join the coali­
tion. 
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NEW JERSEY CHAPTER 
360 NASSAU STREET, PRINCETON, N.J. 08540 
PHONE: (609) 924-3141 

Statement on the Governor's 
presented by Smith Freeman, 
New ,Jersey Chapter - Sierra 

~ N>~ f'vS<!~ 
JU I 'j tax reform proc;ra.n 
C.:hajrman, Land Usc Committee, 
Club. TreiJton, June 24, 19?1-1-. 

The New Jersey Chapter of the Sierra. Club submlts the accompanying statement 

for the he::tring rccorci.. Tl"ri.s statement of policy has <-.:.doptcd by the ChapLe:.:-

Executive Committee on .j·une 17 afte:::- careful study of the Governor's proposals, 

In "Jricf, He ft.,el ·U,at the existing reliance on tbc locc:~1 property t.a.x as the 

basis for municipal finance has significant adverse effects on land use decisions 

and. thus adversely affects the environment, vJe feel that the Governm·'s 

proposals represent positive steps towards mitigating these undesirable features 

and we acco:r~ingly endorse them. 

95 A 



- J ... -

In swnmary, the New Jersey Sierra Club endorses tho Go,.rc:T•or•·~ " 

for tax reform and the concept of a state-wide income tax. We also encourage 

our legislators and the administration to extend the tax base equalization 

co1cept to the provision of mtmicipal services, many of which have broad regional 

be:1efi ts not confined to the inhabitants of the central cities themselves. 
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SUBMITTED BY FREDERICK H. HARBISON 

Testimony June 24, 1974 

Total State - Local Tax Burden* 
(by selected income classes) 

o/o of - - - as percentage of income - - -

households existing with Byrne with Russo 
in communitl slstem EroEosal EroEosal 

Millburn Twp. 
$ 3 - $ 4, 999 1.7 40.6 26.6 41.3 
$10 - $14,999 13.9 16.4 14.6 16.8 
$15 - $24, 999 24.6 12.9 14.2 13. 3 
over $25, 000 47.5 6.2 9. 5 6. 6 

Cherry Hill 
$ 3 - $ 4, 999 2.3 30.1 16.9 24.4 
$10 - $14, 999 27.2 13.9 11.8 12.1 
$15 - $24, 999 41.0 11.6 11.0 10.8 
over $25,000 14.7 5.9 8.4 5.6 

Princeton Twp. 
$ 3 - $ 4, 999 2. 9 29. 6 20.0 28.0 
$10 - $14, 999 10.4 15.8 14.8 15.3 
$15 - $24, 999 29.4 12. 6 14.4 12.3 
over $25, 000 44.7 6. 1 9. 7 6.3 

Trenton 
$ 3 - $ 4, 999 9.5 22.4 12.8 21.2 
$10 - $14, 999 27.7 11.2 10.3 11.0 
$15 - $24, 999 14.3 9. 3 9. 5 9. 3 
over $25, 000 2. 7 6.8 9. 7 7.0 

Flemington 
$ 3 - $ 4, 999 5.0 19.7 13.1 17. 9 
$10 - $14, 999 28.7 11.4 11.3 10.7 
$15 - $24, 999 16.4 9. 5 10. 3 9. 1 
over $25, 000 4.0 5. 1 8.2 5. 2 

Dover Twp. 
$ 3 - $ 4, 999 10.2 19.3 12.6 17.8 
$10 - $14, 999 24.1 10.5 10.2 10.2 
$15 - $24, 999 15.1 9. 0 9. 7 8.8 
over $25, 000 4. 2. 5.0 7. 9 5.2 

* Estimates of tax burdens by income class are based on 1970 Census 
Data relating household income to house value, within each municipality. 

Source: Tax Simulation Model, Workshop on Financing Education in N.J. 
·woodrow Wilson School, Princeton University, Princeton, N.J. 
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P. 0. BOX 22, TRENTON, N. J. 08601 
(609) 393-8006 

Statement of the New Jersey Retail Merchants Association 
submitted as part of the public hearings on tax reform 
conducted jointly by the Assembly Taxation and Senate 
Revenue, Finance and Appropriations Committees. 

At the present time there exists in New Jersey, a t~x which is 

both regressive and discriminatory. 

It is the Retail Gross Receipts Tax. It is regressive because it 

is in no way geared toward the ability to pay. All retailers pay 

the tax on the gross receipts of their sales, completely ignoring 

whether a net profit, loss or break even situation exists. This is 

contradictory to the Administration's position that taxes should 

be based upon the ability to pay. 

The tax is discriminatory because it singles out the retail store 

owner and taxes his business. He already pays all other applicable 

business taxes the same as other businesses, such as the Corporate 

Income tax or the Unincorporated Business Tax. 

Other states elim~.nated this type of a tax when a sales tax 

was imposed. The r1ost recent was New York City in 1966. 

Of the 5 states besides N.J. that have this type of a ta~, 2 

have no sales tax (Alaska and Delaware) a 3rd state (Indiana) 

passed legislation last year to phase out the tax, and a 4th 

(Washington) proposed a constitutional amendment to reduce the 

tax in favor of an income tax. Only West Virginia which has a 

sales and income tax has retained a tax on retailers as well. 
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Statement of NJRMA Page 2 

Assembly bill no. 643 calls for the repeal of this tax and was 

favorably reported by the Assembly Taxation Committee on 

• January 21,.1974. 

Repeal of this tax should certainly receive substantial consid-

eration by this joint committee studying tax reform. 

Peter Allen 
Executive Vice President 
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SUBMITTED BY BILL BEREN . 

LEAGUE PUt CONSERVATION LEGIU.AfiON (I.CL) 
BOX 6M 

TEANECK, NBW JERSEY 

TESTIMONY OF BILL BEREN, LCL LEGISLATIVE AGENT, BEFORE ASSEMBLY TAXATION 
COMMITTEE AND SENTATE REVENUE, FINANCE AND APPROPRIAHONS COMMITTEE 

GOOD AFTERNOON. I AM BILL BEB.EN AND I REPRESENT '1'HE LEAGUE pea . .coNSERVATION 
~-

. LEGISLATIOn • .l.CL IS A COALITION OF ENV'IRQNMEN'I:ALISTS WHO HAVE ORGANIZED TO 

AC'JIVIELY LOBBY ·raa NEEDED ~ LEGISLATION IN mE STATE. HOUSE. · 

TAX IEP'ORM IS· IMPORTANT NOT ONLY m· TERMS OP HOJ MUCH· THE INDIVIDUAL 

TAXPAYER IS REQUIRED TO PAY, BUT ALSO IN TERMS OP THE SECONDARY Efi'BCTS TAX REPORM, 

PARTICULARLY .PROPERlY TAX REPORM, WILL HAVE ON OTHER ASPECTS OF THE STATE''S 

FINAGLING wrm TAXES IS ONE OF THE OLDEST toOLS AVAILABLE TO GOVEBNMENT 

' 1? MANAGE ITS ECONOMY AND TO PROMOTE SOCIAI.J..Y DESIRABLE GOALS. AS ENVIRONMENJ.:-

ALISTS -WE- ARE PARTICULARLY CONCERNED WITH THE EFFECTS TAX REFORM WILL HAVE ON 

LAND USE. AFTER DECADES OF SEEING TAX POLICIES ENCOURAGING GR<JilH OF SUBURBAN 
• 

AREAS, LCL BELIEVES 'mAT IT IS TIME THAT WE REVERSED THAT POLICI. IT IS TIME 

THAT WE TURN OUR ATTENTION BACK TO mE CITIES AND EOCOUBAGE GREATER CONCENTRA.:. 

TION OF PEOPLE AND JOBS IN AND AROUND URBAN CENTERS. 

IN ANALYZING A TAX. PACKAGE • LCL IS LOOKING ~ 'tim PO'LLCM~ INGREDIEN'IS a 

1. AS tAXPAYERS, LCL SUPPORTS THE CONCEPT <F AN INC<»tE TAX BASED ON REAL 

~ AS OPPOSED TO A PROPWl'l'Y TAX THAT BEARS NO RELATIONSHIP TO A PERS<Jf'S 

Ahi .I'l'Y TO PAY. 

2. LCL ALSO SUPPORTS A REDUCTION OF PROPERlY TAX RATES, AND TAX RELUF 

~R P.t\MTt.TFS AND TNDJYIDUALS ON FIXED INCOME'S <>a "l'l-llQll WHO ARE CLOSE TO THE 

P<JTERTY LINE. 

3. AS ENVUWNMENTALISTS a WE WOULD J.tKE TO SEE AN END TO 'l'HE HIGH 
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PAGE 2 

RATE DIFPBRENTIAIS THAT EXIST BEl'WBIN OUR CITDS AND THE SURROUNDING SUBURBAN 

AND RURAL AREAS. 

1m PROPERlY TAXES HAVE BEEN USED AS INCENTIVES TO ATI'RACT INDUSTRY TO 

SUBtm.BAN tNJ> Rtm.AL AREAS. OF COURSE 01'HER FACTORS HAVE ENTERED INTO THE 

P.QUAUON AS WELL. 'J.WO SUCH FACTORS WHICH COME READILY TO MIND ARl:. THE NEED 

FOR OPEN SPACE FOR EXPANSION AND THE EXODUS OF SKILLED MIDDLE ClASS WORI(ERS 

FROM. 'DIE CilY. HCMEVER1 THE PROPERlY TAX IS THE ONE VARIA::':~!.:) OVER WHICH THE 

GO\TBRNMBN'r HAS CON'mOLL, AND IT IS AlSO THE VARIABLE THAT CAN INFLUENCE TO S<lm 

DBGREE THE OTHER 'l'WO • 

ALL~ ME TO SAY JUST A FEW WORDS ABOUT WHY WE ARE CONCERNED WITH mE 

FATE OF THE CITIES. 11HILE TO MANY THE CllY CONJURES UP AN IMAGE OF FILTH AND 

POLLUTION, 'l'HE CITlC IS IN ACTUALtlY A MUCH SANER PATTERN OF LAND USB. IT 

CCHJERVES OPEN SPACE, WHICH CAN THEN BE USED F<.m AGRICULTURE OR RECREATION. 

AND THE HIGHER DENSilY INHERENT IN A CI'lY MAKES A WIDE RAR:;E OF MUNI.C'l.PAL 

SERVICES PEAS~BLE, FROM RESOURCE RECOVERY TO A MASS TRANSIT SYSTEM. 

THERE IS GOOD REASON TO BELIEVE THAT AN EVENING OUT OF THE BUSINESS 

PROPERlY TAX RATE THROUGlt. IUT THE STATE WILL HELP REVERSE THE EXODUS OF 

JOBS FROM THE CITY CENTERS. 

THUS, IT lS AGAINST THESE DUAL GOALS OF II PROGRBSS1. ~:. TAX BASED ON 

ABILIT'l TO PAY AND A STABILIZATION OF BUSINFSS TAXBS THROUGHT THE STATE 

THAT WE HAVE JUDGED THE VARIOUS TAX IROPOSALS THAT HAVE COME FORm. 

IN OUR VIEW,. THE GOVERNOR'S TAX B\CICAGE IS THE MOST CC»fPREHENSIVB AND FAIREST 

OF THE LOT. 
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TAX RIII'<ml IS alE OF THE IIlii TALIBD ABOUT ISSUIS IN NIW JERSEY, BUT LID 'l'HI 

WIA'l'HIR NO ONE SEDE '1'0 WANT TO DO AIIY'l'HDG ABOUT IT. FIVE YEARS AGO 1'HB 

MUSTO CCH«SION PIRST DISCUSSED '1'HE IlllfBRENT UNFAIBl~S or THE Lruu. GOVBRNMBiftS 

ISSUMDIG THE COS'l'S or STAIB MANDATED PROGBAK9 SUCH AS WELPARE, EDUCATION AND 

~ 

THE COURT SYSTJHh C~t'S WHICH TOOit FU'1Y SIX PBRCBNT or THEIR BUDGETS IN 1967 

AND WHICH STEADILY CLIMB. 

TO MEET 'DIESB DEMANDS, LOCAL GOVElUDSN'l'S COMPE't'BD AGAINST EACH O'.l'HD Ill 

Dll GRIAT RATABU:S WAR. OPEN SPACE AND .AGRICULTtJR.D LANDS LOST THEIR VALUE IN 

THE RUSH TO DEVELOP IVERY LAST INCH OF SPACE AND COLLBCT TAXES ON IT. THE 

LOCAL GCMmNMEN'l'S SJMPLY COULD HOT AFFOIU> 'l'HB LUXlJlY OF GOOD PLANNIR;. 

FINALLY THESE GOALS ARE BEING EMBODIED Dt THE GO'IERNORts TAX PACKAGE. 

HE PRO~ES '1'0 RBLIBVE 'l'HE UX:AL GOVBRMMEN'J.'S OF 'DIE STATE MANDATED C~'l'S AND 

TO PAY FOR THEM l'HROUGH AN INCCIIE TAX SUPPLBMENTED WI'DI A STATE WIDE PROPERTY 

TAX THAT WILL EQUALIZE THE TOTAL COST TO ALL 'DIE INDUS'l'RIAL TAX PAYERS .IN THE 

STATE. AND YET THESE PROGRAMS ARE TAILORED '1'0 PROVIDE RELIEF TO TIE SMAU.. 

BUSINESS MAN AND '1'0 THE TAXPAYERS WHO NEED THE HELP. 

MERELY REVISING 'DIE BUSINESS PROPERTY TAXIS UPWARD 'l'HBOUGHOUT 'DIE STJIB 

IS IN OUR OPINION A S IMPLIST!C SOLUTI<JI '1'0 A C<H'LEX PROBLEM. REI.JU FOR THE 

POOR AND ELBERLY AND TAX POLICIES 'l'HAT TEND '1'0 STRENGTHEN THE CITIES ARB JUST 

A8 ~ESBRV'OO BIASONS FCJl TAX RIPORM AS A COURT MANDATE TO ~UI.LIZE BDUCAttONAL 

SPENDING THROOOHOUT 'DIE STATE. 

LCL SUPPORts THE GOVBRNOR'S TAX PACI(AGB AS 'l'HB ONU ONE SO FAR THAT MEETS 

THE NEEDS OF AU. '1'HE CITIZENS. WB RICOGNJZE mAT DETAILS REMAIN 1'0 BE IRONED OUT, 

BUT WE GENERALLY GIVE om SUPP<BT TO THE IR::c»JE TAX AS LONG AS IT IS COUPLED WITH 
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